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effect from 20 August 2021.
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In 2021,

all member companies of the Group have worked on a
concerted effort to ensure all operations running stably amongst the
continuous impact of COVID-19, and the stricter national control on
emissions and pollutants, and the changing local market demand of
handling hazardous waste discharged by clients in different industries.
The overall performance of the Group in 2021 were down-turning as
compared to that in 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
decreased by 7.9% to HK$727,167,000 and the net profit decreased
by 48.1% to HK$52,918,000 as compared to the previous year.
Total EBITDA in 2021 decreased by 27.9% to HK$151,348,000 as
compared to 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$40,419,000 (2020: HK$74,576,000),
a decrease of 45.8% from 2020.

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2021 was HK$1,052,779,000 (2020: HK$1,034,427,000).
Total bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
was HK$198,970,000 (2020: HK$189,035,000). Cash and
cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$302,074,000 (2020: HK$257,523,000).
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Final Dividend

On 31 March 2022, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0039 per share at a payout ratio of approximately 29.3%
of the profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which is subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM"). Upon shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the final dividend
is expected to be payable on or about 29 July 2022 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 6 June 2022.

Business Prospects

The business operations of the Group might still encounter
unforeseeable challenge surrounded by the continuous impact of the
COVID-19 and the transitional change in market demand. The Group
commits to stable performance targets with continuous upholding
the practices of corporate governance and environmental governance.
Going ahead, the Group will continue to leverage its experience and
client portfolio of different industries in Jiangsu Province, and explore
for new opportunities in the environmental industry. The Group will
stay healthy on indebtedness and liquidity and will ensure effective
cash management and internal control of its operations. Barring any
uncertain economic factors and the impact of the COVID-19, we
expect the operations of the Group’s environmental related business
would be sustainable in long run.

Acknowledgment

I would like to express my gratitude to customers, suppliers, business
partners, financiers and our shareholders for the continuous support
to the Group. Notwithstanding we encountered market difficulties
and uncertainties in 2021, | would like to extend my thanks to our
employees, my colleagues, and our management team for their efforts
to deliver the results for 2021. We could do better and will work
harder for a reasonable results in the forthcoming year.
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] FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt = Basic EARNINGS PER SHARE AND
e Group revenue down 7.9% to HK$727,167,000. D'V'DéNDS PE:‘ SHARE (Héf CENTS)
AEERE T 7.9% Z 727,167,000 BT SREFBAURSHES (BL)
(HK cents 7&4l)
° Group EBITDA down 27.9% to HK$151,348,000. 2.78
AEE K EBITDA T B 27.9% Z 151,348,000 & T ©
2.45 2.46
o Profit attributable to owners of the Company down 45.8% to
HK$40,419,000.
KATEE AEMEEFIT B 45.8% Z 40,419,000 BT ©
o Equity attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$1,052,779,000 at 31 December 2021.
R=B=-—+=-A=+—HB A2AEHFAEERES1,052,779,000 o L
BT e
o Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$302,074,000 at 31 December 2021. oo Mor
R-B--%+=-A=+-8 F£ENRLREERLEEA 9 B
302,074,000 & T °
0.39
J Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company I
down 45.9% to HK cents1.33.
KA BEEAEEBRELREF T 45.9% £ 1.33 1l ° 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
e  The Board resolved to declare a final dividend of HK cents 0.39 e BT G e
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021. BREARF
EEERRERAE S —F+ A=+ BHLEFEZHARESR O
ividends per Share
0.39 71l - SRS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANA

5-Year Group REVENUE*

hEREEYE

HK$
BT

789,341,000

800,000,000

700,000,000 727,167,000

600,000,000
595,706,000

500,000,000
493,932,000

400,000,000

382,423,000

300,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

*  Group revenue represents the consolidated revenue from all
environmental related operations of the Group but excludes the
other revenue and other net income that being included in the
segment revenue.

* REERBIERE R EBHERRIGAES A Kz AE
FEEIA 7 BB as Y B o Wk R B A )FHA

5-YeAR NeT PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OwNERs oF COMPANY

RERREEEANEIE T
HK$
BT
100,000,000

83,577,000

80,000,000 74,576,000
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40,000,000
HOLZERE 40,419,000
20,000,000
0000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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SEGMENT REVENUE

5 B &

2021

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$456,400,000

RETXRBEREYEEREE
R 7 : 456,400,000/8 7T

A owm K

2020

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$601,211,000

PRHE T3 I B R R W a1 o
B &R : 601,211,000/ 7T

Provision of environmental equipment

A construction and installation services:
HK$124,496,000
RERRIBBERTERS :
124,496,000 7T

Provision of environmental equipment
construction and installation services:
HK$59,419,000
RERRRBEERTERS
59,419,000/ 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
A management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$146,271,000
RETKER EERE - 2R
ERFBHEE : 146,271,0007 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$128,711,000
REOUTKEE - BERY - 2B
ERFBEE 128,711,000/ 7T

dyeing operations: HK$4,637,000
PHACEBRE :
4,637,000/ 7T

I Investments in plastic materials

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$4,107,000
PHRACEBRE :
4,107,0007% 7T

SeGMENT ResuLTs (PRE-TAX)

S ER AR (Bian)

2021

2020

Provision of industrial and medical
A waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$46,386,000

REIXERBEEDEER
B EMRTS - 46,386,000/ 7T

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$127,778,000
RUTERBERENEER

BB MR : 127,778,0007% T

Provision of environmental

A equipment construction and
installation services: HK$3,158,000
RERRIBEZERTERS
3,158,000/ 7T

Provision of environmental
equipment construction and
installation services:
HK$3,107,000 (loss)
RERRIBEERTERS
3,107,000 7T (B518)

Provision of sewage treatment,
A management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$24,148,000
REOTKEE - BERYE - 2REC
ERFEEE 24,148,000 T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$17,209,000
RUUSKER - BERE - AR
ERFMEAE : 17,209,000/ 7T

Investments in plastic materials
A dyeing operations: HK$4,266,000

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$3,889,000

SRR (B RIS BHEBEBIRE :
4,266,000/% 7T 3,889,000/ 7T
“EC-FFE FFRAKEEARAE T/
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LI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the overall performance of the Group in 2021 were
down-turning as compared to that in 2020 amongst the continuous
impact of COVID-19, the stricter national control on emissions and
pollutants, and the changing local market of handling hazardous
waste discharged.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
decreased by 7.9% to HK$727,167,000 and the net profit decreased
by 48.1% to HK$52,918,000 as compared to the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$40,419,000 (2020: HK$74,576,000),
a decrease of 45.8% from 2020.

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2021 increased to HK$1,052,779,000 (2020: HK$1,034,427,000).
Total bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
increased to HK$198,970,000 (2020: HK$189,035,000). Cash and
cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2021 increased to
HK$302,074,000 (2020: HK$257,523,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

Environmental Treatment and Disposal Services for

Industrial and Medical Wastes

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company’s subsidiaries
had collected from external customers for treatment and disposal in
aggregate of approximately 113,346 metric tonnes (2020: 110,042
metric tonnes) of different hazardous and non-hazardous waste from
various cities in Jiangsu Province, and the total segment revenue from
the provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes was approximately HK$456,400,000
(2020: HK$601,211,000).

Wk D

3

ITXIBEEYVERREENREE

Az 75
BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—BLEFE &
REIKE R R BT & A 2 @ i B
EPFREREREEA £4113,346 20 (=
T-TF :110,042008) ZREfak R IEER
EYmEHIXNEEREYRREENEE
AR 7% 2 5 BB UL %= 48 BB 4 456,400,000 JT
(ZZ—Z % :601,211,000/7T) °

SN

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Waste Waste
collected Segment collected Segment
and disposed revenue and disposed revenue
WEREEREY Dbl E WEREBEREY AN
metric tonnes HK$'000  metric tonnes HK$'000
AW THExT NI FHT
Hazardous industrial waste & T &Y 102,914 408,252 100,335 555,701
Regulated medical waste X E I BEREY 7,616 45,406 6,264 42,170
General industrial solid — R ITHEE

waste and others BEY) R E M 2,816 2,742 3,443 3,340
Total 4BEt 113,346 456,400 110,042 601,211

The Group holds interests in two associates, with 30% equity interest
in Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited* (“Zhenjiang Xin
Qu") that principally engaged in landfill of hazardous industrial waste,
and 30% equity interest in Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu
Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited (“NCIP") that principally
engaged in the treatment, incineration and disposal of hazardous
industrial waste services in the PRC. The attributable results of
Zhenjiang Xin Qu and NCIP are accounted for on equity method and
classified under the operating segment of environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group shared a net
profit of HK$6,164,000 from Zhenjiang Xin Qu (2020: net profit of
HK$10,924,000) and shared a net loss of HK$12,553,000 (2020: net
loss of HK$622,000) from NCIP respectively.

AEBRMEBE ARG EED  RETIH
EEEEERGERAR ([EIFE]DH
B30% D EREREBTXRKRFER
BEMEEBRAR ((BRAXF] FH30%
Bm AETENETCRIXEYWEHER
B RETENPEAMKESREHEHR T
BEYIIRIREIE RENMESREHOER - #
IHERERRTFHREMEERERSEAR
UENEACSBTENEEEDRRE
BREENEENHZT HE-_ZT=-_—F
+-A=+—HBLFE AEEHFIEGE
STHT IR B 48 76,164,000 T (T - T4 ¢
46 710,924,000 7T) & FE(G B R K FHF
E51812,553,0008 0 (ZE T F : FEH1IB
622,000/ 7T) °
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The Group also holds 65% equity interest in a sino-foreign joint
V.E-nture, Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company
imited* (“Xinyu Rongkai”), which has been granted its first operating
license to handle hazardous waste of 20,000 metric tonnes per annum
in September 2021 and under trial run to provide environmental
treatment and disposal of hazardous industrial waste services in
Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC. The attributable results of Xinyu
Rongkai is accounted for on equity method and classified under the
operating segment of environmental treatment and disposal services
for industrial and medical wastes of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group shared a net loss of HK$4,440,000 (2020:
net loss of HK$1,835,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the profit margin (pre-tax)
of the Group’s operating segment of environmental treatment and
disposal services for industrial and medical wastes was approximately
10.2% (2020: 21.3%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s combined capacity
of facilities for the provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes were summarised as follows:

EREH AR DD

BE-ZT=-—4%+=H=+—HIEFEE
SERETENBERYRREEREER
BHEL S BOBATFEROE102% (=ZF
TEE 1 21.3%) °

RBERR  NEBRBITERBEEYIR
REEREERYE 2 RiE.20t 6 RIEE N
N

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
Annual Annual
capacity capacity
Note metric tonnes metric tonnes
FEEREND FRERS
{hg=d AW NI
Subsidiaries in the PRC: REBEMKRBEAR :
Licensed hazardous waste TEET A fE b BE R I 2R e
incineration facilities 135,400 138,400
Licensed epidemic medical waste — JEZF O] {52 |4 BREREY)
incineration facilities Wi Rt 6,080 6,080
Licensed epidemic medical waste — EFFal{EREEEEYMEE
detoxification treatment B R
facilities 3,300 3,300
Associated companies in the PRC: R EBE AT :
Licensed hazardous waste TEET A &b BE R G 2R e
incineration facilities 38,000 38,000
Licensed hazardous waste TEET A b EE W IE IR B
landfill facilities 20,000 20,000
Joint venture in the PRC: RPBEEELE:
Licensed hazardous waste T B EE I R b
incineration facilities 20,000 =
Combined licensed treatment ENTEEREERESHR
and disposal facilities (i) 222,780 205,780
Notes: Bt -

(i) The combined capacity of the licensed waste treatment and disposal
facilities represents the total effective treatment and disposal quantity
of hazardous waste allowable to handle under the valid operating
permission licences owned by the Group as at the end of the reporting
period calculated on annualised basis.

(i)  The combined licensed treatment and disposal facilities above does not
include the hazardous waste landfill facilities with an annual capacity of
18,000 metric tonnes owned and constructed by a subsidiary situated
at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, which is still subject to further
governmental approval.

() EFUEVEEREEREZHAEEE
NERFRAEEEFTRREHRRERN
SEMERERREHAARAURFRER
BREEY Z AREIERGEBNE

FMEFATREREECHERBTEE
MARFEIEHEERT A —RWBE R R #
BREENFERIEE 518,000 B8 K Z K
BEVEIB RN AN EFESE—F
BFHE X - HATEE o

(i)

11
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Environmental Equipment Construction and Installation

Services

In 2021, the wholly-owned engineering subsidiary that principally
engaged in environmental equipment construction and installation
services has confined its effort to 11 (2020: 7) key contract works
in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue
recognised from the existing contract works provided to external
customers and to a joint venture was approximately HK$124,496,000
(2020: HK$59,419,000) and the segment profit margin (pre-tax) was
approximately 2.5% (2020: pre-tax loss).

Environmental Plating Sewage Treatment Services in
Eco-plating Specialised Zone

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue from the
operating segment of provision of environmental plating sewage
treatment services and provision of leasing facilities and related
utilities in the eco-plating specialised zone owned by the Group
situated at Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (the “Eco-plating
Specialised Zone") was approximately HK$146,271,000 (2020:
HK$128,711,000) and the segment profit margin (pre-tax) was
approximately 16.5% (2020: 13.4%).

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIRRERE R KRS

RZZT-—F AR RERERERER
TEREHNZ2ETEMNBATZNEPBEE
BNMNBE(ZE-ZF:7H)TEAHITRE - &
EE-_—FE+-A=t+—HILEE K&
ERAMPEER—RAELEREMNRET
RAHRB IS ££4124,496,00058 7T (=
T~ F4F 59,419,000/ 7T) M AT D EBF
HENAE25% (ZE_FF : BATEE) -
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2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFF
Average gross floor area of factory EHEEIHIERS REE2
buildings and facilities available for T EEEE (P K)
leasing (square metres) 103,921 106,807
Average utilisation rate of buildings and I & & &5 < F 9 F| F =&
facilities 93.8% 89.3%
Plating sewage handled by the SRR 5KEERFTEEEESK
centralised sewage treatment plant (Bt BB F QM)
(metric tonnes per annum) 428,314 450,295
Average utilisation rate of sewage EKE BN 2 PR A E
treatment capacity 26.0% 27.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

The Eco-plating Specialised Zone has a total land area of 181,757
square metres, in which, office building, factory buildings, and
centralised filtering plants were built. The office building and
centralised sewage filtering and sludge treatment plants were built
with a total gross floor area of 19,560 square metres, and factory
buildings and facilities with a total gross area of 106,807 square
metres and available for leasing to manufacturing clients which
undertake their plating-related operations inside the Eco-plating
Specialised Zone. The Group owns 22 factory buildings (with one of
which under renovation during the year of 2021) in the Eco-plating
Specialised Zone which are leased by 41 (2020: 42) manufacturing
clients as at 31 December 2021. The Group operates a centralised
plating sewage treatment plant, a centralised industrial sludge
treatment plant and customised facilities equipped for all clients in the
zone.

Investments in Plastic Materials Dyeing Business

The Group holds the equity interests in three manufacturing entities,
which principally engaged in plastic materials dyeing in the PRC, as
equity investments. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the profit
margins (pre-tax) of Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Company Limited
("Suzhou New Huamei”), Danyang New Huamei Plastics Company
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) and Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei
Plastics Company Limited (“Qingdao Huamei”) were 3.9%,1.7% and
3.2% (2020: 4.1%, 1.5% and 5.8%) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total dividend received by
the Group (before PRC dividend withholding tax) in relation to the
results of Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao
Huamei in previous year was approximately HK$4,637,000 (2020:
HK$4,107,000).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the operations of the Group
kept staying resilient to the continuous impact of the COVID-19
pandemic and the Group had to encounter costs driven up and
revenue down-turned to compromise with the market adjustment.
The Group has met challenge on logistics of hazardous waste
collection and transportation across different districts under control
in order to contain any possible spread of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Owing to the market changes, the Group had to account prudently
for the under-performing accounts receivable from certain distressed
clients in 2021. Nevertheless, the Group commits to uphold the
national directions toward environmental protection and keep up the
waste processing facilities and standards. Entering 2022, the Group
has well-prepared for ensuring licence renewal for its subsidiaries
that would be granted on time with minimal downtime for necessary
fine-tuning of the incineration facilities and hazardous waste
management system required under the stricter compliance standards
in recent years.

S ENH R DN

RREFEZERE ZBGHMETREA181,757F
K BREEGAHAEREFRFKE
B K5 R R IR R AR L A 5119,560F
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106,807 F KA R EFERREESR
XENKEEFERHAEB 2 REXRR - A
SETRREFEXERNEARETIRER
(Eh—BERE-T — —FIEETRE) -
R-E-_—F+-"A=+—H %EI1EH
NR(ZEZZEF  RR)EEEETFHARA -
AEBEEEAEXRANMARTLMAMNE
FREESKEER SPRAITESERE
gk &% 5E ) B2 e ©
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As at 31 December 2021, the existing incineration capacity owned by

' the four subsidiaries of the Company for handling hazardous waste

‘in the PRC was 135,400 metric tonnes per annum. The centralised
sewage filtering system in the Eco-plating Specialised Industrial Zone
has been enhanced and worked well with the phase Il sewage filtering
plant completed in 2020, it is expected that the improved filtering
facilities would benefit the existing clients in the zone and also
motivate increase in utilisation with new clients entering the zone in
the foreseeable future.

The Group continues to uphold corporate governance practice and
environmental governance, and would ensure smooth and stable
operation of the whole Group and adapt to all changes that might
be caused by the impact of COVID-19 pandemic. The Group will
continue to confine on environmental related business and explore for
opportunities prudently in a timely manner for business restructuring
and industrial upgrade to improve sustainable performance of its
environmental operations. Barring any unforeseeable risks from the
global and local economies and uncertainties arising from COVID-19
pandemic, the Group would work harder to deliver a reasonable
results in the forthcoming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
EEREBI®WERD

Bt 7% B BE
HE T - —F+= A=+ HIEHas
FEEPE (ER _Z_ZTF2HEHEF)
YT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The summary of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021
together with corresponding figures for 2020 is presented as follows:

PEREME
(BFESEHT » BRGUTFETLIF)

Summary of annual results
(Expressed in HK$’000 unless indicated otherwise)

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-ZA=1+T—HLFE

2021 2020 Change
—E_—F ZTTHF BE)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 %
ihg=s F#&xT FHET
Revenue from environmental TENBERYNEREREIEN

treatment and disposal services bR B RIS 2 Wz

for industrial and medical wastes 456,400 601,211 -24.1
Revenue from environmental IRRBERERTERB 2

equipment construction and Wz

installation services 124,496 59,419 +109.5
Revenue from environmental TITESKEREE BE -

industrial sewage treatment, BB RS N TR 2

utilities, management services, U =5

and factory facilities 146,271 128,711 +13.6
Total Revenue Was4asa 1 727,167 789,341 -7.9
Average gross profit margin EHEFER (Bott)

(in percentage) 2 26.4 27.8 -5.0
Other revenue E bz 3 4,637 4,107 +12.9
Other net income H A FUA 4 7,407 13,443 -44.9
Distribution costs Sak =1 %N 5 23,916 6,971 +243.1
Administrative expenses TERAX 6 59,718 56,433 +5.8
Other operating expenses Hih & ZMY 7 17,826 24,525 -27.3
Impairment loss on trade receivables, FEULBRE RN 2 B B 18 F58

net 8 28,685 9,526 +201.1
Impairment loss on assets classified S AFIEHEESEY

as held for sale REE1E 9 - 12,636 -100.0
Finance income BEWA 10 4,140 402 +929.9
Finance costs BB KA 11 6,521 9,564 -31.8
Share of results of associates DIEE &N 7 2B 12 (6,389) 10,302 -162.0
Share of results of a joint venture FEH—REEEHEE 13 (4,440) (1,835) +142.0
Income tax s 14 7.436 24,501 -69.7
Net profit for the year INE [E 4B R 15 52,918 102,046 -48 .1
Profit attributable to owners of the  ZNA &% B AFE (L% F

Company 15 40,419 74,576 -45.8
Basic EPS (in HK cents) GFIREAZF (B 16 1.33 2.46 -45.9
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) SREERF GB) 16 1.33 2.46 -45.9
EBITDA EBITDA 17 151,348 209,958 -27.9

—E_—-F58 FFEFREFEEEAR2F 15
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_ Summary of annual results by semi-annual cycle
(Expressed in HK$'000 unless indicated otherwise)

£

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ST}

BErFEREINEFREAMRE
(BFESEHT » BRGUTFETIF)

1H 2021 2H 2021 Total 2021
—EBE_—F B —EBE-—F
e %3 T¥EF st
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5T FHET THET THET
Revenue from environmental TENBEEVNREREREN

treatment and disposal services IR B RIS 2 Wiz

for industrial and medical wastes 235,819 220,581 456,400
Revenue from environmental RRIERERLZEREZ

equipment construction and Wz

installation services - 124,496 124,496
Revenue from environmental TETKRREE  BBE -

industrial sewage treatment, BEIEIRE N TR

utilities, management services, WS

and factory facilities 71,804 74,467 146,271
Total Revenue Iz 1B R 1 307,623 419,544 727,167
Average gross profit margin FHEFNE (BHLH)

(in percentage) 2 30.7 23.2 26.4
Other revenue H Aot e 3 4,637 - 4,637
Other net income EH AR A 4 3,414 3,993 7,407
Distribution costs Pal 121D 5 8,823 15,093 23,916
Administrative expenses THAX 6 30,517 29,201 59,718
Other operating expenses Hah e 7 7,241 10,585 17,826
Impairment loss on trade receivables, & BRZ 2 &8 E 18 %58

net 8 - 28,685 28,685
Finance income FE WA 10 3,270 870 4,140
Finance costs BB 11 3,164 3,357 6,521
Share of results of associates DI E N T2 EE 12 (4,138) (2,251) (6,389)
Share of results of a joint venture SME—REEEIEE 13 (1,713) (2,727) (4,440)
Income tax Frisai 14 11,042 (3.606) 7,436
Net profit for the period BN AR 15 38,984 13,934 52,918
Profit attributable to owners KRB A AEE G R

of the Company 15 28,746 11,673 40,419
Basic EPS (in HK cents) BRERZFN (El) 16 0.95 0.38 1.33
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) E#EsaEN (Bl) 16 0.95 0.38 1.33
EBITDA EBITDA 17 95,133 56,215 151,348
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
EEN-

am o

1H 2020 2H 2020 Total 2020
—E-TF —EB-TF —_TEFF
E¥E THE 5T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FHET BT THET
Revenue from environmental THERBEREYNIRRRIER

treatment and disposal services BER®E 2 a

for industrial and medical wastes 305,862 295,349 601,211
Revenue from environmental IRIRSERERLTEREZ

equipment construction and g

installation services - 59,419 59,419
Revenue from environmental TEESKEREE  BEE -

industrial sewage treatment, EIRARTS M TR M2

utilities, management services, e

and factory facilities 57,527 71,184 128,711
Total Revenue Wz 4858 1 363,389 425,952 789,341
Average gross profit margin FHEMNE (BHL)

(in percentage) 2 29.6 26.4 27.8
Other revenue H Atz 3 1,882 2,225 4,107
Other net income HAbFHA 4 5,835 7,608 13,443
Distribution costs VAR 1D %N 5 6,167 804 6,971
Administrative expenses THREX 6 24,158 32,275 56,433
Other operating expenses Hinge &R 7 8,249 16,276 24,525
Impairment loss on trade receivables, FEUEREZ 7 B{EEIBF5E

net 8 1,826 7,700 9,526
Impairment loss on assets classified D iEAFEHEEE 2 REE

as held for sale 18 9 12,242 394 12,636
Finance income BMERA 10 1,047 (645) 402
Finance costs & Bk AR 11 5,363 4,201 9,564
Share of results of associates DR E R E) 2 A 12 5,973 4,329 10,302
Share of results of a joint venture BE—REEDEES 13 (653) (1,182) (1,835)
Income tax PSR 14 8,813 15,688 24,501
Net profit for the period BRI AER 15 54,762 47,284 102,046
Profit attributable to owners NARVEE AEG R T

of the Company 15 38,360 36,216 74,576
Basic EPS (in HK cents) BREAREF (B) 16 1.26 1.20 2.46
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) BREFERN (BW) 16 1.26 1.20 2.46
EBITDA EBITDA 17 104,382 105,576 209,958

17
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Net decrease in total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
mainly attributable to the reduction in unit prices offered to collecting
industrial hazardous waste to cope with the change in supply of
industrial waste discharged by all clients from different industries in the
current year.

Decrease in gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was mainly attributable to increases in transportation
cost on waste collection and landfill cost for disposal of post-incinerated
residues and ashes produced from incineration and waste decomposing
process.

BH Net increase in other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
mainly attributable to increase in net dividend received/receivable from
the equity investments in the current year.

4. Net decrease in other net income for the year ended 31 December 2021
was mainly attributable to decrease in refunds on net VAT paid on
environmental related operations under the preferential tax policy in the
PRC in the current year.

5. Net increase in distribution costs for the year ended 31 December 2021
was mainly attributable to increase in marketing agency expenses to
enhance client portfolios in the changing market demand on hazardous
waste disposal in the current year.

6. Net increase in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly attributable to increase in staff costs in the current
year.

7. Net decrease in other operating expenses for the year ended 31

December 2021 was mainly attributable to:

(@) decrease in legal and professional expenses incurred on
non-compliance incidents in the current year; and

(b)  decrease in loss on obsolete assets scrapped in the current year.

8. Increase in impairment loss on trade receivables for the year ended 31
December 2021 was mainly attributable to the increase in probability
of default expected for those under-performing and non-performing
accounts receivable due from the clients encountered difficulties under
change in market situation and pressure under regulatory compliance in
different industries pursuant to the appraisals of the lifetime expected
credit losses therefor in the current year.

9. The one-off impairment loss on assets classified as held for sale
recognised in previous year did not recur in the current year.

10. Net increase in finance income for the year ended 31 December 2021
was mainly attributable to increase in exchange gain on fund movement
activities of the Group in the current year.

11.  Net decrease in finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 was

mainly attributable to decrease in interest-bearing borrowings in the
current year.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

Net loss shared from the associates for the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly attributable to loss shared from NCIP which has
encountered temporary down-time for fixation of incineration facilities
before its hazardous operating permit license being renewed in the
current year.

Net results of loss shared from the joint venture was attributable to the
share of preliminary expenses before the joint venture is being put into
operations after its integrated hazardous waste treatment centre located
at Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC, has been put under trial-run in
the current year.

Net decrease in income tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
mainly attributable to decrease in taxable profits generated from key
operations of the Group in the PRC in the current year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net decrease in net profit and
decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company were mainly
attributable to:

(a)  decrease in revenue from treatment and disposal of hazardous
industrial waste services of the Group in the current year;

(b) increase in marketing agency incentive expenses in the current
year; and

(¢) increase in lifetime expected credit losses recognised on
under-performing and non-performing accounts receivable from
clients encountered difficulties under transitional change in
market and environmental compliance requirement in the current
year.

Decrease in earnings per shares (“EPS") was directly attributable to the
decrease in net profit in 2021.

Decrease in EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly
attributable to the decrease in overall operating profit of the Group in
the current year.

Seasonality of operations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the operation of providing
environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was the key driver of revenue of the Group which
encountered a relatively higher demand in the first half of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes though
still being affected by the impact of COVID-19 which recorded a
revenue of HK$456,400,000 (2020: HK$601,211,000) and pre-tax
profit of HK$46,386,000 (2020: HK$127,778,000) with revenue
of approximately 51.7% (2020: 50.9%) being accumulated in the
first half of the year and approximately 48.3% (2020: 49.1%) being
accumulated in the second half of the year.

EREH AR DD
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_ Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred capital
‘expenditure to increase property, plant and equipment and to
acquire land use rights for the operating segment of (i) environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
amounted to approximately HK$24,824,000 (2020: HK$44,731,000),
(ii) environmental equipment construction and installation services
amounted to HK$1,235,000 (2020: Nil); (iii) industrial sewage and
sludge treatment and facility provision services in the Eco-plating
Specialised Zone amounted to approximately HK$1,684,000 (2020:
HK$27,172,000), and (iv) head office for corporate use in Hong Kong
being HK$1,730,000 (2020: HK$6,000).

Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital assets:

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEARRX
HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE K
EEEAEAATIAEMYE  BE&LE
MW T EARAR TGS ST
FEEEYDEREENMEBERGSBNA
24,824,000/ 7T (— & — T 4 : 44,731,000
BIL) S (NRRARRBERERTREERESEA
1,235,000 T (ZEZZFF : T) : ()RR
EREEEBEARBIEZESKESEEER
RERIE S EA 51,684,000 L (T -F
127,172,000 7T) R(v)A R & & B 5 1E
TERE £%A1,730,0008 L (ZE=F
& : 6,000/ 7T) °

AR
RBERR AEEREREE(FL AT A

=i

2021 2020
—E-—fF TR CTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Contracted but not provided for: BETHE R B -

— Capital expenditure in respect of —BHME BEREHEZ

property, plant and equipment BEARRX 20,624 15,359
— Capital contribution to an equity —M—ERAKRELE

investment 15,976 15,771
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAL

Liquidity, financial resources and gearing

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group financed its
operations and made payment of debts and liabilities due timely
with internally generated cash flows and banking facilities.

The Group remained stable in its financial position with
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,052,779,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$1,034,427,000) and consolidated total assets
amounted to approximately HK$1,784,011,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$1,745,603,000).

The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity within
the past twelve months immediately prior to the date of this
announcement (2020: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had:

TEEN AR D

RBEL WBERNEERBLE
@ BE_T-_-—F+-_A=t+—HLHF
B -AEEHREABEENR SR
ERRTERE UBENEZEYN REF
XNHEBBEBLAR -

ﬁﬁ

0

b) AEERFBEROTBMRIL RZ2F
——F+—A=+—HZAEA ﬂzﬁﬁ
AN FEAGBE AR 49 51,052,779,000/8 7T (=
T T4 :1,034,427,0008 ) - B
T F+ A=+ HZEEHE
BER1,784,011,0008 L (ZE =T
£ 1 1,745,603,0005& 7T) °

(0 ARAREEARMEMATBE+=
& A WIHEHH§$’§§%@J(_?_
TEE) o

d REEHKR AKEE :

2021 2020

—EZ—F —T-FTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

(i)  Cash and bank balances (i) IReKkiBITs 302,074 257,523
(i) Available unused unsecured (i) FAIHEFERAMAREANER

banking facilities HRTIEE 14,640 55,960

258 FFEFRAREEABRAA
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Key Performance indicators

(a)

EBITDA represents the EBITDA of the Company and subsidiary
companies. EBITDA is defined as earnings before gross interest
and other finance costs, taxation, depreciation and amortisation.
The Group considers EBITDA to be a performance measure
which is used in the Group’s internal financial and management
reporting to monitor business performance. EBITDA of the
Group was HK$151,348,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$209,958,000).

Reconciliation of consolidated net profit for the year to EBITDA is
set out as follows:

78 2
(a)

-MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBIER

EBITDAEE AR A KWE QA 2
EBITDA ° EBITDAH & & A H Bk B8 5 &
REAMBMBKAR  FIE - TE R#H

B A & 7 - A% B R AEBITDATY — 1A
EEEZ ARAEENRIBYTH R

EERENERERRR - AEER
BE T -4+ _-_A=+—8I%F
€ HIEBITDAA 151,348,000/ 7T (= &
—Z4F 1 209,958,000/ 7T) °

REFLFEA RN EEBITDAZ HERIIT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Profit for the year FEHF 52,918 102,046

Add: o

Depreciation on property, plant and ME - BERZETE

equipment 80,332 69,915

Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEEFNE 4,141 3,932

Gross interest expenses AR B X 6,521 9,564

Income tax Fris &t 7.436 24,501

EBITDA for the year N4 ZEBITDA 151,348 209,958

The Company monitors its financial and earnings performance  (b) 72 E35 BEBITDAE B A AT E A

of the associates through EBITDA by cancelling the effects of the
associates’ capital, financing and tax entity structure. Set out
below is the EBITDA of the associates of the Company for the
two years ended 31 December 2021:

BMELRBBEEREBOTE  DEDT
ﬁﬁéﬁimﬁﬁ%&%%lﬁﬁ LA TR &K
IARRARBERNRNRBE_S-_—F
+:ﬂ:+ H 1E M & 4 & HEBITDA :

2021 2020

—E-—F —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

EBITDA of associates: B4 & X A]EBITDA :

Zhenjiang Xin Qu L= 29,486 45,702
NCIP HMRATF (16,428) 21,433
The Group monitors its liquidity through current ratio. The (¢) ZRNEFENURE REEETEFHES

current ratio of the Group representing the ratio of the
consolidated current assets to the consolidated current liabilities
was 1.02 times as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 0.85 times).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

(d) The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings
(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing
ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

TEEESNWED

d AKENEERBEHLRETHEHEAR.
R DZFEEEAR (BEEAER
B) BRAR A BB E - R E RN
EEABLLENT

2021 2020

=B —E-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Bank borrowings RITHE 198,970 189,035

Other borrowing HtEgE = 25,000

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,470 147

Total interest-bearing borrowings ATEEERE 200,440 214,182
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling AXZAN42%8 (6 ¥ FE4E iR i 25)

interests) 1,182,810 1,163,337

Gearing ratio BEEARHEX 16.9% 18.4%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

Capital structure

There was no significant change to the capital structure of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 comparing to that as at 31
December 2020.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies

On 23 July 2021, the Board decided to pay up the increase in
registered capital of HK$31,500,000 to the wholly-owned subsidiary
in the PRC, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Limited* (/T
FHHFRERFAER QR to increase cash available for exploring
opportunities prudently for business restructuring and industrial
upgrade of the Group’s environmental operations in the PRC.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no significant investments
nor material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AR B HEAEAHE R BB E SR
TSN Z B ARRE ©

ARAR=B=—F+=A=+—HAZEX
R -F-FF+= A=+ BRI
8 AR -

B AR REBEBARKEANNKE K
==

R-ZE-_—F+A-+=H BEESREM
P EME A RIS FRRBHE AR QA
7B 1 005 it & 431,500,000/ 7T+ BA 1 A0 ]
AR EFBRBEERRANEBRREBNES
BARBREBEEABKENERES

BABEMBEESN  RABARBE_F
TF T A=t HLEFEYEEMER
BREIMBARREB AR ZERKE KT
& .

258 FFEFRAREEABRAA
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Significant subsequent event

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 2 March 2022
the Group entered into an agreement as vendor to dispose of the
entire equity interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Taixing Xin
Xin Resources Recycling Company Limited* (“Taixing Xin Xin"), to
an independent third party at a consideration of RMB42,100,000
(approximately HK$51,362,000). The major assets held by Taixing
Xin Xin were land of 33,323 sq.m. and industrial buildings of gross
floor area 3,360 sq.m. with a total carrying amount of approximately
HK$23,649,000 as at 31 December 2021. The transaction is
expected to be completed within four months after entering into the
agreement.

Significant investments held and their performance

According to the valuation report dated 29 March 2022 issued by an
independent professional valuer, Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Colliers International”) (2020: CBRE Limited (“CBRE")),
the total fair value attributable to the Group’s interests in the equity
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and
Qingdao Huamei as at 31 December 2021 was HK$80,800,000 (31
December 2020: HK$118,100,000).

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERHEHBEIR
RipEER - RZE-—_F=H=-H  &&E
BAERSHIY—BH#E AREBEARE
42,100,0007T (448 & 751,362,0007% 7T ) A
—BUE=ZFHER—B2ENBARFHE
FHERBENBERAR ([FEFH])
MEERE - REFTAEENETEEAE
AR —_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HBHEEEA
23,649,000/ 7T £ 1 (33,323 F H2K) R T ¥
BE (2EmEIE3,360F HK) - RIEX ST
BRI BERERZEEZMNERRREK °

FiFE A E R HEKIR

REBE L EEGHEMS HEBMEBRRM (F
B)BERRAE ((BOABRBD(ZE_2F:
HREABRAE ([HHBEREAL])) AT
HEAABMA-ZTE-_—_E=A=-_t+thLBHH
BEHRE RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEBAIGEHMNFTEEZ NEHEEZRE
EEXNRAKEREZNLATERE R
80,800,000 T (ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—
B : 118,100,000 7T °

Fair value attributable
to the Group

AEBELATE
Group’s interest 2021 2020
REERER —E-—F —EEF
HK’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Suzhou New Huamei ERINFTEESE 18.62% 33,300 33,700
Danyang New Huamei PG ErEEE 24.50% 8,100 10,900
Qingdao Huamei S58HEXE 28.67% 39,400 73,500
80,800 118,100

The change in fair value of the equity investments for the year end 31
December 2021 were recognised as other comprehensive income and
accounted for in the investment revaluation reserve of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

Impairment testing on goodwill

Goodwill was recognised in 2007 upon the completion of a business
combination composed of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited and Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited that principally engaged in environmental
waste treatment and disposal services in Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC which since then being identified as a cash-generating unit.
As at 31 December 2021, the assessment on the recoverable amount
of this cash-generating unit was conducted with reference to the
valuation report dated 29 March 2022 issued by Colliers International
(2020: CBRE), based on reasonable assumptions, including but
not limited to the cash flows projection with a growth rate at 2%
(2020: 2%) of that cash-generating unit operating with the licensed
incineration capacity of hazardous waste 26,400 metric tonnes per
annum and licensed detoxification capacity of regulated medical
waste 3,000 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount
rate of 19.50% (2020: 17.85%) having accounted for the risks
encountered in the industries. No impairment loss to the goodwill was
considered necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Impairment testing on interest in an associate, NCIP

As at 31 December 2021, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of the Group’s interest in NCIP, that principally engaged
in environmental waste treatment and disposal services in Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, was conducted with reference to the
valuation report dated 29 March 2022 issued by Colliers International
(2020: CBRE), based on reasonable assumptions, including but not
limited to the cash flows projection of NCIP with a growth rate at
2% (2020: 2%) of NCIP as cash-generating unit with the licensed
incineration capacity of hazardous waste 38,000 metric tonnes per
annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of 18.03% (2020: 16.04%)
having accounted for the risks encountered by NCIP in the industries.
No impairment loss to the Group’s interest in NCIP was considered
necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

""h_

EREHMEDM
EESLESRCEER:ES

FAEDR-_EELFERMNAETIHFELE
BEYEEAERARRERFFEEENES
BRAGBZEBEHMER  TE2HEFEIT
BAEBIMRERREBEVEEREE R -
hEENA—ERESEEEN RZTZ—
F+-A=+—HB HUHBASEELEMD
AkESEETZ B N2ES NERE (=
ToEF HHREBC LA AT
ZZFE=ZAZTNENMERENEE - &

BEREDENZEAENRR  BEET
RN AZIE S ES BNIREFBREDR
BERE N 26,4000 W8 N EFF ] X EEE BB

REYIS ERE T4 3,000 BB TEH2% (=
E_ZTF 2% )EBEEHNBESREILR
MERNEBROFRATERIOS0% (ZE-F
F:1785%) BE_ZT-_—FRZ-ZZT-F
F+ZA=Z+—ALMEFE  AEBRAE
EUNEHEIRRERE -

REZ N (A RKXT) /R E
A
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HRAF (TERTEIHEETANRERRF
BEYREREERY) Ema o] i E £ 588
FEDNZESHEER (T -Z4 : 50
BH)MEABHA-ZE-_—_F=A=1+hI
B ERSET EEERSEHDERSIE
AEMBE  BEETERUZBEESELS
u& 5 7] 15 B B W) R KR BE 1 & 738,000
NBBBITHEH2% (ZE_FF 1 2% )R
$E"jiﬁi//|ﬁ% E‘J&&@%ﬁx‘? i?ﬁﬁﬁff%
NEBHFLATITER18.03% (=T —FTF :
16.04%) BE_ZT_—FR_ZT_FF
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MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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harges on assets BEHRH

at 31 December 2021, the following assets of the Group were RZ-ZZT-Z—F+-_A=+—H XEBNLT
edged as collaterals for banking facilities granted and other ordinary EEFIAER (EAERBITEEULLRE

business of the Group: BEEMATEEH 2 ERD
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T

Carrying amount of collaterals: EHmzREE :

Property, plant and equipment M - BB MK 108,107 114,782
Land use rights -+ b {5 A 28,830 28,523
Pledged bank deposits BT RITFR 8,191 12,511
145,128 155,816
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET

Secured liabilities and guarantee issued: A& E M E # H IR ¢

Secured bank borrowings BHRMRITEE 73,200 64,310
Bills payables EREE 6,086 12
Bank guarantees issued in favour of REBTIREMINGE P R4
external customers for undertaking RITHER
contract works 2,105 12,499
81,391 76,821
Contingent liabilities HRBE
There were no significant contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31 AEBR-—_ZT-—FE+-F=+—H I EF
December 2021 (2020: Nil). MBERXRKREE(ZE_ZFF &) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
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Employee information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 651 (2020: 632) full-time
employees, of which 17 (2020: 17) were based in Hong Kong,
and 634 (2020: 615) in Mainland China. For the year ended 31
December 2021, staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration
and amount capitalised as inventories was HK$108,986,000
(2020: HK$93,515,000). Employees and Directors were paid in
commensurate with the prevailing market standards, with other fringe
benefits such as bonus, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund,
and continuous development and training.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and most of the
Group'’s transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to the exchange
rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Fluctuation of RMB against HK$
is expected to be moderate to the Group, and the Group considers
the foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable. The Group will review
and monitor its currency exposure from time to time, and when
appropriate hedge its currency risk.

The results of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates approximating
the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. For the year ended 31 December 2021, RMB
appreciated on average relatively to the HK$ resulted in an overall
upside exchange difference on translation from RMB to HK$ for the
financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China amounted
approximately to HK$30,186,000 (2020: HK$46,765,000) that
were recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve of the Company in
the current year, and there was a downside exchange difference
of HK$982,000 arisen on disposal of a PRC subsidiary that was
recognised to the profit or loss of the Company in 2020. The
accumulated exchange differences in the translation reserve will be
reclassified to profit or loss as when the interests in the relevant
subsidiaries in Mainland China being entirely or partially disposed of
by the Group.

EEN-

EEEHR
F:;:*$+‘H:+*E Kﬁl@ﬁ
651% (ZE_TF :632%) 2HEE  H
F1I72 (ZZE-FF 178) DREBER
Mm634% (ZZE T F :615%) DRHFHNA
WER BE-_TE-_—+-_F=+—H8It
FE BIKA(BREREZEMEREALE
FTE2Z4%) 51089860008 T (ZE-F
£ : 93,515,000 7) - EEREEME )
HFAEBRMMBKE  SHEEMKEREF -
BREES BERR RFIEQES  HE
BERE -

S D O B &L b

AEBTEETHEAMKLEER  MAKE
RIS BERBBEAAREEE K

SEE AR KB T IE K B) i & X INE R
b o THER AR H B TER &@Jﬂ$ﬁlﬁﬁ
EI%LEP ﬁﬁZ’KE@WL 7¥KXE}]9|\#}H

JEL & ﬁﬁﬁéé%@ﬁ%‘%ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ
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Em LS HEBAEXR ZERRAREH
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MFIEB AR HREBRE R 2 Wi iEEH
AREBEBBTL BHE_T_-_—F+_A
=+ —HIEFE ARBEBTHEEFEHSA
ES|IBFRBEANHB AR U B HRERAAR
Mﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬁ
30,186 ooo;‘%ﬁ (ZZEZZFF : 46,765,000
%m) R S TR %ﬁ@%@%é&
ﬁ%ﬁm$ AR AN 2 BE R AR
REHEFEH—HNBARNEELEBMEEXE
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Principal risks and uncertainties FERRITHARARE

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties related to the AT AHEARNRREBKER 2 = ZE R &
Company's business: AR :

28

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has started from early
2020 that has continuously led to series of precautionary and
control measures implemented across Mainland China, and
the operations of the Group located mainly in Jiangsu Province
resumed gradually and have not been significantly impacted. As
of the date of approval of this consolidated financial statements,
the Directors consider that there is no material uncertainty as
result of COVID-19 pandemic that casts a doubt on the Group's
ability to carry on its business as a going concern in the next
twelve months.

The Group is dependent of the continuous renewal of hazardous
waste operating permission licences to be granted by the PRC
Government. The environmental business of the Group involving
in collection, storage, incineration, landfill, treatment and
final disposal of hazardous waste in Mainland China requires
operating permission licences for handling hazardous waste
and the operating permission licences for handling epidemic
medical waste issued by the Environmental Protection Bureau of
Jiangsu Province and local environmental authorities. There is a
risk that the hazardous waste operating permission licence(s) of
the Group may be suspended temporarily or withdrawn or the
renewal of which may be delayed and subject to the compliance
with the PRC Governmental directions for renovation and
reconstruction.

The Group commits to ensure the continuous renewal of all
necessary licences for its operations and to ensure all subsidiary
entities engaging in environmental operations maintain and
continuously uphold their operating standards and waste
management standards and technically renovate the facilities in
order to comply with the environmental policies, standards, and
legislations as promulgated by the PRC Government from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
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The Group faces competition in the market of hazardous
waste collection for treatment and disposal services from other
operators in the environmental hazardous waste treatment
industry.

The Group has to continuously upkeep its facilities and provide
continuous staff development, and to strengthen its waste
management standard and financial stability in order to compete
with the increasing number of competitors in treatment of
hazardous waste sector with more financial resources to develop
larger scaled waste disposal and recycling facilities, better
standards to the compliance with all national and international
environmental regulations, and better technical know-how than
we have.

Owing to the increasing number of hazardous waste disposal
companies being granted license to operate currently in the
market, and the quantity of hazardous waste produced from
upstream manufacturers has not increased relatively, it resulted
in keen competition of hazardous waste among disposal
companies. The competition has become fierce, and it has also
increased the bargaining power of the intermediary agency
in hazardous waste distribution market. Intermediary agency
fee will be determined on the quantity of hazardous waste
discharged by a cooperative hazardous waste disposal unit.
Intermediary agency fee would constitute one of the major costs
to an entity running hazardous waste disposal operations and
affect the Group’s profitability performance.

The Group will strengthen its own marketing function and the
contractual relationship with all existing clients as well as the
operative relationship with the intermediary agencies emerging
in the market in order to ensure the Group operate in a stable
manner under the transitional change.
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The Group engages in hazardous waste incineration to reduce
quantity of hazardous waste and to decompose hazardous waste
through high temperature incineration process, to landfill the
hazardous waste and post incineration residue, and handling
industrial sewage discharging by clients in an industrial zone that
faces environmental and social responsibility risks, which might
be caused by incidental breach of environmental emission limits,
incidental safety issues, contamination to land, and incidental
adverse waste discharging conditions caused by clients, and
which could have negative impact to the environmental waste
treatment operations of the Group.

The Group has sought for high quality plant construction design,
and implemented stringent controls over the construction of
new projects. The Group has to continuously upgrade the
efficiency of the existing plant and equipment and to enhance
the project management standards from time to time. The
Group has its own project management team and will appoint
independent professionals to report on environmental emissions
periodically and to monitor all possible environmental impact to
the society.

The scale of the Group’s operations has increased moderately
which, at the same time, increases the significance of internal
control risks arising from the uncertainties of effectiveness and
achievement of the objective of risk management and internal
control systems, or ineffectiveness of the internal control due
to any defective critical point subsisted in the risk management
and internal control systems or any improper internal control
measure.

The Group has continuously monitored the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group by
appointing independent professional consultants to carrying
out internal control review on all key operations of the Group
periodically. The Group has assigned designated staffs to
monitor each key operation of the Group who would strengthen
the liaison between the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong,
head office in Zhenjiang and all project companies, and from
time to time, keep informed of the status of the projects and
ensure the top management’s policies are being implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

The impact of economic conditions on local industries in
Mainland China would affect the quantities of hazardous
waste discharged and the treatment service pricing for the
specific market offered by specific client base of the Group for
environmental waste treatment and disposal services.

The Group has to continue its business strategy to strengthen
penetration of different geographical markets and thereby to
reduce its dependency on the specific markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
&8 E

Loss of key personnel and lack of appropriately experienced
human resources would result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals and development of new projects.

The Company has to review the organisational structure of the
Group and responsibilities and duties of all key staff members
regularly and to mitigate any possible loss on human capital
by regular reviews of recruitment and retention practices,
remuneration packages and succession planning within the
management team and to motivate the staff by implementation
of the share option scheme of the Company.

The Group faces significant increases in credit risk and credit
impairment which are mainly attributable to the increase in
underperforming accounts receivable from distressed clients
in the times of increased economic uncertainty and especially
the continuous impact of COVID-19. The Company faces the
challenge of input subjective forward-looking information into
the assessment of whether credit risk on the accounts receivable
has increased significantly. The Company has performed both
individual and collective assessments on the recoverability of
underperforming accounts due from clients grouped by locations
in different industrial parks in Jiangsu Province, the Mainland
China. As all clients of the Group have to comply with strict
environmental regulations to timely handle the hazardous waste
produced in their manufacturing process, they have to engage
with qualified service provider(s) to collect, manage, decompose
and finally landfill their hazardous waste produced in order to
avoid non-compliance penalties or even being ordered to shut
down. Those clients facing risks of financial stress from increased
economic uncertainty would request for concessions against
the current terms of their contracts with the Group, delayed
settlement of invoiced amounts, and even involve the local
authority in charge of the industrial parks where they located to
intervene in mediation.

The Group would incorporate impacts of increased economic
uncertainty on the risk of default into the probability of default
for individual exposures on a timely basis, incorporate qualitative
factors as there were changes in client’s payment behaviour,
assess if there were significant increases in credit risks on a
collective basis, and recognise allowance on lifetime expected
credit loss upon the deviation of contractual payment terms
by client(s). The Group would limit its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties (i.e. the clients, the
customers, the hazardous waste producers, and the market
intermediaries) and explore prudently for opportunities of
market diversification.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—F —T-TF —FT-hEF —ZT-N\F ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FAT
Revenue & 727,167 789,341 595,706 493,932 382,423
Cost of sales $H & R AN (535,502) (569,558) (393,979) (311,859) (214,778)
Gross profit el 191,665 219,783 201,727 182,073 167,645
Other revenue N 4,637 4,107 4,152 4,266 3,520
Gain on bargain purchase U %8 W2k - - - - 7,200
Other net income E A FKA 7,407 13,443 11,198 18,512 28,539
Distribution costs 3 88 A AN (23,916) (6,971) (9,554) (9,987) (4,682)
Administrative expenses  {TEF X (59,718) (56,433) (54,172) (55,624) (50,553)
Impairment loss on assets A AFIEHEEE
classified as held for sale 2 JB{EE1E - (12,636) - - -
Impairment loss on trade U AR 5% 2 R B 518
receivables, net TR EE (28,685) (9,526) (4,469) - -
Impairment loss on other E tb g Y 018 2
receivables T E 1B - - (235) - -
Other operating expenses H fth 8 & g 5 (17,826) (24,525) (53,663) (21,752) (20,622)
Operating profit BERF 73,564 127,242 94,984 117,488 131,047
Finance income B WA 4,140 402 2,517 5,152 (184)
Finance costs B & AR (6,521) (9,564) (13,909) (14,302) (9,129)
Finance costs, net BAE A - HEE (2,381) (9,162) (11,392) (9,150) (9,313)
Share of results of DI E N TE 2 ELE
associates (6,389) 10,302 6,826 2,510 11,716
Share of results of a joint Dfh—H&&EREZ
venture B (4,440) (1,835) (1,545) (820) -
Profit before taxation &% Al R 60,354 126,547 88,873 110,028 133,450
Income tax Frig %t (7,436) (24,501) (17,744) (23,602) (20,916)
Profit for the year FEBER 52,918 102,046 71,129 86,426 112,534
Profit for the year UTATEGREE
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company AR F#EA A 40,419 74,576 40,625 74,386 83,577
Non-controlling interests 3322 5 4 25 12,499 27,470 30,504 12,040 28,957
52,918 102,046 71,129 86,426 112,534
Dividend declared for the FREEEE MR
results of the year &) 11,839 21,857 21,250 20,643 19,732
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #“&EEERAE

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B _—_F-FTF _T-hF —F-NFE —_T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FH&T FH& T FHTT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and WME - BEKEE
equipment 755,547 789,633 776,848 762,574 754,897
Prepaid lease payments b {F I #E 2 J8 1+
for land use rights HEHIE - - - 132,402 139,670
Right-of-use assets ERAREEE 111,053 129,640 131,559 = =
Goodwill Bk 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates N RN F 175,835 180,175 169,137 170,802 183,520
Interest in a joint venture M—ME&EE XY
e 51,990 47,400 23,123 25,181 -
Equity investments at fair i@ H b 2 @ W5 1%
value through other NEEARZ
comprehensive income X AIEE
(non-recycling) (A &eE) 80,800 118,100 97,300 92,200 =
Equity investments at fair i 1@ H fh 2 E W25 1%
value through other NFEEAKRZ
comprehensive income ~ JRAEZRE
(recycling) GE L)) - = = = 80,000
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 10,154 = = = =
1,218,379 1,297,948 1,230,967 1,216,159 1,191,087
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 6,718 6,062 4,283 3,573 2,460
Trade and bills FBURERREER
receivables 150,022 129,438 89,021 37,726 69,175
Prepayments, deposits FERNRIE  HeRkHE
and other receivables 1t JFE YR IE 36,456 25,176 25,858 16,942 34,500
Contract assets BREE 22,591 1,534 894 1,469 =
Prepaid lease payments £ ith{s F3 & 2 B (47
for land use rights E3E - - = 3,657 3,811
Financial asset at fair FERBEZEAFEA
value through profitor  BRZ & REE
loss - - - 6,210 -
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITFR 8,191 12,511 154 = =
Cash and cash ReRkERRELIER
equivalents 302,074 257,523 267,393 282,239 237,884
526,052 432,244 387,603 351,816 347,830
Assets of a disposal group D AFEHE ZH
classified as held for sale S4#HA62EEND
and assets classified as A ELEH
held for sale BE 39,580 15,411 - = -
565,632 447,655 387,603 351,816 347,830
Total assets WEE 1,784,011 1,745,603 1,618,570 1,567,975 1,538,917
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 48 EERGE (&)
(continued)

As at 31 December
R+=—H=+—8H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—F ZEZ-TF ZE-NEFE ZZTE-NF ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET FHT
Current liabilities RE&E
. Bank borrowings RITEE 198,970 178,905 174,782 168,809 137,677
/ Other borrowing HiEE - 25,000 - 25,000 -
B Trade and bills payables BENEREZE 78,607 66,315 32,732 10,254 6,226
Accrued liabilities and EEraEREMmERS

other payables A 228,986 226,539 196,733 159,391 196,967
Deposits received from  BWEFES

customers - - - - 5,117
Lease liabilities HE&E 750 117 451 - -
Contract liabilities BRAE 38,507 25,011 25,103 14,033 -
Considerations payable — YZHE[I B A 72

for acquisition of FERTRIE

subsidiaries - - 24,800 49,600 35,200
Deferred government i RE TR 468 B

grants 2,057 1,106 1,048 949 504
Income tax payable ERATEH 6,094 6,251 4,112 3,428 6,074

553,971 529,244 459,761 431,464 387,765
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE - 10,130 65,627 85,680 45,000
Other borrowing HiEE - - 25,000 - 25,000
Lease liabilities HE&E 720 30 139 - -
Considerations payable — WHEME AT 2

for acquisition of JERRE

subsidiaries - - - - 49,600
Deferred government 3R RE TR #68 Ab

grants 13,431 5,327 6,095 6,592 3,637
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE 33,079 37,535 33,632 33,710 30,348

47,230 53,022 130,493 125,982 153,585
Total liabilities wmes 601,201 582,266 590,254 557,446 541,350
Net current assets/ REBEE(A#)

(liabilities) FE 11,661 (81,589) (72,158) (79,648) (39,935)
Net assets BEFE 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316 1,010,529 997,567
Share capital & 75 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357
Reserves {7 5 1,022,422 1,004,070 881,171 876,020 857,081
Equity attributable AREEEAEMNL

to owners of the &S

Company 1,052,779 1,034,427 911,528 906,377 887,438
Non-controlling interests  3E#2 A% ## 25 130,031 128,910 116,788 104,152 110,129
Total equity B4 5 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316 1,010,529 997,567
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DIRECTORS
XI'Yu (“Mr. X", aged 64)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. XI was appointed as executive Director and nominated as the
Chairman of the Board on 11 April 2016. He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 16 October 2018. He is the chairman
of the executive committee of the Board. Mr. Xl is the director and legal
representative of various major subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland
China.

Mr. Xl was an executive Director from 7 June 2002 to 18 August 2014,
and was the Chairman of the Board, compliance officer and authorised
representative of the Company from 9 December 2004 to 18 August
2014. He has been a consultant to the Group from 22 August 2014 to 31
March 2016.

Mr. XI graduated from the Chemistry Department of the University
of Beijing in July 1980. Mr. Xl is the father of Ms. Erica XI. Mr. Xl is a
director and shareholder personally holding 83.66% equity interests in
New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL") which in turn currently owns
beneficial interests in 36.54% of the issued shares of the Company.
Mr. Xl is also the director of New Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL") and
the director of its subsidiaries, China (HK) Chemical & Plastics Company
Limited (“China (HK) Chemical”), which is principally engaged in trading
of plastic resins, and Sun Ngai International Investment Limited (“Sun
Ngai”), which is principally engaged in property investment.

CHEUNG Siu Ling (“Ms. CHEUNG", aged 60)

Executive Director, Compliance Officer and Authorised Representative
Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as executive Director on 1 April 2005.
On 18 August 2014, Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as the authorised
representative, the compliance officer and the process agent of the
Company. She is a member of the executive committee of the Board.
Ms. CHEUNG is the director of various major subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. CHEUNG obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of South Australia in September 2005. Ms. CHEUNG is a
director and shareholder personally holding 6.07% equity interests in
NUEL. She is also the director of NUHL and the director of its subsidiaries,
China (HK) Chemical and Sun Ngai.

5=

EE(TESLE] > 645%)

FE TBEZRNTEE
REERN-_Z-RFOA+ - BEZERNT
Ex WRRERRAEFSIF BR_F-AN
FTATANBEZERARARNITHER - £
EETREEFRETHTZER@IR EELE
REEERTEAMSZRIEMNBRARNES
BOEARE °

ZEXRER T _FNALHRE_T—OF
NATNAHBEEANTES R TNF
+ZAABEZZE—MOMFNA+/\BHAA
RARREEQEE ERTEREERER -
RZE—NFENAZF+ZHEZZE—X~"F=A
=+t HHMRSAAEERERM -

EZRER—TWNZEFLAZ2ERILERKREL
BR-EZEEREZLLT 7R - Z5t 4 BNew
Universe Enterprises Limited ([NUEL|]) &= &
fEl A #5 5 H83.66% A # &9 IR 3R - MNUELE Al
RARTREEITRNDFHEB36.54%EmiEsm o
EEENMBFFERBR AT ([FFER]D &
HWBRARHPBLLIBHRERAR ([FEL
T xERFZEEZHEE) RABEKREE
BRAF([HE] FBREMERE)NEE -

R/ ([5RZ L] > 605%)

RITEE ERTIRTERE
RETR-FTRFNA—BERERNTE
E-R-B-MENATNR RETEEAE
ARRAAZEBRR  EREIERERRFX
HREA - RAEFSRBETHITEERKE -
RETRFEBSREEMNBARANES -

RETR-_ZZRFNABRNERRNEBES
TRHERERTENM - RXEMBNUELWESR R
1B A+ B H6.07 %A B HI AR © 1R IR AR #T T 12
ReEE UREMBARFTEBLCIRHELZ
T

P55 FFRRAREBARAA

35




36

L e

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

)

E= R ERE

Xl Man Shan Erica (“Ms. Erica XI”, aged 26)

Executive Director
Ms. Erica XI was appointed as executive Director and a member of the
executive committee with effect from 1 October 2020.

Ms. Erica Xl is the daughter of Mr. XI. Ms. Erica X| obtained a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June 2017
and a Graduate Diploma in Law from University of Law, United Kingdom
in July 2020.

ZHENG Zhen (“Mr. ZHENG", aged 50)

Executive Director
Mr. ZHENG was appointed as executive Director on 20 August 2021. He is
a member of the executive committee of the Board.

Mr. ZHENG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in International Finance from
the University of International Business and Economics, China in July
1995. He is the vice president of CMIG Asia Asset Management Co., Ltd.
since August 2017 and is also a non-executive director of China Medical
& HealthCare Group Limited (stock code: 383), a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), since June 2020.

Mr. ZHENG served as a director of the strategic investment department of
CMIG Capital Management Co., Ltd. from January 2016 to August 2017
and worked as the deputy head of the insurance business preparation
team of China Minsheng Investment Group Corp., Ltd. from July 2015
to December 2015. Mr. ZHENG held various positions in China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd. from March 2003 to July 2015, with his last position
being the general manager of the marketing management centre under
the trade finance business unit of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
from September 2011 to July 2015. Mr. ZHENG was also the manager
of the business department of the banking business department branch
at the head office of China CITIC Bank Co., Ltd from November 1999
to February 2003; the account manager of the international department
of Beijing Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd from
December 1998 to October 1999 and the fund management position
of the finance department of China International United Petroleum &
Chemicals Co., Ltd from August 1995 to November 1998.
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LIU Yu Jie (“Ms. LIU", aged 57)

Executive Director
Ms. LIU was appointed as executive Director on 9 June 2015. She is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Ms. LIU obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree in Foreign Trade from
the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, China in July 1987
and a Postgraduate Diploma in International Trade from the University of
International Business and Economics, China in June 1990. Ms. LIU was
the former executive director of SIIC Environment Holdings Limited (stock
code: BHK, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange)
from November 2009 to August 2014. Ms. LIU is currently an executive
director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since September
2014, an executive director of Kangda International Environmental
Company Limited (stock code: 6136, a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange) since April 2019, and an independent
non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited (stock code:
3633, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since
June 2017.

HON Wa Fai (“Mr. HON", aged 61)

Executive Director, Company Secretary, Financial Controller and
Authorised Representative

Mr. HON was appointed to the Group as financial controller on 6
September 2004. He was appointed as the qualified accountant, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 6 October
2004, and appointed as executive Director on 28 September 2006. He is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Mr. HON obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom in November 2002, a Master
of Professional Accounting degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2001, and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from the University of Western Sydney, Australia in August 1999. He was
registered as a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (formerly named as Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) in April 1994 and admitted as a Fellow in December 2002,
and he is a registered practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong since November 1996. He was admitted as an Associate of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in May 1994 and admitted
as a Fellow in May 1999. He was admitted as a Senior Associate of the
Financial Services Institute of Australasia in June 1999, and an Associate
with the designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named as the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators), United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named
as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), Hong Kong, in
September 2000.
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CHAN Yan Cheong (“Dr. CHAN", aged 68)

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr. CHAN was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 1
February 2000 and he was appointed as the chairman of audit committee
of the Board. He is a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board.

Dr. CHAN obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
in August 1977, a Master of Science degree in Materials Science
in December 1978, and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Electrical
Engineering in July 1983, all from the Imperial College of Science and
Technology, University of London, United Kingdom. He obtained a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong in
December 1989. He was admitted as a Chartered Electrical Engineer of
the Institution of Engineering & Technology (United Kingdom) in February
1988. Dr. CHAN was admitted as a Fellow of the Institute of Electrical
and Electronic Engineers, INC (USA) in January 2004 and conferred the
status of Life Fellow in 1 January 2020. Dr. CHAN joined City University of
Hong Kong in February 1991 and was awarded Chair Professorship on July
2001. On 20 January 2020, he retired from the City University of Hong
Kong as the Chair Professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering.

YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (“Mr. YUEN", aged 60)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YUEN was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 24
April 2002 and was appointed as the chairman of nomination committee
of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Board.

Mr. YUEN obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1983. He was admitted
as an Associate Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in September 1988, a Fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in October 1991, and a
chartered professional accountant member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015. Mr. YUEN is
currently providing accounting, secretarial and taxation services in Hong
Kong. He was the former independent non-executive director of Prosperity
Minerals Holdings Limited (a company whose shares had previously been
listed in the London Stock Exchange) from May 2006 to September
2014, the former independent non-executive director of Steed Oriental
(Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 8277, a company whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) from September 2013 to
August 2016, and the former independent non-executive director of
Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Ltd (stock code: 803, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) from January 2002 to May
2019.
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HO Yau Hong, Alfred (“Mr. HO", aged 64)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HO was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 30
September 2004 and was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. HO obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree from
University of Windsor, Windsor, Canada in September 1984. Mr. HO
was admitted as a Canadian Chartered Accountant in December 1988, a
Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 1997, and a Fellow of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in April 2001. Mr. HO was the former part-time
professor in accounting and auditing at Algonquin College, Ottawa,
Canada from September 1990 to April 1995. He was the former facilitator
for the Qualification Program of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in taxation from 2001 to 2015. He was the former
part-time tutor in taxation at the Open University of Hong Kong from
March 2006 to September 2007, and was the former part-time lecturer/
senior lecturer in taxation and accounting at the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University from September 2014 to May 2018. Mr. HO was the former
finance director of Sinosoft Technology PLC (a company whose shares
had previously been listed on the London Stock Exchange) from October
2007 to April 2009. Mr. HO is currently practising in Hong Kong with his
own accounting firm and as a director in corporate practice with Christian
Alliance CPA Limited.

Notes:

(a) Mr. ZHENG, Ms. LIU, Dr. CHAN, Mr. YUEN and Mr. HO shall retire from
the office as Directors by rotation and Mr. ZHENG shall be re-elected at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company, and being eligible, they offer themselves
for re-election thereat.

(b)  Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements on pages 182 to 183 of this annual report.

(c)  Save as disclosed therein, there are no other information relating to the
Directors is to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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WONG Lai Wa (“Ms. WONG"”, aged 51)

Deputy General Manager of the Company

Supervisor of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited

Supervisor of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited

Supervisor of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited*

Supervisor of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Company
Limited*

Ms. WONG was appointed as deputy general manager of the Company

in June 2007. She is currently the supervisor of various major subsidiaries

of the Group in China. Ms. WONG obtained a Diploma in Business

Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in October 2005.

She was formerly an accountant of NUHL from April 2003 to September

2008.

LIU Yuan (“Ms. LIU Yuan”
Vice President of the Company

, aged 51)

Director & General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited
Director of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering Management
Limited*
Director of Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology Limited*
Director of Xiangshui New Universe Environmental Technology Limited
General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Company
Limited*
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Director of Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Director of Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*
Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed as vice president of the Company in August
2018. She is currently the director and/or the general manager of various
major subsidiaries of the Group in China. Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed
as a finance manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited in April 2003 and then promoted to deputy general
manager in September 2005. She was appointed as director and general
manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited in January 2009. Ms. LIU Yuan graduated from Nanjing College of
Economics (now renamed as Nanjing University of Finance and Economics)
with a Professional Certificate in Accounting and Statistics in June 1998,
and she was conferred the title of intermediate accountant in China in
May 2001,
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GU Lin ("Mr. GU", aged 52)

Chief Engineer of the Company

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Company Limited*

Chief Engineer of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited*

Mr. GU was appointed as chief engineer of the Company and deputy

general manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental

Technologies Company Limited* in December 2018. Mr. GU is the

deputy general manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal

Company Limited since October 2007. Mr. GU obtained a Bachelor of

Science degree from the Jilin University, China, in chemical engineering in

1991. He was conferred the professional qualification of senior engineer

(specialised in petrochemical engineering) in China in October 2012.

HE Ling Yun (“Mr. HE", aged 50)

General Manager of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited*

Mr. HE was appointed as general manager of the Group’'s subsidiary,
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering Management Limited*
in September 2015. Mr. HE was a manager in the R&D department of
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited from
February 2012 to September 2015. Mr. HE graduated from the Sichuan
Joint University, China (now renamed as Sichuan University) in the
professional study of chemical equipment and machinery in July 1996.
He was conferred the professional qualification of associate constructor
(specialised in electrical and mechanical engineering) in February 2010
and senior engineer (specialised in petrochemical engineering) in China in
November 2016.

Mr. YANG Jun Rong (“Mr. YANG", aged 54)

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Company Limited*

Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*

Mr. YANG was appointed in September 2020 as deputy general manager

of the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies

Company Limited*. Mr. YANG is the deputy general manager of Zhenjiang

New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited since January 2009.

Mr. YANG obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Nanjing

Institute of Aeronautics (now renamed Nanjing University of Aeronautics

and Astronautics) in materials science of corrosion and protection. He was

conferred the professional qualification of senior environment engineering

project manager (specialised in waste treatment) in China in March 2015.
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Mr. DAO Lu (“Mr. DAQ", aged 56)

General Manager of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating
Development Limited

Mr. DAO was appointed as the general manager of Zhenjiang Sinotech
Eco-Electroplating Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Group,
in August 2018. Prior to being appointed as the general manager of
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-Electroplating Development Limited, Mr. DAO
has served as the deputy general manager of Jiangsu New Universe
Environmental Engineering Management Limited*, a subsidiary of the
Group, from September 2015. In July 1987, Mr. DAO graduated from
Jiangsu Radio and Television University with major in chemical engineering
and paper pulp manufacturing. In November 1996, he was conferred
the occupational qualification of an engineer in industry engineering.
In December 1996 he also completed the undergraduate courses with
professional major in foreign economics. In November 1999, he completed
the professional training with major in environmental management
organized by the Zhenjiang Environmental Protection Bureau. In July
2006, he obtained the postgraduate qualification conferred by the Jiangsu
Provincial Party School of the Communist Party of China with major in
market economy and governmental administration.

- For identification purpose only

EWRFHEZ
Notes:

(@) The emoluments of the above-mentioned members of senior

E OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERRGLE([ELE]  565%)
T ERLREERRFEL R R FRAEHTE

BEER _Z-N\FN\AEZERTEBNE
ARBETIEMERERENNERARAAEL
B ARZRERBITIEMERETENRERE
RARIBEECH  BREB T —RFNA
EASENBEARIHTHRRIREERESR
RARERBEAEEE - R—ANLFLA B
FERERNTHERERASZ(LBETRRERSIH
EREX - R-NAARF+—A REETH
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—ANANF+ A REFEHBETITRR DK
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RNELH REFHIHEZERR THISE
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(@ LR EREKE (EEHRIIN 2HSE

management, other than Directors, fell within the following bands: T4 7
2021 2020
—F_—F —E-FF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B4R (BT

Nil to HK$500,000 T L 2500,0004 7T - -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 L% 1,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 C22,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% T %2,500,0005% 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7T %3,000,000/% 7T 1 -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7C23,500,000/% 7T -
6 6
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All positions of Mr. DAI Bing Fu (“Mr. DAI") as general manager of
the Group's subsidiaries have been terminated with effect from 31
December 2020. The emoluments of Mr. DAI were within the band of
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 in 2020.

The equity-settled share-based compensations of the above-mentioned
6 members (excluding Mr. DAl whose employment has been terminated

(b)

BEEAE(HLE)) EASEZETEHK
BRARBEEBRMHIEERILE BT FF
+Z A=+t BEER BEER=-ZT=
T EH B2 E 1,500,001 7T 2,000,000
/%E%E.W °

Lol (T BERLELE  HER -T2 -F
¢+*ﬂ*+ PREIHER SRERE

with effect from 31 December 2020) of senior management, other than B(ESHIN UBRAERTEERGIE
Directors, were set out as follows: %%iﬁZ@N@%@ﬁll U
Granted on Granted on
15 January 2021 15 January 2020
R-B=-—% RIZZTZTF
—A+EART —A+HRAET
The share options (the “Options”) granted il (TEIFE& L %)
to and accepted by the above-mentioned SREECERREN
6 members (excluding Mr. DAI) of senior EBRECDEREEZEN
management B AR i 10,760,000 9,640,000

The Options granted on 15 January 2020 represent the number
of shares to be issued upon exercise in full of the Options granted
which is subject to adjustment according to the vesting conditions
specified in each particular offer letter. The Options granted on
15 January 2020 are exercisable at an exercise price of HK$0.25
per share from the date of vesting to the earlier of (i) the date
on which the Options lapse in accordance with the terms of the
share option scheme; or (ii) the 30th business day after the date
of publication of the annual results of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2022.

Options for 1,360,000 shares granted on 15 January 2020 have
lapsed upon termination of the employment of a grantee with
effect from 31 December 2020.

The outstanding Options granted on 15 January 2020 have been
fully vested to the relevant grantees after the date of publication
of the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Options granted on 15 January 2021 represent the number
of shares to be issued upon exercise in full of the Options granted
which is subject to adjustment according to the vesting conditions
specified in each particular offer letter. The Options granted on
15 January 2021 are exercisable at an exercise price of HK$0.272
per share. Subject to the Options having been vested, the Options
granted are exercisable from the date of publication of the annual
results of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2023
(the “2023 Results Date”) to the earlier of (i) the date on which
such Options lapses in accordance with the terms of the share
option scheme; or (ii) the 90th business day after the 2023 Results
Date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TtEERER

(@) The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the New  (a) %ﬁ%fﬁf%ﬁ lﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂ (I&xR7A]

Universe Environmental Group Limited (the “Company” together EHER GRIAEER]NES (fi
with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”) and E-SDR-- (Fé%AJ) T H &1 8 R R
the management are committed to upholding good corporate RIFZEERTRAEEERE - AR
governance practices and business ethics. The Company believes AIEGE #FESRENEEBELRY
that maintenance of high standard of business ethics and good MECEERYARERE BREKBER

‘ corporate governance is essential for effective management, healthy LEERZAENNARXIEBYLE - i
business growth and fostering a contemporary corporate culture, BEPAEEFTERENRE AR QAR
which drives the Group to growing sustainably and safeguarding the R[] Flzs

interests of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has (b) HE-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE "

applied the principles of and complied with the code provisions of ARAREEABRMESR EMAL (L
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 TR A M8+ mE M ArE A E
("CG Code") to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the ERTARMEEARE ([DEESAT
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), but save for the code provision BN RE REBFABESTREX  ER
C.2.1, the Directors confirmed that they were not aware of any SFRMESCEC21ENN  EFEHMREZL
other deviation from the CG Code for the year then ended. THEBHEZ2ZBAEFETMEMRRED

XERTAER

() Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles  (¢) 2 ATRIMSTANESTEC 2. 1EHTE -

of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and TEERTHREBHE 2 ACREEMED I
should not be performed by the same individual. With effect from TER-—ARKERE - EEEE (XL
16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu (“Mr. XI”, chairman of the Board ] BFeEF(EE]) ABRIAA
("Chairman™)) has assumed the role of both Chairman and chief AEFERITHRER ([THRER]) 8=
executive officer of the Company (“CEQ"). As such, starting from T-NEFE+A+AABRER-BAI B
16 October 2018, the assumption of the dual role of both Chairman —E-)N\Ft+At+ANEHE EZLXLERF
and CEO by Mr. XI constitutes a deviation from code provision C.2.1 RTIERRITHAHERRBHRCEE R
of the CG Code. SFRIEYSF RIS EC.2. 115 ©
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XI Yu (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling (Compliance Officer)

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (ote

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai (Financial Controller and Company Secretary)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Note:

Ms. ZHANG Shuo was not re-elected at the annual general meeting of
the Company and retired as executive director at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 18 June 2021.

Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as an executive director of the Company
effective from 20 August 2021 to fill the vacancy.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operations of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established four Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) (collectively referred to as the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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(c) Composition of the Board Committees () EEZEIHAEK
The Company established four Board Committees. The table below ARalRBENBEELZEg - TXRIZH
provides membership information of these committees on which HE-_T-Z—F+-RA=+—HLHFE
each Board member served for the year ended 31 December 2021 as ZEEEXEFMREHOLEZTEESN S
follows: BEMET :
Audit Nomination Remuneration Executive
Committee Committee Committee Committee

ERZEE REZEE FMHZEE HTZEE

Mr. XI Yu EZEx%hAE C
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RN+ M
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica Z Y+ M
Ms. ZHENG Shuo Mot SR AE 2z + Wit M
Mr. ZHENG Zhen (ot BB o A (i) M
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BERLL M
Mr. HON Wa Fai RENB LA M
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong PRAE BT C M M
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael [t &4 5 4 M @ M
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred G EE e 4 M M c

Notes: it -

C: Chairman of the relevant Board committee C:FHEEZESNER

M: Member of the relevant Board committee M: EHEZEZEMNKE

Ms. ZHANG Shuo retired as member of the Executive Committee on REZTR 2T —F<A+NHE

18 June 2021, and Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as member of EHITEEGKRE MBBLEREHE

the Executive Committee with effective from 20 August 2021. RUWITEEGKE BZTE_—F/\A

T BEBER-
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PEERRE

Directors’ attendance to board meetings and d) EEREZTeesLkBREAS
shareholders’ meeting(s) B EIER

The following table shows the attendance record of each Board TREBERNESEZTERERARAHE
member for the board meetings and Shareholders’ meetings of the T - —F+_A=+—HIUEFERELT
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2021: ZEEeEZNREAREG 2 HELEk

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBIT2EBRE
Directors’
meeting
Regular Non-regular pursuant to Annual
Board Board CG Code general
meeting meeting C.2.7 meeting
BB
ERTA
EC.2.71%
EHESS FEEH B2 REBF
Board member EEE|RE BE EZggE EZgg3 g
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI'Yu EZREAE 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RANER L 4/4 3/3 - 1/1
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica EXiz =+ 4/4 3/3 - 1/1
Mr. ZHENG Zhen (Note 2 B ey 11 11 - 0/0
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIENL L 4/4 3/3 - 0/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai PRI A 4/4 3/3 - 171
Ms. ZHANG Shuo (Mote V) R+ WL 0/2 0/1 - 0/1
Independent non-executive
director BAUFHTES
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong BRREE L 4/4 3/3 11 11
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael e & 4T 50 A4 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred CEES e a/4 3/3 11 11
Notes: Biat -
1. Ms. ZHANG Shuo retired as executive director at the conclusion of 1. REZTR-_ZE-_—F A+ N\BE
the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2021. TZBRRBFARAEERFRENTE
Ho
2. Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as an executive director of the 2. BEEEREZERRRRIMTESMN
Company effective from 20 August 2021 to fill the vacancy. BHHZTE®R BT -_—F\A=-+H
RBAERL o
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(e) Directors’ attendance to the meetings of Board (¢) EEREEZEeLENLERE
Committees B
(i)  Meetings of Audit Committee () BERZEEEH
The following was an attendance record of the Audit WTAEE8EEZ2-_FE=-_—F+=A
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December S+ —HBLEFERTHERZLZES
2021: EREMN N FERCE
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZE8KE HE BT ERRE
, § Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (chairman of committee)fE 2 E&+ (Z5 =2+ /&) 4/4
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Br&ler s 4 4/4
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred {EHEJ?Z%E 4/4
(i) Meetings of Nomination Committee (i) IEZESEH
The following was an attendance record of the Nomination LUTAEBz2-_ZZ=-—%+=-A8
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December ST+ —HBLEFERTIHNIERELZES
2021: FENL R
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZEENE HE " BITZEBERE
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael bt s (ZEEEEE)
(chairman of committee) 2/2
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RREE L 2/2
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred AR A& 2/2
(i) Meetings of Remuneration Committee (i) #FHWZEESSHE
The following was an attendance record of the Remuneration UTABEZE=-_Z=-_—%F+=A
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December =+ BLFERTHNTHEESD
2021: GEN LD
Number of meetings
Committee member attended/held
ZEERNE HEBITZEERE
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred R EE (ZEESFE)
(chairman of committee) 4/4
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RREEL 4/4
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael BT & 4T S A 4/4
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(iv)  Meetings of Executive Committee (iv) RTZEZZH
The following was an attendance record of the Executive WTAE#8z_22-_—%+=_A4
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December ST -RALFERTHRITEZEES
2021: BEN L F RO

Number of meetings

Committee member attended/held
ZEE8NE HiE BT ZERRE
Mr. XI Yu (chairman of committee) ER%kE (ZEEE8FE) 3/3
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling wANB L 3/3
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica XX+ 1/3
Mr. ZHENG Zhen (nete2) BB 2k H (Wi2) 0/1
Ms. LIU Yu Jie E By 0/3
Mr. HON Wa Fai EER L 3/3
Ms. ZHANG Shuo e 7 SRAR & £ (9 0/1

Notes: B -

1. Ms. ZHANG Shuo retired as executive director at the 1. RBZTRZZTEZ—FXA
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 18 June TNBEREITZREBFEASLE
2021. REFRERITES -

2. Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as an executive director 2. BERAEEBZERAR ﬂ%}lﬁ
of the Company effective from 20 August 2021 to fill the EEPEETEHR BT - —
vacancy. FNAZTHBER-
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(f)

XE AR SE

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of
Board and management

Every Director on Board knows his/her responsibilities as a Director
and its conduct, business activities and development. Independent
non-executive Directors have the same duties of care and skill and
fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to shareholders of the Company, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company and the Group are managed
and operated. In the appropriate circumstances and as and when
necessary, Directors will seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, ensuring the board procedures, all applicable
rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the
Group and gives clear directions as to the power delegated to
the management of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
management and administration functions of the Group, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where management
of the Company and its subsidiaries should report back in a timely
manner to the Board and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group or in the name of any member of the Group.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Matters requiring the Board’s approval include, among others,
(i) review of overall policies and objectives for corporate capital
contributions, (ii) corporate budgets, (iii) corporate plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and any significant changes thereto,
(iv) investment plans involving significant commitments of financial,
technological and human resources, or involving significant risks
for the Company, (v) major sales, transfers, or other dispositions
of properties or assets of the Group, (vi) significant changes in the
Board’s policies, (vii) major organisational changes, (viii) financial
statements of the Group, including annual report, semi-annual
and quarterly financial reports and monthly operating results, (ix)
borrowing and financial arrangement, and (x) other matters relating
to the Group’s business which in the judgement of the Chairman
and/or the CEO of the Company are of such significance to merit
the Board’s consideration, and adoption of such policies or such
actions taken as the Board considers to be in the best interests of the
Company.
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In order to ensure that the Board can obtain effective, diversified
and independent views and opinions, the Company has established
an evaluation and review mechanism to enhance the accountability
of Directors and provide valuable feedback information that can
help improve the effectiveness of the Board, give full play to its
advantages, and point out areas for further development.

The operation of such mechanism is summarised as follows:

(@) the Board may conduct internal evaluations (led by
independent non-executive directors) and solicit opinions from
Directors on the performance of the Board in the form of
guestionnaires and/or interviews;

(b) the Board may also invite senior executives and key
stakeholders to provide useful opinions. Appropriate
improvements can be made in each assessment, focusing on
the progress in solving the main issues raised in the previous
assessment. The evaluation report will be submitted to the
Board to discuss the results and action plans for improvement;

(c)  after the Board's evaluation, the Company will disclose the
results of the Board's evaluation in the corporate governance
report to achieve accountability and transparency. In addition
to disclosing the results of the Board" evaluation, the Company
will also set out (i) the purpose and scope of the Board’s
evaluation; (ii) the method of evaluation; (iii) the criteria used
for the evaluation; and (iv) the action plan to be taken (such as
Directors’ training); and

(d) the Board may also hire independent professional companies
or persons to evaluate the Board, as an auxiliary method in
addition to the evaluation of the Board by internal leaders.
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All executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
bring in a variety of experience and expertise to the Company with
their respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions
set out as follows:

Function of Executive Directors

RATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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B -REMEEEINDT :

il

()  BITEFaBEE

=

Name Position Current Function
#E B RRHEA
Mr. XI Yu Chairman, CEO and - Leading the Board
executive Director - Developing vision and strategies of the Group
- Developing long term mission of the Group
- Ensuring good corporate governance functions and practices
- Formulating strategic planning and direction
- Developing corporate goals, targets and objectives of the Group
- Investors relations
EREH TR TR R - fNEzg
HEE - HEIARENERRER

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

st
=
e
H_

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

EXMxL

Mr. ZHENG Zhen

gRiE

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

EARL

Mr. HON Wa Fai

BERTL

Executive Director and
compliance officer

YMEERERIA

Executive Director

HiTgs

Executive Director

yhEs

Executive Director

yhES

Executive Director, financial
controller, and company

secretary

WTES  HHEER

nENE

- HAREENREBRS

- BRRECFERBELER

- BERESALAE

- HEIARELEER  BHRRE
- RAEME

- Implementing corporate governance practices

- Implementing procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
- Administration of head office

- Human resources management of the Group

- Overseeing daily operations of the Group through delegations

- BIREEREAR

- BTRFDBRAGERER  RERAD

- BRERNHER

- KEEMANERER

- BBZRERASEARZE

- Implementing corporate governance practices

- Implementing procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
- BOREERER

- WTRRFABRESEAEE  RERAN

- Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

- Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
- BARTETHEEARARRARMER

- BARENHERRENERHESR

- Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

- Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
- BRRTETHEERRAARARMER

- HRRENGERRAKERHAER

Overseeing financial reporting, accounting, treasury, financial control, and compliance
functions of the Company

- Formulating merger and acquisition exercises

- Investors relations

- ERANAMBHRE e BN VEEERAADY

- REEED

- REEBE
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(i) Function of Independent non-executive Directors (i) B IEHTTEF B
Name Independence Current Function "
®E Byt BB YRR Re G |
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong v - Relationship with academic and industrial expertise
- Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group
- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy,
performances, accountancy, key appointments, standards of conduct and
environmental protection
- Scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals and
objectives
- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees
RREEL v - HEEMARIERERBR
- ERAEENEREIERAIEERE
- BARKE - BEK - RE - g3 FERE TARIRERERELE
H T
- EERRAERLAFRBEERRENRE
- EBNE%Z FLREZEES
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, 4 - Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters
Michael - Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group
- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances,
accountancy, taxation, key appointments and standards of conduct
- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees
- Scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals and
objectives
- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial
experience
Be 4T 55 v - BE% BE SHRAMIBEEREER
- ERAEEMNEREIRRNSEEE
- BBOR - ®E - g BE - TERARTAEREEELE L HE
- EBRER FHEkRREZES
- BEARABHARBERRENRE
- BEEEEHERRMBER
Mr. HO Yau Hong, 4 - Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters
Alfred - Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group
- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances,
accountancy, taxation, key appointments and standards of conduct
- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees
- Scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals and
objectives
- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial
experience
RS v - HERK BE AaRLKMBFEREHER

- BERAKEMREREERARERNE

- BB RB - g% WE - IRZERTAEEEEL B A
- [ERREZ FMRRERZES

- BEARAERRAARBBRRREHNRR

- BAEBXREMERLMBRER
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Board meetings and procedures

The Board conducts regular board meetings at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular board meetings
of the Company shall involve active participation and presence of
a majority of Directors entitled to be present, in person or through
interactive electronic meeting or hybrid meeting. Ad-hoc Board
meetings are convened when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required which include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions or through interactive electronic
meeting or hybrid meeting. Board meetings are structured to
allow open discussion. All Directors have participated in discussing
the strategy, operational and financial performance, and risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The Chairman of the Board is primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. He takes into
account, where appropriate to ensure, any matter proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Chairman delegates this responsibility to the company
secretary of the Company appointed under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules (the “Company Secretary”).

Notice of at least 14 days has been given for all regular Board
meetings of the Company. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notices have been given.

The Company Secretary shall be the secretary to all Board meetings
who is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees. Minutes of all meetings are open for
inspection at reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees
have recorded in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of the Board
minutes have been sent to all Directors for their comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after the board
meeting is held.

Any Director may request the Board in writing to seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
expense of the Company. The Board shall resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interests
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter shall be dealt with by a
Board meeting with all Directors be present in person rather than a
written resolution. The independent non-executive Directors, who
and whose associates have no material interest in the transaction
shall be present at the Board meeting to deal with the matter. Other
than the exceptional situation under the Listing Rules, any Director
who or whose associates have any material interest in any proposed
Board resolutions shall not be counted as a quorum in the relevant
Board meeting or shall be abstained from voting for the Board
resolutions. All Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.

Supply of and access to information

For regular board meetings, and as far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent, in
full, to all Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the
intended date of a Board or Board committee meeting, and for other
ad hoc or urgency meetings at other agreed period.

The senior management of the Group is obliged to supply the Board
and its committees of the Company with appropriate and adequate
information through financial reports, business and operational
reports and budget statements in a timely manner to keep the Board
members informed of the latest development of the Group. The
Board members have the right to access to the Group's information,
board papers and related materials from either the Chairman or the
Company Secretary. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the senior management, he/she makes further
enquiries where necessary and shall separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company.

Independence of independent non-executive
Directors

The Listing Rules stipulates that every listed issuer to have at least
three independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must have the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. For the year ended 31 December
2021, two of the independent non-executive Directors have the
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the Directors.
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Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has given an
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the
Company considers them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Based on the annual written confirmation given by each of Dr.
CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred to meet the criteria set out in the independence
guideline in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
undertaking in writing given by each of them as to their continuing
independence, the Board believes that each of Dr. CHAN Yan
Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred is independent.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of
the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a wide range
of criteria when deciding on appointments to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. The Board considers gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service to be relevant
to the Company’s business. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong is a chartered
electrical engineer. Both Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred are certified public accountants in Hong Kong.
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred is also a fellow of the Taxation Institution
of Hong Kong. Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim
Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred brings to the Board
via their professional qualifications, experience and expertise in
financial matters, management vision and other technical skill set.
The professional qualification, skills, knowledge, experience as well
as length of service of each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN
Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred provides the Board
with a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that enable the
Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively, support
good decision making in view of the core businesses and strategy of
the Group, and support succession planning and development of the
Board.

Relationship between Board members

Each of Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, being executive
Directors, is also a director and shareholder of the Company’s
substantial shareholder, New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL"),
which holds approximately 36.54% (2020: 36.54%) of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of Sun Ngai
International Investment Limited (“Sun Ngai”), which is the landlord
of the office premises leased by the Group as head office in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of China (HK)
Chemical and Plastics Company Limited (“China (HK) Chemical”)
which is principally engaged in trading of plastic resins in Hong Kong
and China.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of New
Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL"). NUHL is an investment holding
company that interested in 97% of the issued share capital of China
(HK) Chemical and 100% of the issued share capital of Sun Ngai.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica is the daughter of Mr. XI Yu.

To the best knowledge of the Company, save as disclosed herein,
there is no other financial, business and family relationship among
members of the Board and/or between the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company. All of the Board members are free to exercise their
independent judgment.

Continuous professional development of Directors

Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in
pursuit of the development of the Group. Every newly appointed
Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of
his or her duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
statutory and regulatory rules and requirements.

The Chairman encourages all Directors and senior executives to
enroll professional development courses and seminars relating to
the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/Companies Law and Act,
corporate governance practices and other laws and regulations
organised by professional bodies or in-house trainings provided
by the Company so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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Corporate governance/
updates on laws,
rules and regulations

Accounting/finance/
management or other
professional knowledge

EER EE - RARK a5t B EER
RO E S HiEEME
Attend Attend
Reading seminar or Reading seminar or
materials briefing materials briefing
S MmEE SMmEE
Board member EEgRE BAE M R EATE:] R E A R EAE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI Yu ZEREE v v v -
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling E =2 v v/ v v
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica EZz+ v v v -
Mr. ZHENG Zhen HEEE v v v -
Ms. LIU Yu Jie ZIENK L v v v -
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEIEENF A v v v v
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
Director
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong fRAEH LT v v/ v v
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael o &l 4T S 4 v v v v
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred AR E 4 v 4 v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(a)

The identity of the Chairman and chief executive

Mr. XI Yu was appointed as the Chairman of the Board since 11
April 2016 and he was appointed as the CEO of the Company since
16 October 2018.

Deviation from the code provision C.2.1

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
should be carried out by different individuals which have been
clearly defined.

Since 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu has performed both of the roles as
the Chairman and the CEO of the Company. This deviates from code
provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part
2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which requires that the roles
of Chairman and the CEO of the Company should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

After evaluation of the current situation of the Group and taking
into account of the experience and past performance of Mr. Xl Yu,
the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best
interest of the Company at the present stage to vest the roles of the
Chairman and the CEO of the Company on the same person as it
helps to facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and maximises the effectiveness of its operation.
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In addition, the Board also considers that: (i) the Company has
sufficient internal controls to provide checks and balances on the
functions of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company; (ii) Mr. XI
as the Chairman and CEO is fully accountable to the shareholders
of the Company and contributes to the Board and the Group on
all top level and strategic decisions and is responsible for ensuring
that all Directors act in the best interests of the Shareholders; and
(iii) this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting of the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company on the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and will enable the Company
to make and implement decisions in a timely and efficient manner.
However, the Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the role of chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Company at a time when it is appropriate.

Mr. Xl Yu, as the Chairman of the Company, provides leadership
and strategic direction for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that
all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established. He
encourages all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the
Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman encourages any Director
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Chairman has held a
meeting once with the independent non-executive Directors without
presence of all executive Directors to discuss on risk management
and corporate governance functions of the Company.

The Chairman ensures appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the shareholders of the Company
that their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. The
Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between executive and
non-executive Directors.
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Mr. XI Yu, as the CEO of the Company, is responsible for strategic
planning and implementation, sourcing, meeting with potential
business partners, exploring for business opportunities for the
Group, client development, recruiting senior management, staff
development, collaboration across the affiliated company network,
enhancing best practices, and timely reporting to the Board
regarding the Group’s overall progress.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(a)

The terms of appointment of independent
non-executive Directors

Each of the two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. YUEN
Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, has signed a
renewed letter of appointment with the Company for a tenure of
two years commenced on 1 February 2021. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
has signed the renewed letter of appointment for a tenure of two
years commencing on 1 April 2021.

The letter of appointment signed by each of the independent
non-executive Directors with the Company is subject to the
termination by either party giving not less than three months prior
written notice and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Company’s constitutional documents.

Further appointment of independent non-executive
Directors

Code provision B.2.3 requires that serving more than 9 years could
be relevant to the determination of a non-executive director’s
independence. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung,
Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred have been independent
non-executive Directors since 1 February 2000, 24 April 2002, and
30 September 2004 respectively. Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong,
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred has
served as the Company’s independent non-executive Director for
more than 9 years, further appointment for each of them shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
papers to shareholders accompanying that resolution would include
the reasons why the Board believes each of them is still independent
and should be re-elected.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EFELZETE

(a) The Executive Committee (a)
(i) The Role and function () AERBE

The Company has established Executive Committee
with written terms of reference, pursuant to which the
Board delegates its powers and authorities to the Board
Committee(s) and management to manage the business of the
Group, and to make investment and business decisions for the
Group within its authority and to take all actions to give effect
to such decisions.

The composition
The Executive Committee comprises of all executive Directors:

Mr. XI Yu (chairman of the committee)

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (appointed on 20 August 2021)

Ms. LIU Yu lJie
Mr. HON Wa Fai

Summary of works during the year

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2021, the principal
works performed by the Executive Committee
were mainly for the consideration and approval of
authorised transactions within the terms of reference
of the committee, and the execution of resolutions
and directions of the Board. All decisions made by
the Executive Committee during the year have been
reviewed, confirmed and adopted by the Board.

(2)  Provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

(3) Reported to the Board at the next scheduled regular
meeting of the Board in which discussion would be
carried out for any decision or commitment (made
within its authority for ordinary course of business of
the Group) approved by the Executive Committee and
entered into on behalf of the Group.

(4)  Ensured all the relevant management personnel of the
Group and the Company Secretary would be provided
with all deeds, documents or contracts entered into on
behalf of the Group pursuant to the approval of the
Executive Committee (within its authority) for record
keeping.
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The Nomination Committee

(i)

The Role and function

The Company has established Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference adopted in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors under the
Nomination Policy adopted which provides the key selection
criteria and principles of the Nomination Committee in making
any such recommendations.

(1)

Selection Criteria:

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall consider a variety of
factors including without limitation to the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Relevant skills and experience in the environmental
protection industry and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
the appointment of an independent non-executive
Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board shall be made in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and other applicable
rules and regulations.
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Nomination Procedures:

o The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate
candidates for its consideration.

. In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval.

o In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation,
for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall refer to the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose candidates
for election as Directors” of the Company in relation
to the nomination of any shareholder of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and monitor
the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board on an annual basis and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy periodically in line with the Company’s strategy
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for
approval.
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(i)

(iii)

(8) Review of the Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy on an annual basis.

The composition
The Nomination Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (chairman of the committee)
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Summary of works during the year
(1) Reviewed the composition of the Board;

(2)  Reviewed and advised on the re-election of the existing
Directors and the appointment of a new executive
Director to the Board in accordance with the Nomination
Policy of the Company;

(3) Discussed, reviewed and made recommendations

pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy of the Company;

and

(4) Assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors proposed for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

(c) The Remuneration Committee

(i)

The Role and function

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
E.1 of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the determination of policy
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as follows:

(1) approval of the remuneration and compensation of the
Directors and key senior management of the Group and
assessment of their performance;

(2) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
implementation of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration;
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(3) having the delegated responsibility to determine the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management;

(4) ensuring no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration;

(5) advising Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of directors that requires
shareholders’ approval;

(6) making such alterations, additions or vesting
determination in relation to option scheme rules, as do
not require Shareholders’ consent, as the remuneration
committee considers necessary or desirable subject to
the limits set out in such rules; and

(7)  consideration and resolving upon all grants of options
under the Company’s share option schemes.

The composition
The Remuneration Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred (chairman of the committee)
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Summary of works during the year
(1) Approved and made recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of newly appointed executive Director;

(2) Reviewed and approved the remunerations of the
Directors and key senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the 6 months ended 30 June
2021, and for the year ended 31 December 2021;

(3) Approved and assessed on the compensation to
all Board members in commensurate with their
responsibility and performance; and

(4) Consideration and determination of vesting rights to
be conferred to the grantees in relation to the options
granted under the Company’s share option scheme.
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The Audit Committee

0] The Role and function

(1)

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference adopted in alignment with
the Rule 3.21 of Listing Rules and the code provision D.3
of CG Code.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication among other Directors, the external
auditor, and the management in relation to functions
of financial and other reporting, statutory audits, risk
management and internal control systems; and to assist
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
an independent review of financial reporting, by
satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and as to the
efficiency of independent audits of the Company.

The Audit Committee has a monitoring function to
work with the executive Board members and to ensure
the whole Board is able to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company's operations and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s
corporate governance objectives and to discharge
the duties of the Board in performing its corporate
governance functions under the CG Code include:

. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance policies applicable to
employees and Directors of the Company;
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° to monitor and mitigate any adverse impact arisen
from any deviation from the CG Code to the
Company s policies and practices on corporate
governance; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The Audit Committee takes the advisory role to ensure
the Board to continuously review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company complies with the Disclosure Policy:

The Company adopted a written Disclosure Policy
with aims to provide a general guide to the Directors,
officers”, senior management and relevant employees*
of the Company in the handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure
pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations
whereas:

# "Officer” as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") includes a director, manager
or secretary of, any person involved in the
management of the Company.

* “Relevant employees” includes employees of
the Company and directors/employees of the
Company'’s subsidiary or holding company who,
because of their office or employment, are likely
to possess Inside Information (as referred to in Part
XIVA of the SFO).

The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company to purchase adequate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors
pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code.
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(i) The composition
The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (chairman of the committee)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

(iii) ~ Summary of works during the year

(1)

(2)

Reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020;

Reviewed the Dividend Policy adopted by the Company
pursuant to code provision F.1.1 before the Board
recommending the payment of dividends;

Discussed and reviewed with the independent auditor,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited on the interim results of
the Company for the 6 months ended 30 June 2021,
of which Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has carried out
independent review;

Discussed and reviewed with the Board on the quarterly
unaudited results for 3 months ended 31 March and 9
months ended 30 September 2021 respectively;

Reviewed semi-annually on the independent valuation
reports prepared by the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Company in relation to the fair
value of the equity investments, impairment testing
on the goodwill arisen on the business combination of
environmental waste treatment operation acquired in
2007, and the fair value of the 30% equity investment in
of an associate acquired through a business combination
in 2017,

Discussed and reviewed with the independent
professional advisers, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, engaged by the Company on the continuous
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

Reviewed the renewal of the directors and officers
liability insurance cover with appropriate indemnity
limits in respect of legal action against the Directors; and

Discussed with the independent auditor the nature
and scope of the audit, reporting obligations, and the
potential impact to audit works in relation to the annual
audit for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

(@) The Company has its current Company Secretary appointed since
6 October 2004. The Company Secretary, Mr. HON Wa Fai is an
executive Director and employed as the financial controller of
the Company, who is a member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and a certified public accountant (as defined
in the Professional Accountants Ordinance, Cap. 50, Laws of Hong
Kong).

(b)  Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. HON Wa Fai has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(@) The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

(b)  With specific enquiries having been made of all the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management, such that the remuneration packages
offered by the Company can be competitive, adequate (but not excessive)
and in line with current market practice to attract, retain, motivate and
reward the Directors and senior management, thereby having sufficient,
experienced and competent manpower to achieve the Company’s
corporate goals and objectives. With the policy, the Company endeavours
to attain internal and external equity and long-term value creation for the
Shareholders. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been developed and
adopted by the Board based on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee which is set out as follows:

(@) Applicability

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy is applicable to all executive
directors and non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company.
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(b)

(©)

Remuneration structure

The remuneration package comprises mainly fixed component and
variable component will be considered to ensuring an appropriate
and balanced package that links shareholders’ interests with those
of the directors.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Fixed component

Basic salary and/or director’s fee (as the case may be) is
determined on the basis of factors, including the expectation
of the respective director, job nature of the position,
(including responsibilities and time commitment), the
remuneration package offered by comparable companies and
employment conditions under the existing group structure.

Variable components, if applicable

o Performance-based remuneration includes a
performance bonus which is awarded on a discretionary
basis to motivate and reward high performers decided
by reference to both the Group’s and individual
performance; and

o Incentive scheme that includes share options as an
incentive to motivate, recognise, reward and retain key
and high performers.

Other benefits for Executive Directors, if applicable
o The contributions made under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme; and

. Fringe benefits include medical insurance, business
travel insurance.

Non-Executive Directors (Including Independent Non-Executive

Directors)

o Non-executive directors receive a fixed director’s fee.
Their remuneration is reviewed annually, with reference
to companies of comparable business and scale, by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board;
and

o Any non-executive directors are eligible to be granted
the share options determined by the Company to reward
for their contributions and continuing efforts.

Benchmarking

The Company endeavours to obtain up-to-date information of the
prevailing market remuneration environment. The remuneration
packages of comparable companies will be used as a benchmark
to ensure that the remuneration packages offered to the Directors
remain appropriate and competitive.
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Annual remuneration review

(i) The Company will conduct a review of its remuneration
structure annually. Using benchmark information prepared
by senior management, the Remuneration Committee
will consider and make informed decisions or make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual directors.

(i) In all cases, no director or any of his/her associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Company, through the Remuneration Committee, will review
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at least annually and, if
necessary, from time to time, as appropriate, to ensure that it is
in line with the current market practices and requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Any amendment to the policy should be submitted to the
Board for approval.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

(a)

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the auditor

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the remuneration
paid/payable to the independent auditor of the Company in respect
of their audit and non-audit services was as follows:

(d)

s

x B

FEHFHRE
() AAAGTFRTEFHESE - H

MEEBEBHBESSRINELE

8 EEAMERNEFHOHMT
RIFLHMBAERMESSREZ

E=3
A% °

(iy FEEAMBERT @ EFHE T ABE
AERELTHRAU B TESER
EEAFHHH -

WA EEHMBR
ARFBEBFHEEREL BFRE
EENHFIEE  ETRETBEHRER
TEHRE  ABRREAFARTDHES
R AR R 8 I £ R T
BIRE - HEBREM A ERBLARR
EEGHE -

% B 2 B &

(a)

% BB BT 1R | A% N FE ' X AR
%2 e oM
HE_T-_—FRK=_Z=_ZTF+=A
—t+—BLEEE BN/ BB ZHE
MEMKRSEZERZRIEEZRE ZHE
U

2021 2020

—B-—F et 33

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHExT

Audit services EZRE 1,350 1,230
Non-audit review services FEEZ  ERRTS 180 170

2558 FFRAEEBRAA

71



b

72

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

fa

ES

Yarax N =+
E?/ﬁ i %?

(b) Accountability and audit

(1

2)

3)

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as Crowe Horwath
(HK) CPA Limited) acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

It is the responsibility of the external auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements of the Company and to report their opinion solely
to the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The
independent auditor does not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
the independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing
the accounts and presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment for the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the performance, position and
prospects of the Company and the Group in sufficient detail
to enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company deviates from the Recommended Best Practices
under code provision D.1.6 of the CG Code not to announce
and publish quarterly financial results within 45 days after the
end of the relevant quarter, because the Board considers the
current half-yearly financial reporting mode would be more
appropriate and relevant to reflect the results performance of
the business model and existing operations of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, based on the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
being conducted, the Board considered the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of review covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification/experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training and budget.

It is the responsibility of the Board for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board undertakes for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Since January 2019, the Company has
established a project management team in Mainland China
headed by experienced staff of the Group to closely monitoring
the environmental compliance and daily operations of the key
operations of the Group in Mainland China, and report periodically
to the Board. The Board oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management would provide
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The senior management of the Group, including but not limited to,
the Directors and executive officers of the Company, the directors
of the subsidiaries, and the general managers and deputy general
managers of the Company and of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and risks to
be exposed, and only to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the Group's business
objectives.
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(e) The Group adopts a risk management system to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks associated with its business and
operations comprised of the following phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

3 Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

(f)  The Company adopts an internal control system with a framework
enabling the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations comprised of the
following components:

. Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain

whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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The Company adopts and implements an inside information policy
and procedures in order to enhance the Group's system of handling
inside information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosure. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

The Company has not established its own internal audit function
pursuant to the code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, though
the Board has reviewed the need for one on an annual basis.
The Directors consider that it would be more appropriate to set
up a multifunctional project management team delegated with
responsibilities of internal audit on environmental governance,
cash management and financial reporting functions for the existing
operations of the Group.

In order to ensure the existing risk management and internal
control systems work effectively, the Company has engaged with
independent professional party to review on the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code, and review on the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. For the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Company has continued
to engage with SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, adopting the
internal control model set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the U.S. Treadway Commission for internal
controls, to carry out independent review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the key operations of the Group and
the corporate governance functions of the Company on revolving
basis. Based on the independent review reports, the Board has
impartial reference on the assessment, the implementation and the
continuous improvement toward more effective risk management
function and internal control system for the key operations of the
Company.
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The Company has established a project controlling team
nominated by the Board comprising the deputy general manager
and vice-presidents of the Company, the project assistants,
and the supervisors nominated by the Company to take up
the responsibilities of monitoring the day-to-day operational
management, risk management function, and internal control
systems of all operating units of Group, especially for the
subsidiaries in the Mainland China, integrating with the systems
of monthly and annual planning and budgeting process,
counter-approval and implementation and control process,
identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to
achieve the objectives and goals set. The project controlling team
meets regularly with the executive Directors and report on matters
to be updated to the Board timely.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of and the Listing Rules and
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe
Harbours as provided in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong). Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a written board diversity policy and has made
necessary revision according to the CG Code with aims to endorse the
principle that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

(@)  Pursuant to the policy, the Board will consider gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and the legitimate interests of
the Company’s principal Shareholders.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee has kept reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and made recommendations
to the Board on appointment of new Director and change of board
member, and re-election of Directors having regard to the merit of
candidates in accordance with the board diversity policy.

(¢) In reviewing Board composition, the Nomination Committee
considered that the diversity of the existing Board members is
able to maintain an appropriate balance of age and professional
experience and diversity of cultural and educational background on
the Board.

(d) The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2021 has been
reviewed by the Nomination Committee. The Board is currently
composed of 3 females and 6 males (2020: 4 females and 5 males)
having an average age of 56.7 (2020: 54.0), 6 out of 9 members
possess post-graduate academic background, 4 out of 9 members
possess professional qualification(s) recognised in different
countries. The composition is considered able to meet the objective
of the Board Diversity Policy to enable the effective management of
the Board on the key operations of Group currently mainly located in
Mainland China.
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The Board considers that it has achieved gender diversity with the
composition of the Board currently composed of 3 females and 6 males. In
order to maintain the gender diversity of the Board and in order to ensure
compliance with the gender diversity requirements under the Listing Rules,
the Board will seek to maintain its gender diversity and ensure that the
composition of the Board will be not entirely composed of a single gender.
The Board will monitor its gender composition and diversity on an ongoing
basis and identify potential successors of the appropriate gender should
the need arise.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including senior management)
for the three years ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

EEERRCERTENZTE EFEGEA
M3 RO BIEK - B THRIEETEN
MR Z T b KRBT EMRARE TR Z
TERRE  EFERISHKEFEERNZ T -
VTHEREFETETEHME—MREK -EF
ERNEEREURNBRMZ T YERE
REREE R EEREAE -

BEIBEKZ it
HEe_Z2-—F+-_A=+—HILt=F K&
BEETEE(BREESREEAS) MR LG

B
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H
2021 2020 2019
—E-—-F —ECEF —E-NF
Male: female (ratio) B M (EX) 4:1 5:1 5:1

The Company considers that it has achieved gender diversity in the
Group's workforce (including senior management of the Group) and aims
to continue to maintain a consistent gender ratio in its workforce roughly
in-line with the ratios recorded in its previous financial years. Owing to
the nature of the handling of hazardous waste and in view of the services
provided by the Group, the Company considers that it is not unusual for
the gender ratio of its workforce to be composed of more males than
females. Save as disclosed, the Company is not aware of any mitigating
factors or circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across the
workforce (including senior management of the Group) more challenging
or less relevant and the Company will monitor its workforce’s gender
composition on an ongoing basis in order to maintain a consistent gender
ratio.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted its Shareholders Communication Policy
to promote and facilitate effective communication with shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). The Board encourages the
participation of the Shareholders to the general meetings of the
Company, and the Chairman of the Board shall attend the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman invites the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend, or
failing their presence, their duly appointed delegate to attend and
be available to answer questions at annual general meeting. The
chairman of the independent board committee (if any) is available
to answer questions at the general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.

The Board ensures the external auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

For each substantially separate issue at the general meetings, a
separate resolution is to be proposed by the chairman of that
meeting. The Company shall avoid “bundling” resolutions unless
they are interdependent and linked forming one significant
proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of
the general meetings. The chairman of the general meetings shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on
voting by poll.

The Company shall arrange for the notice to the Shareholders to
be sent in the case of for annual general meeting at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in the case for all other general meetings. Any notice
to be given by the Company shall be in writing. The Company shall
send notices to all Shareholders whether or not their registered
address is in Hong Kong. The Company shall ensure that notice of
the general meetings is published on the websites of the Company
at www.nuigl.com and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may
complete and return to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company (the “Share Registrar”) in Hong Kong the proxy
form enclosed with the notice of meeting to give proxy to their
representatives, another shareholder or chairman of the meetings.

The poll voting procedures are included in the Company’s circular
convening a general meeting. The results of the voting by poll are
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively thereafter the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company considers
that it has effectively implemented its Shareholders Communication
Policy by, among others, (i) the attendance by the Chairman and the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
at the annual general meeting of the Company in order to answer
questions at such meeting; and (ii) the timely notices to the
Shareholders clearly outlining the relevant issues and resolutions to
be proposed at each general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting

According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

Upon receipt of the requisition, the Company shall request the
Share Registrar to verify and confirm on the particular of the
requisitionist(s), and arrange the Board to consider the proposal
and convene a general meeting by serving sufficient notice to all
the registered Shareholders. If any particular of the requisitionist(s)
is verified as not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be advised
accordingly, and a general meeting may not be convened as
requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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An annual general meeting shall be called by notice of not less
than 21 clear days and not less than 20 clear business days and
any extraordinary general meeting at which the passing of a special
resolution is to be considered shall be called by notice of not less
than 21 clear days and not less than 10 clear business days. All other
extraordinary general meetings may be called by notice of not less
than 14 clear days and not less than 10 clear business days but if
permitted by the rules of the Stock Exchange, a general meeting may
be called by shorter notice, subject to the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, if it is so agreed.

Procedures for nominating a person for election as a
director in general meeting

The Company has adopted the Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director. Save for the procedures
adopted, no person, other than a retiring Director shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting according to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company. Pursuant
to the procedure adopted, only Shareholder(s) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall propose a person for
election as a director in general meeting.

If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director
for election as a director, the following documents shall be lodged
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Rooms 2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the Board to recommend that person
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting:

(1) a notice signed by the Shareholder of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and the notice shall set
out the contact details of the proposing shareholder, including
correspondence address, contact phone number; and

(2) a notice signed by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected as a Director; and the duly completed
checklist attach to these procedures.

The minimum length of the period during which the
above-mentioned notices are given shall be at least 10 business days
and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end not later than 14
business days prior to the date of such general meeting.

CEERARWRS

BERBFAREHEBELTLR21ER
BERAPR20ECERBMBEMAR
MRELERBBE-BRFIRZRNE
MRRFIAE  HEBEHTDR21
AR A RTDIR10ME R 4% B HBEim
AR e BT A AL RREF Bl K & Al % B %%
EADR14ER B R ADRI0E R & %
HevB&EmAE R - BB PR AR R
BERASAEHSHERARENRET
FRBEHBEEENIRABSM AR (i
MERBSRADEREMILITE) °

RIRAGREALEREES
GOREYR
AATRMBEREALEEESOR
FoRERAMBFIN BRIREFE
HEER REKREEEN  REA
DA B ER KA R R AR A
BRMEREPIRRG Y MALE AR
REARTAE EEEEERE - RIF
ERMNEF EERAEREBERE
AEYRELRENRRTREG LIRS
ATEEES -

WMERAERHELRE ERENRE
RIRBEEZUIIMALBERE ZRAL
AIATXHAERERRNAINEE &
e it AR B NENELERIEG
SRERAE2110-2112E > WitE T
HEZATREMBREAS EEERESRN

(1) ZBEREBESBBEBSRTBRELZZAL
BEEBERMN  MzBEAHIIE
Bz BRM B R XS
BB - BARERERE R

(2) BAIREREXRTHEEMBEREZ
FRA REREZNBREREN
MU EEF -

BHEFMBENEMEZ L BEI10EE
¥0 MEXRBHEBAEHHBEBETIER
FEEEHEEMETAANBRERS
BERZERAG YTERABBREK
CAHMRIM4ELCEBLER -

B8 HFRERREERRAA



e

82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

fa

XE AR SE

If the Company receives the notice as required after publication of
the notice of meeting, the Company shall publish an announcement
or issue a supplementary circular upon receipt of such a notice.
Full particulars of the proposed director as required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules must be included in the announcement
or supplementary circular. However, if the Company receives
insufficient information for the purposes of publishing an
announcement or issuing a supplementary circular, the Company
shall contact the proposing shareholder and/or the proposed
director for further information.

In the event that the Company is not able to publish an
announcement or issue a supplementary circular on a day, which
is at least 10 business days prior to the general meeting of the
Company, the said nomination of shareholder will be presented at
the next following general meeting.

Dividend policy

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board recommended
the payment of final dividend on 31 March 2022, and the
recommendation of dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders.

Pursuant to the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
adopted a policy on payment of dividends (the “Dividend Policy”)
which is to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits and performance results whilst retaining adequate reserves
for the Company’s future growth. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

° the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

o the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

° the Group’s liquidity and debt gearing position, and the
relevant financial covenants;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the member companies of the Group;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
operation and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business, financial performance and position
of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems relevant and appropriate.
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Any distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the distribution shall achieve continuity,
stability and sustainability. The recommendation of the payment of
any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and

any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the

Shareholders. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

(e)

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders shall direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Share Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders or investors could enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:

(852) 2435 6811
(852) 2435 3220
comsec@nuegl.com
Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F.,
Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
The Chairman

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail

Correspondence address

For the attention of

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a)

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 31 March 2022, the board of directors of the Company
announced the proposal to make certain amendments (the
“Proposed Amendments”) to the Memorandum and the Articles
in order to (i) bring the Memorandum and the Articles in line with
the relevant requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Listing Rules; (ii) incorporate certain housekeeping
amendments; and (iii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation
to the conduct of general meetings by allowing general meetings of
the Company to be held as electronic meetings or hybrid meetings
(where Shareholders of the Company may attend by electronic
means in addition to as a physical meeting where Shareholders
attend in person or by proxy). The Proposed Amendments and
the proposal to adopt an amended and restated memorandum of
association and articles of association of the Company incorporating
the Proposed Amendments are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders by way of special resolution at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be convened by the Company.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the Shareholders are
receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group via the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, public announcements and releases, and update on key
information of the Group are available on the Company’s website at
www.nuigl.com.

The Company has engaged with PRChina Limited as its public
relation consultant to enhance media and investor relations of the
Group. The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed the
Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. Media or
potential investors could make necessary enquiry with the public
relation consultant through the following means:

(852) 2522 1838
(852) 2521 9955
newuniverse@prchina.com.hk
PRChina Limited

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail

Public relation consultant

On behalf of the Board
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The directors (the “Directors”) of New Universe Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and has its principal place of business at Rooms
2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to the group members.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries are summarised as follows:
(a)

provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes;

provision of environmental equipment construction and installation
services;

provision of environmental plating sewage treatment and provision
of related facilities, utilities and management services in an
eco-plating specialised zone; and

(d)

investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business and financial review of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the material factors underling its results and financial position
together with the risk and outlook of the Company’s business as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 31
of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021" of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be available on the
Company’s website at www.nuigl.com.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s key business
operations has made continuous effort and investment in managing
and monitoring environmental parameters, upgraded existing facilities
to meet regulatory environmental requirements and national standards,
and provided training relevant to the industry that is necessary for the
sustained development of the Group. Save for the disclosure made
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021 and in this
annual report, there was no other significant environmental exceedances
recorded nor any material non-compliance in relation to environmental,
social or governance aspects. Engagement with stakeholders has
resulted in raised concerns on key material issues, which include:
air emission, effluent and waste discharge, occupational health and
safety, anti-corruption and use of energy. The Group will continue to
identify areas of improvement for the concerned aspects and keep close
communication with its stakeholders for advancing management on
environmental, social and governance.

The Company has engaged with an independent consultant firm, Ascent
Partners Advisory Service Limited, to review the Company’s overall
environmental, social and governance performance of the key business
operations of the Group for the preparation of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the principal corporate practices of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and significant subsequent events, if any,
up to the date of this report is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 44 to 84 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 115 to 268 of this annual report.
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DIVIDENDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The dividend of HK$0.0072 per share totally amounted to approximately
HK$21,857,000 paid on 30 July 2021 was made for the year ended
31 December 2020.

On 31 March 2022, the Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.0039 per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounting to approximately HK$11,839,000 which is subject to approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting date Friday, 27 May 2022

Book close date for final
dividend

Tuesday, 7 June 2022 to
Friday, 10 June 2022

Record date for final dividend Friday, 10 June 2022

Final dividend payment date Friday, 29 July 2022

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2021, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 32 to 34 of this annual
report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by operating segments
of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 119 of this
annual report.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$648,673,000 (2020: HK$627,111,000) which was
calculated according to Article 134 of the Articles of Association of the
Company that dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the Companies Law
(Chapter 22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2021 are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial
statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not capitalise any
interest during the year (2020: in the amount of HK$255,000 capitalised
at a rate of 5.225%).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Information on the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major
customers and suppliers during the year is set out as follows:

=

TEERRILES
AEERAFENEEEBES RABEZR
HHEHIIOT ;

Percentage of the Group’s total

hEAEERAEZ2HEO L
Sales Purchases
HERH R
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—fF T F —E-—fF —Z==%
The largest customer SN 5.8% 11.6%
Five largest customers in aggregate A AR F 4258 19.9% 23.3%
The largest supplier RAEERE 6.7% 8.6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREEE B 25.4% 34.6%
At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2021 did a Director, B EEBTHBMEBANALNTRE(GHE
a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which EMAMBEAEAANRZEBITIRABIASY% ) RE

to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers.

The percentage of revenue from the five largest customers in aggregate
was less than 30% of the Group's total revenue respectively for the two
years ended 31 December 2021. The percentage of purchases from the
five largest suppliers in aggregate was less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2021.

At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2021 have the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. X1 Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (appointed on 20 August 202 1)

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Ms. ZHANG Shuo (was not re-elected at the annual general meeting held
on 18 June 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. ZHENG Zhen retires at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offers herself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Ms. LIU Yu Jie, Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings during the year
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

R
i

MEBRRAZES

RAFEARBEARNRS BB IEARFNEB

AZEEWMT

Director(s) of the subsidiary

7

N

Name of subsidiary MEAR LR MEBARIZES
Ever Champ (China) Limited Be3 (R ED) BRAF A B
Fair International Investment Enterprise EREBERECERRAR A B
Limited
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Limited ERIEENBENBERAR A B
Fair Time International Limited EREEARA A A B
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental IHRFHRRIEBEERRAT C
Engineering Management Limited*
Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies ST & # FBRRIRAR A 7 A
Limited*
New Sinotech Investments Limited MEMEBRAR B
New Universe (China) Investment Limited FF(hE)REBRRQA B
New Universe (China) Limited FF(PE)BRAR A B
New Universe Environmental Protection HFRREEAR AR B
Investment Limited
New Universe Environmental Technologies #FHERE CI#) AR A7 A B
(Jiang Su) Limited
New Universe International Ecology Limited #{FEIEE 4 22 B[R 2 &) B
New Universe International Group Limited ~ $iTEERE % (£E) AR L7 A B
New Universe International Holdings Limited #7=5FEI B3 jx A R 2 &) B
New Universe Recyclable Investments MFERBEREBERAA B
Limited
New Universe Recyclables Limited MTERBEFAAERAR A B
Smartech International Group Limited ERBEREEBR AT B
Smartech Manufacturing Limited ERERARADA A B
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited ERZRERBERAT A B
Smartech Services Limited EREBERARLDA A
Sugian New Universe Solid Waste Disposal TEEBFHEEEYEEBR AT A
Company Limited*
Taixing Xin Xin Resources Recycling REFHERBENABAERAA A
Company Limited*
Xiangshui New Universe Environmental ERAFREVTER AT A B C G
Technology Limited
Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste HFMESENEEERDA A
Disposal Company Limited
Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology B #1 F 12 LR R R B R A A A B C G
Limited*
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste EIHTFERENEERRAT A C D E
Disposal Company Limited
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-Electroplating BEIEMNAREEMREREGRAT A

Development Limited

*  For identification purpose only * (ERBPH
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Name of the directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings:

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. LIU Yuan

. YIN Yong Xiang
Mr. SUN Jia Qing

Mr. LIU Lai Gen

Mr. ZHONG Han Gen
Mr. JI Zi Hua

IoTMmoON®y
<

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has service contract with the Company that is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in writing an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred has served as the Company’s independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years. Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the further appointment of each
of them should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board considers each of
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau
Hong, Alfred to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 35 to 43 of this annual report.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report,
there were changes in Directors’ information as follows:

(@) Ms. ZHANG Shuo was not re-elected at the annual general meeting
held on 18 June 2021 and thus she has retired as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting (“Retirement”). Following her Retirement as
an executive Director of the Company, Ms. ZHANG Shuo also ceased
to be a member of the Executive Committee; and

(b) Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as an executive Director and a
member of the executive committed of the Company with effect
from 20 August 2021.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the Directors’ information since the date of the last annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other information to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, there was no significant change in the information of the key
management team members of the Company.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the key management team members’ information since the date of the last
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the chief executives and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out respectively in
notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EEEREE
HE-T-—4+-A=+—ALEREREE
ARERE  EFARETIED

(@) FREZELRER —F XA+ NAR
BOvRRBFR LHEE RERAE
KRBT ESE TRBRREFRELH
REER (BT - EREIAAFHT
EF% RBEZITSATHARWTZES
KE &

_7_

by BEiEA-ZT-_—F)/\A-t+HBRE
ZERWTEERARFRTEEGKE -

BRAREMEEEN EFERZFHBEAR
ABE_ZT_TF+ A=+ -BHULFEZR
MR A AAREERETAMEBEAES -

BARESHMFEEEIN  MEEMERNTRE L
M BE1351QQIEMBTE FTURE -

EEBENEE

BE-T-—F+-A=t—RAIFEREER
ARERN AATISEREMKE 2 AR
WIEEARE -

BAREMPREEIIN TEEREKRKEER
ZHBEBARTEE_E -2+ _A=1+—
BIEFEE 2 T HFERB B A RBE &I E 4
BERE

EERTETHAEBUER
ZEEEA LT ZFHM

AEBEERTIZTBRABUREZRESHA
T ZFH NS BB B S R M FE9 R 10



REWDRTOFTHE[NRECTORSW:

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Board has adopted an emolument policy for the employees of the
Company which is governed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on the basis the relevant skills, experience, merit, qualifications
and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit plans of the Group are
set out in note 40(b) to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 5 May 2015 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years ending on 4 May 2025, after which no further options will be
granted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide participants
(“Participant”, and each a “Participant”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares (the
“Shares”) for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole.

A Participant is any person belonging to any of the following classes:

(@) any eligible employee of or any person who has accepted an offer
of employment from (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive Directors but not any non-executive
Director) the Company, its subsidiaries and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(e) any person or entity acting in their capacities as advisers or
consultants to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity from time to time determined by the Directors
having contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 5 May 2015 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
unless the Company obtains an approval by its Shareholders at its general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. Further, the maximum
number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and options which may be granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue from time to time.
Based on the issued share capital of 2,955,697,018 Shares as at 5 May
2015, the Scheme Mandate Limit was 295,569,701 Shares, representing
approximately 9.74% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the share options to each
Participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme are subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue
at any time and having an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a remittance of HK$10 in favour of
the Company by the grantee. The exercise period of share options granted
is determinable by the Board, save that such exercise period shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of such share options.
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The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant which must be a day
(“Trading Day"”) on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS'

Trading Days immediately preceding the date of the grant; or (iii) the

nominal value of a Share.

Details of share options (the “Options”) granted by the Company under

the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

Date of grant:
BHBH:

Date of acceptance:

BHES

Grantees:

EE-YNE

Closing price of the Shares
immediately before the date
of grant

ZERE AR RORTE

Exercise price of the Options
granted:
PR BE AR A 01T (R (B -

Total number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of
the Options granted:
RABETR AT L BB R
T EITRD 2 B8

18 January 2022
N R ANE

16 February 2022
ZE-ZFZA+RA

7 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
RERTREER  BEARAR
RRBESE  THRAEZRTER
REABESB2EMHBBEA(E
ER EWRAD o

HK$0.305 per Share

h%0.305/8 7T

HK$0.308 per Share

BRI 1H0.3087% T

13,080,000 Shares

13,080,0004%

EEgHma

BERZOTEETHESERE  BFASER
UTEBRZERE  (IRETEHR (BAR
RIIRRETEFRSZAF(IXRZB])EFE
BMEXSMARAR (BT EHZARR
PRz B W8 ¢ (NEER T A H A1 A AR
5 BB XA E 2 B R AT Rz IR T 19
B+ iy < H1E -

ARRRBERES SR D 2 BERE ((BR

B 2 FBHEHINMT -

15 January 2021
—ZE_—%—-A+hH

12 February 2021
ZE--FZA+=H

6 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
AEECEES  MEARAR
ARAEF  THERKTER
RABEREZEMHEAE
EREWHAA -

HK$0.270 per Share

Fh%0.270% 7T

HK$0.272 per Share

BRIE70.2728 T

11,380,000 Shares

11,380,0004%

15 January 2020
—T-F%—-A+HH

12 February 2020
—E-ZF_A+ZH

5 employees of the Group, and
none of the grantees is a Director,
chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or

any of their respective associate(s)
(as defined in the Listing Rules).

AEESHER  HEARARAE
AREF TRAZIEIERR
FHREFEEZEMHBEA(EER
EWRAD -

HK$0.250 per Share

&h%0.250% T
HK$0.250 per Share
Bk 10.2507 T

11,000,000 Shares

11,000,0008%
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Options lapsed as at 31
December 2021:

\—7— i—'— H + EE
KA BB RRAE -

Vesting period of the Options:

BREZEBH

Not applicable

TiEm

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions (the
2022 Vesting Conditions”)

as specified in the offer letter
(the “Offer Letter”) of each
respective Grantee. If the 2022
Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such Grantee shall
be cancelled as specified in the
Offer Letter.

The Options shall vest in the
proportions to be determined
according to each particular
Offer letter on the date the
2022 Vesting Conditions
applicable to the relevant
Grantee are achieved.

T D B AR A 1 R S AR AR A
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002FBIKHFREER BT
BREARANREBERESZ
SRR R TE T A

BEREENERRNEEARAD
002F BRI ERE BIRSE
TENHETHLOIFE -

Not applicable

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions (the
“2021 Vesting Conditions”)

as specified in the offer letter
(the "Offer Letter”) of each
respective Grantee. If the 2021
Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such Grantee shall
be cancelled as specified in the
Offer Letter.

The Options shall vest in the
proportions to be determined
according to each particular
Offer letter on the date the
2021 Vesting Conditions
applicable to the relevant
Grantee are achieved.

BT B R B A & R R AR A
MEOH([ELHR]) RETHEN
ETRBE KT
<f2021 FBIE] ERES
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201 BRI REER BT
BEARANREBRRERER
SR N R TE T LA

B B E AR AR AR AR
mmﬁ%ﬁ#iﬁ%aﬁﬂﬁ
BHHEENLDIEE -
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1,360,000 Shares (upon
termination of the employment
of a grantee with effect from
31 December 2020)

1,360,000f (R =B -TF+=
A=+—HREIE—ARAN
&R

The Options granted shall be

vested upon achievement of

certain performance targets (the

2020 Vesting Conditions”) as

specified in each particular Offer

Letter of each respective Grantee.

If the 2020 Vesting Conditions

applicable to the relevant Grantee

are not achieved, the unvested

Options granted to such Grantee

shall be cancelled as specified

in the Offer Letter. Subject to

the 2020 Vesting Conditions

applicable to the relevant

Grantee having been achieved,

the Options shall vest in the

proportions to be determined
according to each particular Offer

Letter on the 30th business day

after the date of publication

of the annual results of the

Company for the year ended 31

December 2021,
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Validity period of the Options:

BRENBRS

Subject to the Options having
been vested, the Options
granted are exercisable from
the date of publication of

the annual results of the
Company for the year ending
31 December 2024 (the “2024
Results Date”) to the earlier

of (i) the date on which such
Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024
Results Date.
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Subject to the Options having
been vested, the Options
granted are exercisable from
the date of publication of

the annual results of the
Company for the year ending
31 December 2023 (the “2023
Results Date”) to the earlier

of (i) the date on which such
Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2023
Results Date.
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The Options granted are
exercisable from the date of
vesting to the earlier of (i) the
date on which such Options
lapses in accordance with the 1
terms of the Share Option

Scheme; or (ii) the 30th business

day after the date of publication

of the annual results of the

Company for the year ending 31

December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR

ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (“Model
Code") of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

The Company

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERITETHAERER
ABAREEMERAERSR
EBEREE M - tHE
B REREEPZIREER
Bk E

R-ZE-—F+-_FA=+—H EE=KARQRT
CEZITBRABRARARREBELE (T X
REHFRBEKD ([EHRBEEG ) EXVEE)
25 RERDREEETFHEEREES X
HEEHEXVIBETRESH PAEMESARR K
BRIz EmRAR (BEREREES XY
EOIBEE T A ES R IERE 2 msk
KB - HIREBES M E KA EIS2EEL A
ZiERM B Em kAR - HBE LT
BANEE T B TAZESETESLSRHHNIZ
MESFRI([MZESFAD) MBS AR R KRB RFT
CHEBRKRWOT

ZAYNG]
RARARE RIEGBR 4B

Number of Shares

KRB EE

Approximate
percentage
of total Shares
in issue
Capacity in which Shares Number of HEe BT
Name of Director were held Shares held BipEEz
EEHSR BERONESR FERGEE BHABEDE
Mr. XI Yu (note) Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54

R & (HF) 32y I NGIE - £
Ms. LIU Yu Jie Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67

BERLZ L EmEAA
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o
S HE
Associated corporation BEAE

Long positions in ordinary shares of NUEL HNUEL Z B Z i &

Number of ordinary shares of US$1.00 each of NUEL
BREE1.00% T ZNUELE BR A

Approximate

percentage
of total shares
Capacity in Number of in issue
which ordinary ordinary HE &7
Name of Director shares were held shares held BRpE 8~
BEEgR BEEERERNE G FEEBERHE BMAB DL
Mr. XI Yu (note) Beneficial owner 16,732 83.66
EEEHE (M) ExnEAA
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling (note) Beneficial owner and Interests of
spouse 2,428 12.14
RN 2 (faE) EanEa AR B#ER
Note: New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL") is beneficially interested  f/z : New Universe Enterprises Limited
in 1,109,303,201 Shares, representing approximately 36.54% of the (INUELJ) %% A81,109,303,201%
issued share capital of the Company. NUEL is directly owned as to B HERANAF ZE BITHRAY
83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also 36.54% - NUELHEZE F S HEHEA
directors of NUEL. 83.66% c EEXEERKNRELLTNE R
NUELZZE ¥ »
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors M EXFIEBEEN R _T_—F + = A
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in ~=+—H - Tﬂiﬁ§$j€$ RAIZEETHAER

any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its R AR Ak EAEMBEEE (E& R FH LD
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which ~ E1{&BIEXVEL) Z M th - 18RI A {0 S & H#E =&
were entered in the register referred to therein as required pursuant to T?Eﬁ*ﬁﬁ% 7 N BB R 01 2835218 78 50 A\ % 1§
section 352 of the SFO or required, to be notified to the Company and the it 2 ER M 2 AKX A - AR BRI % <r A
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. MAMNEARNAE] MBS IORE ©
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of those persons,
F other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company whose

FTEREREMATREAL
AR REEARPZES
BB EAE

R-ZE-—F+-"F=+—H BAQRAESE
REZBTRABE (BE2HZR EXHEE) N2
ZEATRBROFEEREES NBERIE
XVEBE2R3D FARM AR R E BN ERIAR
K,/ s AE BB 0 B B AR 8RR AN R R R IR 3%
HFREEKAEIBCKAEFE 2 LMz iER
FABWMT :

interests has been disclosed therein above, in the Shares which has to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO are as
follows:

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

100

REATDRGREBERGNEFR
Approximate
percentage
of total shares
in issue
Capacity in which ordinary Number of HE 8T
Name of shareholder shares were held shares held R EE
RR & B FEZERNEH RO EE BRBDE
Mr. XI Yu @ Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54
HEEHEO k| VNS b
NUEL @ Beneficial owner 1,109,303,201 36.54
EmEA A
China Minsheng Investment Group Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
Corporation Ltd
(FERARERMDBRRQA)
("hRET)®
FEREREROBR AR SPEH QRS
(TR ®
FRECNEEERGRAF Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Asia”™) @
PREDMNEEEEER QA ek NS b
(TRR&ZZM])®
CMI Financial Holding Corporation Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIF-BVI™) @
CMI Financial Holding Corporation SPEHIN Al
([EBERZEBCMIF])®
CMIG International Capital Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Hong Kong™) @
FREBEBRERFRAA PEH A Rl
([FEERREK]®
CM International Capital Limited Beneficial owner 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIC-Cayman™) @
CM International Capital Limited EmEAA
(TRAZcMIC])®
Ms. LIU Yu Jie @ Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67
B E AL ExEAA

New Universe Environmental Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes:

(i) NUEL is directly owned as to 83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. The interest disclosed
by Mr. XI as a Shareholder deemed interested in the 1,109,303,201
Shares is the same interest as disclosed by him being a Director.

(i) CMIC-Cayman is 100 % directly owned by CMIG-Hong Kong.
CMIG-Hong Kong is 31.5% directly owned by # R 3% and 68.5%
directly owned by CMIF-BVI. CMIF-BVI is 100% directly owned by
CMIG-Asia. CMIG-Asia is 100% directly owned by FR#&. CMIG-Hong
Kong, CMIF-BVI, CMIG-Asia and H1 4% are all deemed interested in the
800,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by CMIC-Cayman.

(i) The interest disclosed by Ms. LIU Yu Jie as a Shareholder is the same
interest as disclosed by her being a Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to
the Directors, the Company has not been notified of any other interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning for the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/
or Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares, and Debenture of the
Company or Any Specified Undertaking of the Company or Any Other
Associated Corporation”, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or the Company's
subsidiary or holding company of a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transactions (defined under the Listing Rules)
which were discloseable in the reporting period or any time during the
year.

EEgHma
B -

() NUELHE R LA E®EHEES3.66% - Zict
TERREATH B 2 KR A1K1,109,303,2018%
BHPMESABIEREEMBEEZHER
M e

iy FAECMICTIHREBTREI00%EEZES °
EEPREIBPREERABELHE
CMIFD Bl B31.5% K 68.5% ° H B kR &
HECMIFAFRIEEMOONEZES
FREDMNEFPERIOONEEREAS - BB
FRE HBELZHEBECMIF R EREZIM
A REEFEEENHSCMICEREE DN
800,000,0000% f% 17 B A #E2S o

(iy BIEARALTERBRRMABEZERBBE
REEMPEZBRES
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PROVISION OF GUARANTEES TO A
AFFILIATED COMPANY

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as the joint
guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with a bank in the
PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations of Xinyu Rongkai (a
65% indirectly owned joint venture of the Company) in relation to the
bank loan facilities in a total amount of RMB120,000,000 (approximately
HK$141,600,000) and the guarantee will be effective until 31 December
2027, for the purpose of financing the construction of the integrated
hazardous waste treatment project undertook by Xinyu Rongkai at
Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, such banking facilities guaranteed by the
Company was utilised to the extent of RMB107,393,000 (approximately
HK$131,019,000) which is repayable on 21 June 2025 and bearing
interest at 4.75% per annum.

The following table summarised the financial information relating to the
Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting period:

[a) — [ Bk /B 1 R 4R L R 1R

RZB-_ZFAR-+FR ARQRFHAEH
(EBERERA) BB —ERITRI LB
R UWERAERFTFLRY (AR A MEE
BHESbZAELE)RBESEAARYE
120,000,0007T (#7141,600,000/ 7T) 2 R 1T

BERBE ZERBREZZE=-+H+=A
_+ A BEMABRBNTFRINREZRMNAF
HEAENMNTZ EREYRE EEREESR
B e

R-ZE-—F+_A=+—H  KQaMER
MIEITRES B A AR%107,393,0005T (49
131,019,000 0) r EZBR —_Z-_RAF <A

—+—HEE WEFMNELTS%AE -
TREINEAAEBRESEDENREBR M

BEMHE

For the years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —FF
HK$’'000 HK$ 000
TExT FHET
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s CHILECHESE
Non-current assets IERBEE 180,744 110,156
Current assets mENEE 36,677 10,046
Current liabilities mEAaE (30,955) (2,987)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (102,690) (41,347)
Equity [N 83,776 75,868
The Group’s attributable interest in FEARERGELER
the joint venture ERZHE
Gross amount of net assets of the joint venture AZNEEEFEZLEH 83,776 75,868
The Group's share of net assets of the joint AEBOGEEECECEEFE
venture 54,454 49,314
Unrealised profit on inter-company transaction RiR&HEREIKEQFEIIN
eliminated on consolidation RE R @ F (2,464) (1,914)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint
venture EETEFEEREE 51,990 47,400

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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LOAN AGREEMENT WITH SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE COVENANT

On 17 August 2018, the Company accepted a banking facility letter dated
28 June 2018 (the "Facility Letter A”) issued by a bank (“Bank A”) in Hong
Kong. Pursuant to the Facility Letter A, Bank A granted an unsecured term
loan facility of up to HK$30,000,000 (the “Facility A”) to the Company.
The final maturity date of the Facility A will be in July 2023. In accordance
with the Facility Letter A, the proceeds of the Facility A shall be used
directly for payment of the capital contribution in respect of the Group’s
interest in Xinyu Rongkai. As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding
unsecured bank loan under the Facility A was HK$15,000,000 (2020:
HK$21,000,000).

On 17 August 2018, the Company accepted a banking facility letter dated
8 August 2018 (the “Facility Letter B”) issued by a bank (“Bank B”) in
Hong Kong. Pursuant to the Facility Letter B, Bank B granted an unsecured
term loan facility of up to HK$15,000,000 (the “Facility B”) to the
Company. The final maturity date of the Facility B will be in January 2022.
The Facility B shall be used to finance the capital expenditure in relation to
the environmental operations of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
outstanding unsecured bank loan under the Facility B was HK$6,000,000
(2020: HK$15,000,000) and the loan was fully repaid on 10 January 2022
subsequent to the end of reporting period.

On 12 December 2017, the Company accepted a banking facility letter
(the "Facility Letter C") issued by a bank (“Bank C") in Hong Kong.
Pursuant to the Facility Letter C, Bank C granted an unsecured term
loan facility of up to HK$50,000,000 (the “Facility C") to the Company.
The final maturity date of the Facility C will be in December 2022. In
accordance with the Facility Letter C, the proceeds of the Facility C shall
be used to finance the capital expenditure of the Group in relation to
environmental industrial treatment, medical waste treatment and/or
environmental sewage treatment project. As at 31 December 2021, the
outstanding unsecured bank loan under the Facility C was HK$30,000,000
(2020: HK$35,000,000).

Pursuant to each of the facility letters A, B, and C, if Mr. XI Yu (being
defined as the “Controlling Shareholder” in the facility letters) (i) ceases
to be directly or indirectly the single largest Shareholder; (ii) ceases to own
directly or indirectly at least 30% of the issued Shares with voting rights
of the Company; or (iii) ceases to have the management control over the
Company, the banks reserve their respective overriding rights at any time
with immediate effect to cancel or vary the terms of the facility letters,
demand immediate repayment of all outstanding amounts and require
provision of immediate cash cover (in the amount notified by the banks)
for any future or contingent liabilities upon the occurrence of any events
of default.

EEgHma
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As for the Facility A, unless there is a default under the terms and
conditions for the Facility A, Bank A will not demand repayment of any
amounts due under the Facility A within 2 years from the date of the
Facility Letter A. As for the Facility C, unless there is a default under the
terms and conditions for the Facility C, Bank C committed not to demand
repayment of any amounts due under the Facility C for the first 2 years
from the date of the first drawdown on 15 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Xl Yu, through his beneficial interest
in 83.66% of the issued share capital of NUEL, is deemed interested
in 1,109,303,201 Shares (2020: 1,109,303,201 Shares), representing
36.54% (2020: 36.54%) of the total issued share capital of the Company
beneficially owned by NUEL.

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules,
disclosure of an obligation arises under Rule 13.18 will be included in the
annual and interim reports of the Company for so long as circumstances
giving rise to the obligation continue to exist.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2021 and any time during the year, transactions,
arrangements, or contracts subsisted, of which certain Directors had
interests that were deemed significant to the business of the Group are set
out as follows:

(@  Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, the executive Directors, are
also the directors of the landlord, Sun Ngai International Investment
Limited (“Sun Ngai”) to the tenancy agreement dated 20 July 2020
that was entered into by Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech
Services”, an indirectly 100% owned subsidiary of the Company) as
tenant to lease three office units at Rooms 2109 to 2111, Telford
House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong (the “Office
Premises”) for the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 at a
monthly rental of HK$80,000.

(b) A renewed tenancy agreement dated 20 July 2021 was entered into
between Sun Ngai as landlord and Smartech Services as tenant for
leasing the Office Premises for the period from 1 August 2021 to 31
July 2022 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.

() For the year ended 31 December 2021, total rentals paid
by Smartech Services to Sun Ngai were HK$960,000 (2020:
HK$960,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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The above transactions were conducted on terms no less favourable
than terms available from independent third parties which were in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The afore-mentioned tenancy
agreements entered into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Smartech Services and Sun Ngai were de minimis transactions
exempted under rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Ms. LIU Yu Jie was appointed executive Director with effect from 9 June
2015, who has investments in four companies engaging in the operation
of hazardous waste projects in four cities in Mainland China, of which
she has a controlling stake in one of the four said companies. As the
permission licence to operate hazardous wastes in each of the four said
cities is exclusive, and the Group does not have any such operations in
those cities, the Board considers that the said investments of Ms. LIU Yu Jie
do not compete with the interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed therein, during the year and up to the date of this report,
the Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or
any substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for the
benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and has
been in force throughout this year in accordance with Article 164 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, losses, damages and
expenses which any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors.
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OF THE DIRECTORS

T WS

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors during the year and up to the date of
this annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events occurred after the reporting period are set
out in note 47 to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays high regards to legal and regulatory requirements in
formulating its policies and practices. The Company has engaged with
financial advisers to advice on the compliance with the Listing Rules.
Legal advisers have also been engaged to ensure the Group operates
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for major corporate
events of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, has reviewed with the management the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the three
years ended 31 December 2021 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
("Crowe (HK)", formerly known as Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited).
Crowe (HK) retires and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment
and a resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK) as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
REEZS

0L/

N

XI Yu
EES

Chairman

FE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
B8 T _F=A=+—H

78 37 1% S B
saazsamne T CEN
FEAFEZ S BREDEEE AR (BD)
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P58 HFEFRAREEBRAF 107



108

e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R &

A\ Crowe

To the shareholders of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 115 to 268, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSA") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRERER

(@) Impairment of trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables)
(refer to notes 22 and 44(d) to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) of the Group amounted
to HK$150,022,000 (net of provision for lifetime
expected credit losses). Lifetime expected credit
losses of trade and bills receivables (including lease
receivables) are based on management’s estimate
of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit
loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast of future economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

(a) EWERIREREE (BFEEWEE) 2HE
(B2 U A M BRI E22 244(d))

R_ZE-_—F+-A=+—H0  BE£EZEUWERIZX
ZR(BREEWAE) A150,022,0008 T (EHKR2H
TEHEEEREE) BURRLRER(RERKAES)
ZEHEMEEERBENEEBYBEL 2278
HEEEBEGAER FHAEMBZECZEBEKL
B aHERERZER TRPERLEERETPUE
AR+ 0¥ B AT K TBRI R SR A E AR AR B E - AE
BEYSPREBERLEREENHE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B ENRE

HEEZER(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE A

Our audit procedures included assessing and testing the
Group’s processes and key controls relating to the monitoring
of trade and bills receivables (including lease receivables)
and the granting of credit terms and contract terms relating
to billing milestones. We also tested the accuracy of ageing
analyses and obtained direct confirmations for samples of
debtor balances. We then evaluated the adequacy of the
Group's provision for lifetime expected credit losses of trade
and bills receivables (including lease receivables) by reference
to the Group's historical default data, the historical bad
debt loss rates as adjusted based on the current economic
condition during the year ended and as at 31 December
2021 and forward-looking information such as the published
forecast of GDP in the PRC. We also reviewed the settlements
of the Group’s customers during the year and up to the date
of approval of the consolidated financial statements. We
also considered the adequacy of the disclosures, in particular
those included in notes 22 and 44(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRmEZREFERFERIN EREERREEARE
BEERRUKEE)URETEENRAKREEREZAMAZA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BHRERER

(b)

(b)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate
(refer to notes 3(a)(vi) and 18(c) to the consolidated
financial statements)

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group’s 30% equity interest in FRILETEFEXF
ElfEREY R EABRAA “Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd” (“NCIP")
was approximately HK$145,346,000 and the Group's
share of loss of NCIP for the year was approximately
HK$12,553,000.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in NCIP is the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal. At 31 December 2021,
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of the
Group's 30% equity interests in NCIP was performed
by management by reference to the valuation of NCIP,
as an identified cash-generating unit, conducted by an
independent professional valuer with experiences and
qualifications in valuing similar assets.

The impairment assessment on the carrying value of
the Group’s equity interest in NCIP at the reporting
period end involves significant judgements made by
management of the Group and estimation uncertainty.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE T

Our audit procedures on this area included:

Performing a review on the financial statements of
NCIP for the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020;

Assessing the independent professional valuer’s
independence , competence , capabilities and
objectivity;

Evaluating the appropriateness for the valuation
methodologies used at the acquisition date and at
reporting period end;

Checking the projection of cash flows of NCIP
in the valuation models to the detailed forecasts
prepared by management of NCIP and evaluating the
reasonableness of key assumptions underlying the cash
flow projection;

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate and
long-term growth rate in the valuation models not
exceeding the industry data at public domains;

Challenging the key assumptions in the valuation
model made by management of NCIP and the
independent valuer;

Evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis on the key
assumptions used, including assessment of effect of a
reasonably possible change in growth rate, cash flow
projections and discount rate.

We also considered the adequacy of disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

AZEMAELTHNEZETERE

EHERRXFEHZEZZ —FER_ZT_FTF+ A
=+ Elu:ﬁﬁflifﬁﬁﬁﬂ&&%
FEBYEEEEMAE Y - T8 5 REEIE

AR R AR REMRERANGEETNERTEE

HERMRATEEERENFMABARSHERND
ERAFHRSREANLFEEARS RIS
TXEXE’]/\Eglﬁ

A ERA P E’J%ﬁ*‘&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?\ﬁﬁi@@ﬁ?ﬁ
WE’JH%%ZTF%ES

EHERRTE

ZRE

E”'Hﬁ?.i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% ES
M RE - R MIER RIFH =

P
=

BREMBIEEMRHEERAFHE

RN
@
i)zl
i
D

BT EBEAVBRRAEHNERBEERL TR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORTL-'_:-.;;

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we were required to
report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
BIEXE (58 StMSEMERATR
Certified Public Accountants

L E -

Liu Mok Lan, Cliny
BA®
Practising Certificate Number: P07270

HERRIRIRIS © PO7270

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
&8 —T-__F=ZA=1+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

> o N2 =
mEBmER
BE-_T-—F+-A=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F =T ST
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TERT FHET
1
Revenue W = 4(a) 727,167 789,341
Cost of sales HER A 8 (535,502) (569,558)
Gross profit EF 191,665 219,783
Other revenue H Wz 5 4,637 4,107
Other net income H g A 6 7,407 13,443
Distribution costs 2R (23,916) (6,971)
Administrative expenses THFA X (59,718) (56,433)
Impairment loss on trade receivables — net JEUBR K Z R EEE — F58 22(b) (28,685) (9,526)
Impairment loss on assets classified DERFIELEEEY
as held for sale HEEBE 26 - (12,636)
Other operating expenses HgEmz 8 (17,826) (24,525)
Operating profit R A 73,564 127,242
Finance income R E WA 7 4,140 402
Finance costs ELE=D N 7 (6,521) (9,564)
Finance costs — net BB R AR — F 5 7 (2,381) (9,162)
Share of results of associates DIGEERR 2 EE 18 (6,389) 10,302
Share of results of a joint venture SME—HeEEZER 19 (4,440) (1,835)
Profit before taxation R B A0 28 R 8 60,354 126,547
Income tax gt 11 (7,436) (24,501)
Profit for the year FEEA 52,918 102,046
Attributable to: LT AR :
Owners of the Company ZINNETEZF SN 40,419 74,576
Non-controlling interests E g 12,499 27,470
52,918 102,046
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic 2K 1.33 2.46
Diluted i 1.33 2.46

F122E2F268A ZHETIER AT B RERAD

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z=-—F+=-F=+—HBILtFE

ATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5E TER FET
Profit for the year FEEA 52,918 102,046
Other comprehensive income: Htt 2wk
Items that may be reclassified HEAWEBEF S EZEm.2
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences N ZE
— on translation of financial statements —MEBINNBATZ
of overseas subsidiaries EUCETES 30,186 46,765
— on translation of financial statements — 1B EFINBEERNRZ
of overseas associates Mg HmEK 18 5,938 9,423
— on translation of financial statements —BRE-BBINEEREZ
of an overseas joint venture B 19 1,759 2,592
— release of translation reserve upon —RAHE—FEINETE R T
disposal of an overseas subsidiary i AR bR B S - (982)
Items that will not be reclassified BT HET T EE B2
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Fair value changes on equity investments #E@H M2 E K zIE A TFE
at fair value through other ABRZRAEE 2 A F(E
comprehensive 2g) (T E)
income (non-recycling) 20 (37,300) 20,800
Deferred tax effect relating to changes AR E AT EES
in fair value of equity investments BRZEER B E 34(b) 3,410 (2,860)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FE &£t 2EWE - R FTET
net of income tax 3,993 75,738
Total comprehensive income for the FEXHRAELRE
year 56,911 177,784
Attributable to: THALEAN:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE7 RSN 39,904 143,548
Non-controlling interests JEIm AR RE S 17,007 34,236
56,911 177,784

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

R_T=-—4F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
=—B=—F —E-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FABT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B E RRE 14 755,547 789,633
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 111,053 129,640
Goodwill [EESS 16 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates /NI - 18 175,835 180,175
Interest in a joint venture R—EeErE#ER 19 51,990 47,400
Equity investments at fair value through  FBEM 2 E W HIEZ A FEAR
other comprehensive income 2 RIS E 20 80,800 118,100
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE = 34(b) 10,154 -
1,218,379 1,297,948
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 6,718 6,062
Trade and bills receivables FEWEBRE R R EE 22 150,022 129,438
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H th i SR IR 23 36,456 25,176
Contract assets BHEE 24 22,591 1,534
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITFR 25 8,191 12,511
Cash and cash equivalents BeLKERBEEER 25 302,074 257,523
526,052 432,244
Assets of a disposal group classified as DEAFELHEZHEEAEZ
held for sale and assets classified as BERDEABEELREZ
held for sale BE 26 39,580 15,411
565,632 447,655
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 198,970 178,905
Other borrowing HEMEE 28 = 25,000
Trade and bills payables FENERLREE 29 78,607 66,315
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEt B E R E M E RIE 30 228,986 226,539
Lease liabilities HESRE 31 750 117
Contract liabilities aHEaE 32 38,507 25,011
Deferred government grants i 3E X AT 48 B 33 2,057 1,106
Income tax payable FERT TS 34(a) 6,094 6,251
553,971 529,244
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (A FE 11,661 (81,589)
Total assets wEE 1,784,011 1,745,603
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 1,230,040 1,216,359

2558 FFRAEEBRAA
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DATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Tk &

As at 31 December 2021 HR-_ZT-_—F+_-A=+—H

2021 2020
=—B=—F —E-EHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
[ik=2 FET FAET

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 — 10,130
Lease liabilities HEAR 31 720 30
Deferred government grants iR T BUAT 46 Bb 33 13,431 5,327
Deferred tax liabilities FEHIBEEE 34(b) 33,079 37,535
. 47,230 53,022
= Total liabilities e E 601,201 582,266
Net assets EEFE 1,182,810 1,163,337

Capital and reserves EXAREE
Share capital B& X 35 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 36 1,022,422 1,004,070

Equity attributable to owners of the ZN/NETE7 RN L N

Company 1,052,779 1,034,427
Non-controlling interests e IR A 17(b) 130,031 128,910
Total equity BRABEE 1,182,810 1,163,337

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial 1228 52688 7 W 5T Jh# ik AN B %5 2k = 1~
statements. ATk iR 2 # M -

s _

\
Xl Yu CHEUNG Siu Ling
X% RN
Chairman Executive Director
TE HITEFE
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¢+_ﬂ_+ EIJtiJ‘?Z=

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Et?:_g:
Attributable to owners of the Company
KOAREAEESS
Investment Share Non-
Share Share ~Tranlation revaluation ~ Capital ~ option  Statutory  Retained controlling
Gapital  premium  reserve Ereﬁ:g; reseve  reseve  resene profits Total interests Total equity
B%  RBEE  ERGR B ERBE BREBE iRBE  RERA B FERER  RA4E
HKEOOD  HKS000  HKE000  HKY'000 KOO0 HKFOOO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'00
TRr  fEm TR TEL  TAr TR TEm TR TR TEr  TEn
note (note (note (note (note (note (note
(ote35) 366D QM) ) e 36O 36 36l
e O O O B (i liE:
(BE%) 600) 30 ) oM el ) (i)
At1 January 2020 W5 5E-F-H 30357 456,465 (37.984) 31179 51 - %3 3856 958 116788 1008316
Profit or the year EEE - - - - - - - S TASTe 7410 100,046
Other comprehensiv income HME%
Bxchange differences
- on transltion of financial statements of —f,@ E?\\MTE/ AL0EER
overseas subsidiaries - - 39,999 - - - - - 39,999 6,766 46,765
- on tanslton offinanci statemens of -BERNBED T HRER
OVerseas associates - - 9413 - - - - - 9413 - 9413
- on translation of financial statements of an - RE-FRSIAENE 2 HRR
Overseas jointvenure - - 159 - - - - - 1592 - 159
- releaseof translaton reseme upon diposl of -l E-FEAKBATRER
an overseas subsidiary note 171 BERE M0 - . 982) = = = = = (982) = 9))
Farvlue changes on equit investments, netof -~ R B2 ATESS (EFLHE
deferred tar %zE) - - - 17940 - - - - 17940 - 17940
Total comprehensive income for the year EE2ENKLE - - 51,032 17940 - - - TU5T6 143548 W36 1778
Transter to tatutory resrve HREZIREE - - - - - - B (146 s S -
Equity-settled share-hased transactions TR ERR RS
Inoe 42 \%(Mﬁzm( ) = = = = = 601 : : 801 £ B!
Diidend elting to 2019 -nEhe - > > ; 3 S - By sy - s
Dividend pad t non-conroling ntrests of WWE/ TZABRERTARE
Subsidiries - - - - - - - - -y g
A3 December 2020and 1 lanuary 2001 RH-E-EETCRST-ER
“5-5-F-4 0317 456465 13048 9119 51 601 Q452 BN3 10447 128910 1163337
Profitforthe year EEEH - - - - - - 3 1 BN V1 Iy
Other comprehensiveincome 2p2Eks
Bichange differences EjZR
- ontandlton of fnencilsatements of -~ -BEEHIBAT BEER
Overseas Subsidiaries - - 1,678 - - - - - 15678 4508 30,186
-on ransaton of finencilstatementsof - BEBIRELT2BHRR
OVerseas associates - - 5938 - - - - - 5,938 - 5938
- ontranslfion of financil statementsof an -~ - AE-FENAL0E/EEER
OVerseas joint venture - - 1,759 - - - - - 1759 - 1,759
Fair value changes on equity nvestments, net o M&SZ’ TERS (MRELRA
Oeferred fax %28 = = - B = = - - 3380 - (338%)
Total comprehensive income for the year EE2ENZEE - - BB (33890) - - - 40419 39,904 17,007 56,911
Transterto Satutory resenve -yt - - - - - - 1532 (153)) - - -
Equity-seted share-nased transactons REREHERRAFER 25
(note 40f) (4000 - - S S S 305 - = 305 - 305
Dividend relating to 2020 “D-FERE - - - - - - - s s - ngs)
Dividend pid tonon-contoling inerests of BRI FAREAT RS
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (1580 (158%)
At 31 December 2021 WoE--E1Zpzt-R 30357 456,465 16423 15,29 51 906 99984 398243 105719 130031 1182810

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHSAER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+_A=+—HLFE

6.'-.’
-ﬁl- 2021 2020
‘ , —B=-—F —ETHF
4 Note HK$'000 HK$'000

k=g TER FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation R 7 A i ) 60,354 126,547
i’ Adjustments for: AT ZIEELAE
Interest income 7HJ S lg A 7 (3.867) (3,177)
Interest on bank and other borrowings TREMEEZRE 7 6,466 9,543
i‘&_,,._ Interest on lease liabilities TE‘E\%LZ?J B 7 55 21
Dividends from equity investments KEREKKE Z IR E 20 (4,637) (4,107)
Share of results of associates %15 HENRZEE 18 6,389 (10,302)
Share of results of a joint venture DIR—EABCEZES 19 4,440 1,835
Unrealised profit on transaction REEE R E—R
with a joint venture eliminated on BERAR G ARER & F
consolidation 19 425 1,914
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BELEBITE
and equipment 14 80,332 69,915
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 15 4,141 3,932
Equity-settled share-based payment LARR AN #E a5 51 B IR AR (0 1
expenses ERITANRX 305 601
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BELREZER
and equipment FEE 8 606 4,789
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net  FEUBR X Z B EE 1B - JF 58 22 28,685 9,526
Impairment loss on assets classified as NEARBELREEEZRE
held for sale B 1B 26 - 12,636
Gain on lease termination BIEHE 2 W= (12) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s —RENE AR 2 W 17(c) = (3,755)
Release of deferred government grants RIS AT RE R 33 (1.808) (1,077)
Operating cash flows before EEE2BHAZ
movements in working capital #@%ﬁﬁ)ﬁé 181,874 218,841
Increase in inventories B0 (656) (1,779)
Increase in trade and bills receivables J'ELBZEE R & BRI N (49,269) (49,943)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TARTEUE « e RE th UK
other receivables Iéiijju (11,089) (8,554)
Increase in contract assets BHIEEEM (21,057) (640)
Increase in trade and bills payables J'EHEE SESE Sl 12,292 33,583
Increase in accrued liabilities and other JEGT B (& & H Ath FE A FRIEIE 0
payables 22,991 26,046
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities &% & &2 M, G 4) 13,496 (92)
Cash generated from operations REEEZES 148,582 217,462
Income tax paid EATFTS 34(a) (15,291) (17,769)
Income tax refund We el Fr A5 AR B 34(a) 1,804 -
Dividend withholding tax paid, B ETEIN - MBRERK
net of refunds 34(b) (5,345) (3,828)
Interest received BB 7 3,867 3,177

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial 21228 &= $2688 ¥ Wit IER AT EHEFR
statements. Al g iR 2 Bl 1D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILFE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=g THET FHBIT
Net cash generated from operating REEREE RS FE
activities 133,617 199,042
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Dividends received from an associate Bl —REEE AR 2R E 18 3,889 8,687
Dividends received from equity B ARG E 2 R B
investments 20 4,037 4,107
Cash outflow arising from acquisition of WEMBATIELMNIRS
subsidiaries it - (24,800)
Cash outflow arising on disposal of a HE—TERBRAREERN
subsidiary BEME 17(0) - (101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ﬁ%%% WE K& A 2 FTis
and equipment FIA 1,348 363
Payment for purchase of property, plant S‘ZHE\%E%% C B N R
and equipment (47,580) (55,502)
Capital contribution to a joint venture A—Ea2rETFE 19 (7,696) (25,434)
Receipt of government grants WCER BRI #8 B 33 10,500 -
Net cash used in investing activities REEXEBFTAZREFE (35,502) (92,680)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Dividends paid to shareholders of the BEANGI S DI NP
Company 12(b) (21,857) (21,250)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests A1t & A & 3E 12 f& e 5
of subsidiaries AT AR B 17(b) (15,886) (22,114)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEESRIA 25(b) 141,410 97,023
Repayment of bank borrowings ERIRITEE 25(b) (134,425) (152,562)
Repayment of other borrowing BEAMES 28 (25,000) -
Interest paid BEAHE 25(b) (6,526) (10,080)
Interest element of lease payments HENE Zﬂ 25(b) (55) 21)
Capital element of lease payments FHENF Z§$*B 25(b) (590) (464)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FARITERTFR (12,436) (12,357)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B ER1TE HFR 16,756 -
Net cash used in financing activities RETHFAZREFE (58,609) (121,825)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERERALWAZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in/ R FE 39,506 (15,463)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 R—B—BzERER
JANUARY £RKRSLER 257,523 267,393
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEH & 5,045 5,593
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZA=+—HBzHER
31 DECEMBER SRARELER 302,074 257,523

The notes on pages 122 to 268 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(©)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited was incorporated
on 12 November 1999 as an exempt company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office of the Company is at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is located at Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F, Telford
House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company’s issued shares have been initially listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 May 2000. With effect from 1 August
2016, the listing of the shares of the Company was transferred
from the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$") that is also the functional currency of
the Company while the functional currency of the subsidiaries
in the mainland of The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland
China” or the “PRC") is Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Company'’s
shares are listed in Hong Kong where most of its investors are
located, the Directors consider that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were approved for
issuance by the Board on 31 March 2022.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1.

—lRER

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

FFREEEERAFAN—NAIA
Ft+—A+_BEHREHESRE
HEHERQRE (F2E) MK

VYREREBERAA - AR AE G
fift ¥ = & 2 #h 4k ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands0$’“ﬂ2IEM¥ﬁﬁ¥Mi
REBNLENLEELRFAEI6HER
AE211#2110-2112F -

ARREETRNE -—TTTEFR
H+AH£E?%%A“%%EE

AR (B PR ) GEMF 2 £7 » B
ZE-RFNA-BHRE  ARAFR
19 BB AX FTGEMBEE 4R 77 »

ELira s HmEAB T ([HET))
BT AARBIZNEE
B M EARLFBE A ([ E
Wit sk [ E ) 2B AR Z2aE
BEEABARE(TARE] - ARAK
ARIZBHREE T - ERIBH
WEEMNNED BARTNEER
BUBTE2IGREMBEREE ARG
& o

' o Sy

KRAR#EE-_ET=-_—F+=A
T+ —HANEAMBHRERENR=E
::E:H :‘f‘* H @%%@ﬁt?&
i o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEE:tH %K
(a) Statement of compliance (a) E|ZAR :

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries and
the Group's interests in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following:

o Equity investments — measured at fair value

o Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale and
assets classified as held for sale — measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= i=t—h

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(b)
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Judgements made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that may have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
for the first time to these financial statements for the current
accounting year:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

o Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

. Amendment to
HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance for the current and prior years and/or the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEE Bk (&

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

(continued) *
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the associate or joint venture that
forms part of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g) and 2(l)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 S BT =

31 December 2021

—E=—4%+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture
(after applying the ECL model to such long-term interests
where applicable).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not re-measured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(l)), unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identified and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definition of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employees Benefits
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to the
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Goodwil

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored of internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the Group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating units within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are as follows.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 43.
These investments are subsequently accounted as follows,
depending on their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principle and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2.

TEEFHEK(E

(

h)

MR RES 2 I E
REBRES RRAESZRE (R
MEAR BEADRAELEY
RABINBHEMT -

BAEFRETINAEEAEBA
HEZBREEA®ER KL ILE
R REVERAFEMBEEEN
RPRAHNEE - B BRERAF
BEEBEREAVTE)FEZZE
BREBI  ZFEREZRHGREAE
BERNBEEATER - BEANEEIM
ETemIARATENHA KK
43 - ZEREMERBERE S BR
AT TEARR ©

() BAREUIZKRE
AEBERBZIEBERKED
BATHEREN

- RESRKAN HAFR
EREREEHNRETR
E(ERERAERFE
) - ENF B W
ASKRAERFFREAE -

- BBHtEZEEEEA
FEGEBEMEZE R
@B A FE)—A 8IS
HWREZENRERE
EeREAEREMEN
FoARARENED
RRBKEE DR R
ERHENEBRA -
AFENEIREME
U s R - 1 TR AR
FEBE - FEKA (R
BERANEEFE) RE
HSmEFEEREEA
R -NRILERAZK
AR REME2E KRS
NRFNEEARERE

AFE o

- BBEmRAFEGE
BIEZLAFE) W
FZRE N BB HRK
A BB E 2 R
BAFE(FEE)FTE
ZIRHE - R EH R F
B (2ENE)RIE

R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
BTSRRI RE
31 December 2021 —TE=-—F+-A=+—H
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T EEtH%K (&)

(continued) ‘
(h) Other investments in equity securities (h) RIRAFH 2 EMKE (B8)

(continued)
(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(iii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest;

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residue
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years
Computers and equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures
under construction, which is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(I)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 2(w))
during the periods of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognised
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
these leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R Rt

31 December 2021
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)
(i)

(ii)

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effect
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases.
In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were a
lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(v)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 2(k)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets

0]

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

- contract assets an defined in HKFRS 15; and

- lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probably-weighted estimate of credit loss.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate; and

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TEERARMIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade and bills receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. The Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of a debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environmental that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2.

TE

()

FTEUR (8)

EEBBRLREERE (8)

(1)

EHMTA BHNEERENK
HEZIZEER (&)
BHEEEENTE (B)
1= B /R @A 15 L7
RimeRIANEERR
BYRERARE D KEL
TR AEBEEHLBRNRE
B8 &R0 46 W R A B R
MEmTAZELERONER -
FHZEHFGE  AKE
B I EFRA KT B
A& E R R R K
A ETHNBERT
) 7 8% [ 78 B H A5 B &
g (i R E E D 8 H0
BrRBRLEEOEMF -AK
EeZEAEAENTER
EUHER BRBELRK
EEFNHBZERAKE N
TENAI SR RTIE LB -

Ems FEEERRA
MIERURE S KB LA
REZEBIATER :

ol

4H§/bm

REREHIHAMX
MRS HAE

- ERITAINFHAME
ERAFNERR AR
2R (mA)

- BEBAZEEXEER
g EHEREEE
&

— BETH - @AERE
AEEMANRESS
B A BT A
EEEAHENEEA
TRIYE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
share credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(v)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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O. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environmental that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets;

including

- construction in progress;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. *E&& Bk ()

(continued) .
EEEELREERE (B)

31 December 2021

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (1)
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued) (i) EMIFE7EEERE E)
- goodwill; and - BE R
- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s -  ARARBBARRRAR

MBARZIKRE -

statement of financial position.

WEETFAERER A&
BFAEENATHESE -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects

FHERRE 8

BEMAKRESRAE
X E R B AN B
REEZANRSE -
REFAEREBER &
FARRBERETIIZEE

current market assessments of the time value of = B IR B T 35 S RS
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where MEELEERTERR
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely B RF i B9 B AT HT IR R A7
independent of those from other assets, the REREBE WEEF
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest EXBESRARBLETR

group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use, (if determinable).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (notes

2(D(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Inventories

Inventories are assets in the form of materials or supplies
which are held for consumption in the rendering of services in
the ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount for inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such case, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

(continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(1)(@).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECLs) in
accordance with policy set out in note (2)(I).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

paid annual leave,

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds (the
“MPF") as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and other retirement
benefit schemes, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss and when incurred.

Annual contributions to pension schemes operated by
the government in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as and when incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE&:tH %K (&)

(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued) (s) EERH (&)
(i) Share-based payments (i) HUKBRGE T
The fair value of share options granted to employees is ETERECEREZAFE
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding DEREEKRA T AR
‘ increase in a share option reserve within equity. The MmBEE NN ERANZER
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial HHEBEAAER - R FEDIR
option pricing model after taking into account the REBHETREBRERTY
terms and conditions upon which the options were ZIER G ER — B 5
. granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting EEEEAGTE - WEER
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to REBEGHEZEBRERNZA
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options HeEmBELG MBEREZ
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the B A FEABLETRER
probability that the options will vest. HEEB 2R RILEB
H R -

During the vesting period, the number of share options REBHA EHGE B
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting EESE FUERT  -BRIER
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in RKEEEBERAGERERE—
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for BEE MABRFAEGT AR
the year under review, unless the original employee RERE TURNBEFE
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a NERZRFTAFEZENR
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. FAENRDBEFE2EZAN
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense BEEA - REBAE - ®R
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options B—HERI B TUNAE
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the DRBMEBEREZEEH
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only B(RBERERENIELERE
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to %Jﬁ%) M iR 8 W {2 BB R R BE
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity NISEARNRBRHTESE
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until ZEm BAIK MBI SN o 25 8
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to EREAREBEABRR B
the share premium account) or the option expires (when BIREETHE (S EERER

it is released directly to retained profits). s EIRE) SiEEER (8

HEERBIRE &N B1E -

(i) Termination benefits (iii) A5 FY

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of BIEBNDEREERE
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of Eﬂ M AEE &R IEEBSK
those benefits and when it recognised restructuring BRBEER A8 2
costs involving the payment of termination benefits. MIERFHEIMM B REER 2

B BIRHHE M T LARER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
BTSRRI RE
31 December 2021 —TE=-—F+-A=+—H
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. T EEtH%K (&)

(continued)
(t) Income tax (t) PG

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
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31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEE:THBIK (&)

(continued)
(1) Income tax (continued) () FRiSHEL(48)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and RHAB IR A o IR E L IR A R DA K 1
movements therein, are presented separately from each HegesMolR B THEHE-
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against AR BEERELEHEEER S
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred EAREEHARAHEREEITEE
tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the legally HUAE A8 AR EI B T8 & B 3K S AN HA F
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current BEE BEFEAUTHEEGNE
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: WM AR A RIS AR AT IE A
BERELEHIBEE
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the - BAHBBEEERBEMES
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a AR RAE B EIRFHE
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability EEZEH FEARFEHEZE
simultaneously; or EREEZAEE X
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they - WMELHBEENAGEMS
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation ZEEENBENAEHRR—
authority on either: MR AT R — I
W FrS AR
. the same taxable entity; or . Bl —ERTIERS ¢ o5k
. different taxable entities, which, in each future . TRIERTERE - &
period in which significant amounts of deferred EERTHEBHERAEER
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or ERIBEEREEEXK
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets IRAE R IR B B AT LAY =]
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis B &R R - 5T &
or realise and settle simultaneously. 1T F R E IR AN HAF

HEERBEARHEA
BfE KRARSERZE
ENBEZAR-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R Rt

31 December 2021
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing and amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. When the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

Revenue and other revenue

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by the
lessees of the Group’s assets under operating leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control of a service or good is
transferred to the customer or when the lessee has obtained
the right to use the asset subject to an operating lease, at
the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value-added tax
("VAT") or other sales taxes and after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other revenue (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component of the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods

Revenue from provision of waste and sewage treatment
and related services or goods are recognised when
control of the services or goods are passed to the
customers.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the services or goods is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
services or goods may be transferred over time or a point
in time. Control of the services or goods is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

- provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Revenue and other revenue (continued)

(i)  Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

If control of the services or goods transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation, which is measured
based on direct measurements of the value of individual
services or goods transferred by the Group to the
customer. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the services

or goods.

(@) Revenue from provision of hazardous waste
treatment and landfill services are recognised at
point in time when the services are rendered to the
customers from whom the Group have collected

and disposed the wastes.

(b)  Revenue from provision of industrial sewage
treatment services are recognised over time when
the services are rendered to the customers and
measured by using the meters for recording the
sewage flowing into the central sewage treatment
plant which is operated by the Group inside its
eco-plating industrial zone.

(c)  Revenue from provision of utilities (electricity, gas
and water) are recognised over time when the
utilities (electricity, gas and water) are supplied
to the customers inside the Group’s eco-plating
industrial zone and measured by the respective

meter recording devices.

(d)  Revenue from provision of management services is
recognised over time and on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant contract when
the management services are rendered to the
customer inside the eco-plating industrial zone of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Revenue and other revenue (continued)

(i)

(i)

Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

(e)

Equipment construction and installation services:
Revenue from the provision of equipment
construction and installation services is recognised
over time, by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligation.

The progress towards complete transaction of the
performance obligation in respect of equipment
construction and installation services is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract. The
likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered. If at any time the
costs to complete the contract are estimated to
exceed the remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u).

Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating lease is

recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the period covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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b THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Revenue and other revenue (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
it. Government grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Government grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TEERARMIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries outside Mainland China is Hong Kong
dollar and the functional currency of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is Renminbi.
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“presentation
currency”).

The financial statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE&:tH %K (&)

(continued)
(x) Translation of foreign currencies (continued) (x) B (48)
(i) Translation and balances (i) KB RAiZ
Foreign currency transactions during the year are FAZINBRZERSE
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at ZIHITERBRE o PA YN
; the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities BErvEBEEEBERSRE
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the BRCBEITEXRRE -ER
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting BEEBRGAERER -

period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured AN R E SE ARGt E 2 3F
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are EEEEHBERABRSE
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the BZRITEEX#®RE - 5H
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on HAEERYSHEREHAIESE
which the entity initially recognised such non-monetary KEERAEBEZRE -

assets and liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into BINEB 2 EBE IR 5B
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating ZHHERBE BB T Bf
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the AR RRRER HIRREH
transactions. Statement of financial position items are %ZH&%‘&I\EE%?@E?‘/%;‘%
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign To-MESAZELZ8ER
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. ﬁ 2 EWKFZAER TR
The resulting exchange differences are recognised HmZELEEER RS -

in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the {:Ij%i?,% LA&I\Z%E’RI i
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating REEE=R BHZEXBS
to that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or F%ﬁ 2 2t EE EE o B RE
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. mEHOEEER -
(y) Research and development costs (y) HICEER 3K
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense MEEHEEANAIEEELERF
in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development EHRALH - MRZEERBNKE
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically FPAER T R B2 Erlf7 > MEASE
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient ERRTMEREBETKRAE
resources and the intention to complete development. The TE HARIHINHEZFSTIUE
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct AL o ’éﬂﬂtﬁﬁi@ﬁ%ﬂ}ﬂ%ﬂi .
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other E}“ BTITRANEE LD EE
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the /\{m%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂljﬁﬁﬁiig
year in which it is incurred. ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁjfitﬂ °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria of classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of non-current assets (and all individual assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

31 December 2021
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(aa) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
B # R R MEE
31 December 2021 =ZT=——F+=-A=+—H
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESFHER(E)

(continued) :
(aa) BHEA L () .

(aa) Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(i) MEKTEMESER - A
RERNEASEARE

(#&)

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (5) REERAEANSEEgHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an rEBEBHECER
entity related to the Group. 1B B 2 M & &% 2R

Rz A& -

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (6) ZEBWME2a)i)AT

person identified in note 2(aa)(i). Az T AT RTES
sl k[ o

(7) A person identified in note 2 (aa)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a member

(7)  BEFE2(@a)()()FT 8% Bl 2
RAaANTHZERES

of the key management personnel of the entity (or BATENXNEBZESR
of a parent of the entity). (12 ZERZBERADZ
EEBABZKE -

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group's parent.

(8) MARERAAKEE
RARMEIEERBAER
MBEcEBREMES
B ERKE QA e

Close members of the family of a person are those family HEANTZEZRERKE AR
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced ERETRIEAEEHRFEZS
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ALTHAIREEZRALIREZZSE
KGR & -
(bb) Segment reporting 7 EB RS

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments that are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i)

(i)

Fair value of equity investments

The Company has engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair market value of those equity
investments as disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements. The Directors of the Company made
a review on the judgement of the independent
professional valuer in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for the financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques applied by the
independent professional valuer are commonly used by
other market practitioners. The estimation of fair value
of the equity investments which are unlisted equity
instruments includes the adoption of a market approach
with some assumptions supported by observable
market data or parameters deemed compatible to the
operations of those investments.

Classification of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New
Huamei as equity investments

Note 20 to the financial statements described that
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., Limited
("Qingdao Huamei”) and Danyang New Huamei
Plastics Co., Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) are
categorised as equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group although
the Group owns 28.67% and 24.5% equity interest
in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively. The Group has no significant influence over
Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei by virtue of
the contractual rights to appoint only one out of the six
directors and one of the seven directors to the board of
directors of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Functional currency of the Company

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and
making management decisions in Hong Kong dollar,
amongst others, on raising finance in Hong Kong
dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy from
its subsidiaries in the Mainland China in the way its
business is managed. Hong Kong dollar is the currency
of the transactions and events of the Company for which
the Company primarily receives and expends. In the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, its functional
currency is Hong Kong dollar.

Leased assets under operating leases

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s
property, plant and equipment were certain buildings
ancillary to sewage treatment and the leasehold land
of the eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$133,280,000
(12020 : HK$ 139,229,000) that are leased to the
customers under operating leases for use in accordance
with the arrangement of the master agreements made
between the Group and these customers. As the
industrial sewage services provided to these customers
are significant to the arrangement as a whole inside the
eco-plating specialised zone which is owned, operated
and managed by the Group, these relevant buildings
and equipment facilities are accounted for and classified
under property, plant and equipment, respectively,
instead of investment property, in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 and 2020
was HK$33,000,000. Further details are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 S BT =

31 December 2021
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

The Group assesses whether or not there are any
indicators of impairment for interest in an associate at
the end of each reporting period. Interest in an associate
is tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interest
in an associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, the Group estimates the present values
of cash flows expected to arise from continuing to
hold the investment and choose suitable discount
rates in order to calculate the present values of those
cash flows. The most significant judgements shall
refer to the impairment assessment of the Group’s
30% equity interest in Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd. (“NCIP").
As disclosed in note 18(c), during the year ended
31 December 2021, NCIP experienced certain down
time for undertaking repairs and maintenance of its
incineration facilities, and unexpected time spent and
costs incurred for carrying out repairs and maintenance
to comply with the stricter environmental rules and
regulations in the PRC, and as a result, incurred a
loss of approximately HK$41,844,000 (2020: loss of
approximately HK$2,075,000) of which the Group
shared its loss of approximately HK$12,553,000 (2020:
loss of approximately HK$622,000). As at 31 December
2021, the Group's interest in NCIP in the carrying
amount was approximately HK$145,346,000 (2020:
HK$152,924,000). The value in use of the Group’s
30% equity interest in NCIP being determined and
based on the discounted cash flow projections of NCIP
has been prepared by the management of the Group.
The key assumptions used include the discounted rate,
growth rate, budget sales and gross margin of NCIP.
The discounted rate applied is determined by using
the Capital Assets Pricing Model which reflects specific
risk of the business of NCIP, taking into account the
applicable borrowing interest rates immediately before
the projection period and the growth rate applied is
determined based on the expected long-term inflation
in the PRC, while other key assumptions relating to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows are determined
by taking into account the financial budgets approved
by NCIP's directors, past performance of NCIP and
expectations of NCIP’s management on the market
development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
T ES AR MIE

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate
(continued)

Determining whether the interest in NCIP is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use on the basis of
data available to the Group.

Based on the impairment assessment, the value in use
of the Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP exceeds its
carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and accordingly,
the Directors of the Company considered that there was
no impairment on the Group's 30% equity interests in
NCIP.

Should the parameters adopted in the calculations of
the value in use of the interest in NCIP differ materially,
impairment loss may be required to be recognised.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group’s major operating assets represent property,
plant and equipment. Management performs review
for impairment of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be
recoverable. Management considered there was no
impairment indicator of property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021

—E=—4%+=-A=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Management determines the estimated useful lives of
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the actual
useful lives of assets of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of significant
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of contract assets, trade and bills receivable and other
receivable on a forward looking basis. Lifetime ECLs on
contract assets, and trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are recognised from initial recognition
of the assets. The provision matrix is determined based
on the Group’s historical observed bad debt loss rates
of the contract assets, and trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables), at the reporting period end,
with similar credit risk characteristics and is adjusted
for forward looking estimates. Other receivables are
considered for 12-month expected credit losses unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instruments, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. In
making the judgement, management considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information,
at the reporting period, such as actual or expected
significant changes in operating results and financial
positions of the customers, past payment history of
the customers, and actual or expected adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change in the customers’
ability to settle their trade debts. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed bad debt loss
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
economic conditions and estimates are analysed by the
Group’s management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables was HK$150,022,000 which
approximated to the present value of their respective
estimated future cash flows.

The appraisals on allowance for expected credit loss
which resulted in an impairment of trade and bills
receivables of HK$28,685,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the current and
deferred taxation provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences will affect the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

As at 31 December 2021, the undistributed profits of
the profitable PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted
to RMB162,629,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$198,408,000) (2020: RMB175,106,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$206,625,000)), which the Group
can control the dividend policies in respect of the
amount and timing of future distributions by the PRC
subsidiaries and accordingly, at 31 December 2021,
the Group has made a provision of approximately
HK$12,427,000 (2020: HK$12,957,000) for deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the expected withholding tax on
distributions out of the distributable profits of the PRC
subsidiaries.

31 December 2021
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31 December 2021

. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iv)  Going concern basis assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was
drop in the Group’s operating performance, which was
resulted from unfavourable fluctuation of prices in the
industry and the expected credit loss of debtors.

Upon the gradual recovery of economic situation in the
PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price level
in the industry, together with rigorous cost measures
over its operations, to formulate a forecast which will
e generate enhanced positive operating cash flows.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
T ES AR MIE

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

(a) Revenue (a)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue represents the revenue from hazardous
waste incineration and landfill services, environmental
equipment construction and installation services,
industrial sewage treatment services and providing
related utilities and management services, and from
providing factory facilities.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by service lines is as follows:

4. Wmk ol E

Y 58

(i)

W zs 2 #17

Yoat 15 R B e bR BE M R B R
HERY RARXKBEER
ZERYE  TXHKEER
BRERBELEEREER
% AR B3R M TRE&RE
Z s e

EFamnkEmREERMA
ST :

2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with BEEEHKE
customers
Disaggregation by services lines LRI EA @D
— Revenue from hazardous waste —KEEREYRER
incineration and landfill services EIERGE W% 456,400 601,211
— Revenue from environmental —REBRSEEEN
equipment construction RHEHRE T W%
and installation services 124,496 59,419
— Revenue from industrial sewage —REATESKEEREL
treatment services and providing IR AR E L E IR
related utilities and management > gz
services 114,257 101,095
695,153 761,725
Revenue from other sources Hi Rz W=
— Leasing income from providing —RERHIMEES
factory facilities HBEWA 32,014 27,616
727,167 789,341
Timing of revenue recognition in FEEF S AN E 2 5/
respect of contracts
with customers
— At a point in time — R E (A2 456,400 601,211
— Over time —R—ERERRA 238,753 160,514
695,153 761,725
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31 December 2021 —T——4#+-F=+—A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

The amounts of transaction prices allocation to the
remaining performance obligations as at 31 December

W & R 47 AR R (48)

(a)

Wz (%)

(1)

JEAIE (T
Hz—_Z-_—F+=A
—t—B HBRBEOERBH

2021 are as follows: RGBEOEEELT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Amounts expected to be TR R AW S 2

recognised as revenue

Within one year —F R 135,105 81,762
After one year —F1& = -
135,105 81,762

The amounts of transactions prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
equipment construction and installation services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied
within 2 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In .a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Company’s executive Directors, being the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

(i) provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes;

(i) provision of environmental equipment construction and
installation services;

(iii)  provision of environmental plating sewage treatment,
management services and provision of related facilities
and utilities in an eco-plating specialised zone; and

(iv)  investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

(i) Segment assets include all tangible assets, goodwill,
interests in associates and a joint venture, and current
assets with the exception of intercompany receivables
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include current taxation, deferred tax
liabilities, trade creditors, lease liabilities, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments, with the exception of intercompany
payables and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

31 December 2021
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31 December 2021

(c)

(if)

e (i)

(iv)
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“reportable segment results”. To arrive at “reportable
segment results”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. Taxation charge is not allocated to
reportable segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
“reportable segment results”, management is provided
with segment information including revenue, interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

31 December 2021

4. Wz R aRER & ()

BRI

—E-—%+-A=+—A

(continued)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities () DE¥%E BERAEMHE)
(continued) 1
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—-+=-H=+—-HL

FE
Operating segments
4Pt
Environmental
sewage
Environmental treatment,
Environmental equipment  management
waste  construction services, Unallocated
treatment and and  utilitiesand  Plastic dyeing Segment head office
disposal installation facilities  investments sub-total  and corporate Total
SRRREE
EERE
BIRRRE RERERER LREZ RARAH
REE %% RilE  ZHRERE ARG kt# Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TR TEn Tén TEn TEn TER
Revenue from extemal ustomers S HEF Y& 456,400 12449 146,271 - 11,167 - 121,167
Other revenue AhhE - - - 4,637 4,637 - 4,631
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEFBUE 456,400 124,49 146,271 4,637 731,804 - 731,804
Reportable segment results ~ THEAPEE 46,386 3,158 20,148 4,266 71,958 - 71,958
Other net income EfgBHA 4,745 406 2,256 - 7407 - 7407
Finance income HERA 3716 358 9% 9 4,261 (121) 4,140
Finance costs HERK (3.292) (29 (1,017) - (4338) (2,183) (6,521)
Depreciation and amortisation 7% R (60,631) (523) (23,045) - (84,199) (274) (84,473)
Impairment loss on trade B2
receivables, net HEEE 58 (28,906) (@) plE] - (28,685) - (28,685)
Reportable segment assets THEIBEE 1,152,027 115,301 385,865 81,952 1,735,145 48,866 1,784,011
Additions to non-curent segment  REFFHHNEE
assets 24,824 1,235 1,684 - 27,143 1,730 29473
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEAFEE 366,606 90,431 102,447 357 563,055 38,146 601,201
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IOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —T——4#+-F=+—A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WE RO EHHE ()

(continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PEELE BEMAE(E
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bz Z-ZF+_-_A=+—81t
FE
Operating segments
aend
Environmental
sewage
i Environmental treatment,
= equipment  management
Environmental ~ construction services, Unallocated
waste treatment and utiities and  Plastic dyeing Segment  head office and
and disposal installation facilties investments sub-total corporate Total
FKRRRE
EERE
BNBREE REREEER LREE KARAH
REE gk R ZHEERE prl kit a3t
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TiEn T Tin Tin Fin Tin
Revenue from external customers — SMEFEE i 601,211 59,419 128,711 - 789,341 - 789,341
Other revenue Ephs - - - 4107 4107 - 4,107
Reportable segmentrevenue  THEAPNE 601,211 59,419 128,711 4107 793,448 - 793,448
Reportable segment results EEEEES 127,778 (3,107) 17,209 3,880 145,769 - 145,769
Other net income AHFHA 12,082 59 2 - 12,853 590 13,443
Finance income BEWA 354 34 (282) 210 316 8 402
Finance costs HERK (4,098) (1) (1.125) - (5,234) (4330 (9,564)
Depreciation and amartisation ~ FTER&H (55,497) (560) (17,626) - (73,683) (164) (73,847)
Impairment loss on assets classified 2B AH{EHEEEZ
a5 held for sale HERR (12,636) - - - (12636) - (12,636)
Impairment loss on trade B2
receivables, net HERR B8 (10330) - 804 - (9,526) - (9,526)
Reportable segment assets TREAHEE 1,220,941 B2 320,688 118,757 1,703,607 41,99 1,745,603
Additions to non-curent segment  FEFFHHNEE
assets 44731 - 21172 - 71,903 6 71,909
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEAFEE 430,780 38,895 88,142 6,981 564,798 17,468 582,266
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

"

RS IRARMEE

—2-—F+=H=+—H

4. Wz R aRER & (4

(continued)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (d) AIEEDEWE  Bxm &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ENBEZHE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Revenue g
Consolidated revenue A W 727,167 789,341
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %> &B & Yz 2 % 4% = =
Other revenue Hab gz 4,637 4,107
Reportable segment revenue EEEG R & 731,804 793,448
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit A] #5265 F 77,958 145,769
Unallocated head office and AOBRBARCERT - F5
corporate expenses, net (17,604) (19,222)
Consolidated profit before taxation 454 B %1 Bl 7 60,354 126,547
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A HE D EEE 1,735,145 1,703,607
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EC 4280 (¥ & &
assets 48,866 41,996
Consolidated total assets RAEBERE 1,784,011 1,745,603
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities ARESEaE 563,055 564,798
Unallocated head office and corporate KO ECAAILLDEEE
liabilities 38,146 17,468
Consolidated total liabilities meERaE 601,201 582,266
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31 December 2021 —&_——

F#+=-A=+—H

(continued)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

Wz R 5 bR & (4F)

(e) Geographic information (e) @B}
All revenue and non-current assets of the Group are generated KREBZRHBEWRRNRIERBEETD
from and located in the PRC respectively. Accordingly, no DRIEEXE RMAFE - Al - I
analysis by geographical basis is presented. mEYRMRE S 2D e
(f) Major customers f) FEXEF
Revenue of approximately HK$42,136,000 (2020: BE-Z-Z—F+=ZA=+—H1L
HK$91,689,000) representing 5.8% (2020: 11.6%) was FE KEmEP58% (ZZE_FF:
S derived from a single external customer for the year ended 11.6% ) B1#4742,136,000/8 7T (=&
“‘:L\',._ 31 December 2021, which was attributed to the segment of —ZF 4 191,689,000 ) K B B
environmental equipment construction and installation (2020: — IR BEBRNIRREEREE
the segment of environmental waste treatment and disposal REESHL(ZZT_ZF  BEYIER
services). REBREERBEDEL)
Save as disclosed herein, there was no other major customer BRAXBEIN BHE_Z-_—FK
accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue of the —E-EF+-A=+—HLHF
Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. B UEHGMTEREHAEEE
Wz£10% A £ o
5. OTHER REVENUE 5. Hinix 2
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Dividend income from equity investments at % B i% 38 E fbh 2 [ U 25 3%
fair value through other comprehensive NEFBEBARZBREEKRE Z
income fx B M A 4,637 4,107
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"

RS IRARMEE

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

6. OTHER NET INCOME 6. HiFIAN
2021 2020
—B=—F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHIT
Refunds of Value-added tax (note (i) BETRE (A 5203)) 2,846 5,013
Government grants (note (ii)) BT 8 B (B 77i)) 1,331 1,641
Release of deferred government grants R SE TR S R B R 1,808 1,077
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — B ARz W = 3,755
Sundry income FIERA 1,422 1,957
7,407 13,443

Notes: Htaz

@)

(i)

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries
of the Group that engage in the environmental operations, comply
with the requirements in the PRC and pay Value-added Tax
(“VAT") at 6% (2020: 6%) on invoiced income are entitled to a
refund up to 70% of the net VAT paid. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to such tax refunds.
There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
tax refunds in the future.

There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipt of these grants.

@)

(ii)

RIFREBISHBRER - LHBR
RER - BFPBEABEBRT I AR
B A6% (ZE_FF : 6%) X [T
ER(EGER]) 2AEEHB ARG
AZRY RZECHBERFEN
70% - ZERB W EMFRBIT 2K
HREMKATE - BERELAEE
ABEEEESERER -

OB 7% %5 78 B 3 R Y A OR PR 1T 2 6 1
HEMHAEIE -

2558 FFRAEEBRAA
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31 December 2021

7. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 7. BAE YN B A
2021 2020
—EB- & —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance income from: BT ZmERA :
Interest income on bank deposits RITHFRZFEWA 3,867 3,177
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEW S (F1B) F58 273 (2,775)
Total finance income EE= PN L 4,140 402
Interest expenses on: EBETIZ2MEFAY -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 5,627 7,841
Other borrowing HihEE 839 1,957
Lease liabilities HERE 55 21
Less: interest expense capitalised (note) o Bz R B R (M) - (255)
Total finance costs mlE A AR RE 6,521 9,564
Net finance costs il & R AN F R 2,381 9,162

Note:
There was no borrowing costs being capitalised in the current year,

and the borrowings costs being capitalised in previous year at a rate of
5.225% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
T ES AR MIE

31 December 2021

— = —

s

—%+=-A=+—H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. B&HianiEF
Profit before taxation was arrived at after charging: R B R i A T A8 0Bk T 51 %508
2021 2020
—E-— & —E Tl
HK$'000 HK$’'000
TER T T
Auditor’s remuneration: % ERAD B &
— audit service — BB 1,350 1,230
- non-audit services — R 180 170
1,530 1,400
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREBITE
equipment 80,332 69,915
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 4,141 3,932
Operating lease charges: minimum lease KEBERY  RERENK
payments
- land and buildings in Hong Kong —BRAZ LM EEF 1,080 1,080
— landfill in the PRC —HEZEES 120 115
1,200 1,195
Other operating expenses: HigEms
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEEEREBEZ
plant and equipment E1BFE 606 4,789
Costs on litigation settlements and FRAMBERERERZ
non-compliance incidents &M 1,348 2,727
Legal and professional expenses FRREERY 4,290 5,132
Research and development expenses kel 7,775 7,389
Other miscellaneous expenses HihMmEAx 3,807 4,488
17,826 24,525
Staff costs: BIMA :
- Directors’ emoluments —EEM= 4,091 4,114
- salaries, wages and other benefits of —EBEE(EEBRMN) 2H& -
employees other than directors Iﬁ&ﬁ@@ﬂ 91,852 84,110
— contributions to retirement benefits RIKTE FIFH B
schemes 12,738 4,690
- equity-settled share-based payment — AR AT EiR R D
expenses EEM AL 305 601
Total staff costs a8 T kAN 108,986 93,515
Cost of sales (note) SHE KA (#7F) 535,502 569,558

Note:

Included in cost of sales were raw materials in the amount of
HK$74,963,000 (2020: HK$72,609,000), water and electricity in
the amount of HK$41,708,000 (2020: HK$39,771,000), staff costs
of HK$49,289,000 (2020: HK$41,711,000), and depreciation of
HK$78,289,000 (2020: HK$67,687,000), and of which staff costs
and depreciation have already been included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above.

Hat

ﬁﬁ%ﬁf«$ BERME 74,963,000/ T
(ZZ2 == F :72, 609 ooo,%m K E
41,708, 000/%71: (ZZ =T 4 : 39,771,000
#7T) ~ B LAk 249,289,000/ T (= F —
T4 1 41,711,000 ) K ITE78,289, ooo
BIT(ZZT=_ZT4F :67,687,00087T) *
o ;Iﬁﬁz;ﬁ&ﬁ%aﬁ)\im&sﬁzm
BTN -

—-FER HFRFREEBERAF
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

9. EEME

RIBEBENF622EFE R AEIE
3BMELE AR (REEFEMNEZER) R

UEY)

MREMBPBEZIESHESOT

Retirement
Director Salaries and Benefits scheme
fee allowance inkind  contributions Total
BT E
E3pe HeRHEE BENAE #R okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET TER
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ=-F=-%+=f
=+-HLEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. XI Yu EXfA 36 1,653 - 18 1,707
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNRET 194 - - - 194
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica® Z30 L 180 - - - 180
Mr. ZHENG Zhen" Lol 66 - - - 66
Ms. ZHANG Shuo' ERbenl 84 - - - 84
Ms. LIU Yu Jie AxAut 180 - - - 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BERLL - 1122 - 18 1,140
Independent non-executive Directors B H#/7EZ
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RRE®T 180 - - - 180
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Bgla %t 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred AHRELE 180 - - - 180
1,280 2,775 - 36 4,091
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZE-ZE-ZF+_f
=+-HLEE
Executive Directors HirEZE
Mr. XI Yu X5k 34 1,655 - 18 1,707
Mr. SONG Yu Qing REBEE 135 - - - 135
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RPNBELTT 194 - - - 194
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica®™ Z NI 4z £ 45 - - - 45
Ms. ZHANG Shuo® RELLO 180 - - - 180
Ms. LIU Yu Jie A ALt 180 - _ _ 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BERLA - 1,115 - 18 1,133
Independent non-executive Directors BV FH7TEE
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RRERT 180 - - - 180
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael B &I4T 2 4 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred B4 180 - - - 180
1,308 2,770 - 36 4,114

Notes:

(i) Mr. ZHENG Zhen was appointed as executive Director with effect
from 20 August 2021.

(i)  Ms. ZHANG Shuo was not re-elected at the annual general
meeting of the Company and retired as executive director at the
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2021.

(iii)  Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was appointed as executive Director with
effect from 1 October 2020.
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(iii)

BELEAA-_T-_—FNA=-+H#E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No payment or benefit was paid in respect of the termination of the
services of Directors during the year (2020: Nil).

10.INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2020:
one) is Director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four (2020:

IR RRMITE

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

9. EEM & (&)

RARFERER - AEEIWERE S (B &
SEAREBEMNBEARE B NBER 28 ‘
B XEAHEBRE - BE_T-—F
F_E-EE+_A=+—HILEE
WEEERRT A -

AEEIERERRLEEETRE M
REME - (ZT_FF : |)

10.58#H AT

RERBHALER  —&R(ZT-TF:
— ) REF  HEE RN HOBE -
HigmE (CRoFE mA) ALER

four) individuals during the year are as follows: e BEMT

2021 2020

—B-—F —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries and other benefits e kHmEF 2,201 2,194

Discretionary bonuses 15 TEAL 3,652 4,852

Contributions to retirement schemes RRTE M ET B 4R R B 399 173
Equity-settled share-based IR A #e s st B AR 0

payment expenses EERENRX 254 527

6,506 7,746

The emoluments of the four (2020: four) individuals with the highest

mE(ZFE_FF :OB)&ESHFALZ

emoluments fell within the following bands: & BT 5|4ER :

2021 2020
—E-— & —E T
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A B

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B 48 B (BT)
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z &L 21,000,000 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,000/8 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/%7c£2,500,0007% 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7t £3,000,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7c £3,500,0007% 7T = 1
4 4
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10.&= & #H AL (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RARFERN REBWER LU (=
above four (2020: four) individuals as an inducement to join, or T-TF O NETZNENEEATBE
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. EmMEARE B INBEE EE A
BERL A (E -
11.INCOME TAX M. ER&EH
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) FREEmKRANZIHIBIE
or loss represents:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current tax B HA B 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENSH = -
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI RSN 17,479 19,756
Over-provision in respect of prior years i@ F /& B8 B & (4,355) (126)
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax AR B TR N 5,345 3,828
18,469 23,458
Deferred tax B E
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax W R B TR0 (5,345) (3,828)
Origination and reversal of TR R 8 B Bt B =5
other temporary differences (5,688) 4,871
7,436 24,501
Notes: Btaz

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgins Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgins
Islands.

(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the years.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(iii)  The Company'’s subsidiaries in PRC are subject to a statutory
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate of 25% (2020:
25%), except for the subsidiaries which are qualified as the
High and New Technology Enterprise in PRC that would
be entitled to enjoy a preferential CIT at the rate of 15%
(2020: 15%). Dividend distribution from subsidiaries in
PRC to the holding companies in Hong Kong is subject to a
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% (2020: 5%),
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(ii)

(iii)

BEHEHERRAERLES
ZHRAFOED  AEBETAE
MERBELEBRELEBHM
ERMASH -

ERNBHEAFEGTER
mmﬂ2m5%<—7f7¢

16.5%) i H - AR AEER

HE-_Z - 4FrR-_T_FF
+- A=+ BUHFETESE
EREERTIFESN At
EEIHREBRGBEE -

KRAGEZHENEBRQB AR
25% (ZZZFF 1 25%) 2 i
T%Wq/iiﬁiﬁﬁ (2
NER]) EFEPESHE
WT@%E%ZWE/AE%&I\'
ZEWNBRRIBEEZE15% (=
T-FF 15%) ZEBRDER
\%MR$ EF'MT% ElDES
YRR DR 2 BB ZBIES %
_7_7$ 5%) 2 C #8878
M EAT -
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B IEMEE

31 December 2021 —E——4+=f=+—H

11.INCOME TAX (continued) 11.Er 7% (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) MERBAMERFE Z2HIER
accounting profit at the applicable rates: YEHESEFNERMOT :
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 — EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Profit before taxation BR Bt Al 2 R 60,354 126,547
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ¥ZtREEF % al A & ~ @ FH
calculated at the rates applicable in MEAE2BRBAINEF 2
the tax jurisdiction concerned FHEMEA 17,694 34,551
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT%D%RE%SEZ%RF? & 6,238 9,678
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERERBWAZH B E (1,721) (6,306)
Over provision in respect of prior years i@ 7 4F /£ B 55 & & (4,355) (126)
Tax effect of temporary differences  CDHEREHEZE s MK T L
recognised (5.688) 4,871
Effect of income tax preferential HEAEHEERE ZE
policy in PRC (4,732) (18,167)
Tax expense for the year AEEHRERAE 7,436 24,501
12.DIVIDENDS 12.81E 2
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (@) AEEENAQNA DK
Company attributable to the year RARE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Final dividend proposed after the RBEPREEZRBRE
end of the reporting F[%0.00397% T
period of HK$0.0039 (ZZE=ZTF :0.007287T)
(2020: HK$0.0072) per share 11,839 21,857

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REBEHPREERIK HZHJHE%E'
WENREMAERARAGE  BE
FARABRRREERRBFAS
EHUER - TRIEE -

2558 FFRAEEBRAA
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E S R 2R P =T

31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS (continued) 12. kB (#8)
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) FAH#ERIKNT E—F K
Company attributable to the previous financial FERNARAIE=RRKRE
year, approved and paid during the year Z IR B
2021 2020
—E-— & —TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
‘ Final dividend in respect of the HEENENEN F—BHK
‘1 g previogs finahcial year, approved A > SRR
and paid during the year of SH80.00725 5T (—F — =4 -
HK$0.0072 (2020: HK$0.0070) ST =
per share 0.00707%7T) 21,857 21,250
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8 &EF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BIREXRZEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on RATIER ANEEERERENTHE
the profit attributable to owners of the Company of RARA B HEA A FE{R & 740,419,000
HK$40,419,000 (2020: HK$74,576,000) and the weighted BT (ZZ ZZ 4 : 74,576,00078 7T)
average number of 3,035,697,018 (2020: 3,035,697,018) EARBFANBETERRMET
ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year as ¥9%§3,035,697,018f% (ZE ZFF :
follows: 3,035,697,018/%) 2 St E AT :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERMEFITH
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-THF
Ordinary shares in issue at R—A—BR+-—A=+—H
1 January and 31 December > B RTERER 3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018
Weighted average number of R+—B=+—BzL@mmn
ordinary shares at 31 December ANAE S ¥ 8 3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018
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13.EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

13.8R&E% (&)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$40,419,000 and the weighted average number of
3,037,681,364 ordinary shares of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b)

B IR s

FirEsa A
REBEE_E-_—&E+=-H=F7
BIEFE SREBTRFNDHER
A AR A FEAE & $140,419,000
BT R AR A @R T
3,037,681,364 25t E T :

LZERMAEF SR (#E)
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF

Weighted average number of RT+ZA=+—HZE@EK
ordinary shares at 31 December IR 8

Effect of deemed issue of shares RIEAR A BRERTE
under the Company's share BITROBOTE

option scheme

3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018

1,984,346 =

Weighted average number of ordinary A+ =-A=+—B2zZ2 @K
shares (diluted) at 31 December DNREE 9 & (5E)

3,037,681,364 3,035,697,018

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no assumption was
made for the exercise of share options because the exercise
price of share options exceeded the average market prices of
the Company’s shares. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share
was the same as basic earnings per share for 2020.

REBEEZZE_FTF+_A=+—H
EFE HRBERENTEERR
RRABRMEFHETE - B ERE
REREETE AL —F=F
FHERESRFNNEGRELZT
HHE

2558 FFRAEEBRAA
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 5% » BB R&

188

Computers
Construction Plant and and Furniture Motor
Buildings  inprogress  machinery  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
BT FRIE HERRE EKEREE HAREE AE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn TAL T TiEn TEL T FiEn
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-EF-f-H 508,563 95,613 419,325 13,482 4,603 9,302 1,050,888
Brchange adjustments EiAZ 30428 2,525 23,74 881 29 479 58,347
Additions RE 950 59,156 4,228 2,201 1,542 3,832 71,909
Disposals He (57) - (11,221) (2,056) 42) (1367 (14783)
Transfer 2R 82,378 (116,556) 27,235 6,943 - - -
Reclassified as assets held for sale BN BARIELEZBE (3.074) (25,697) (4,684) (220) - (161) (33,836)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-EF+-A=1-HR
1 January 2021 “Z--£-8-H 619,188 15,041 458,627 21231 6,393 12,085 1,132,565
Exchange adjustments EqEE 20,973 188 15,747 732 216 363 38,219
Additions RE 118 15,739 4,482 2,186 285 3,695 27,505
Disposals e (69) - (9,078) (255) (92) (855) (10,349)
Transfer B 12,774 (25,133) 12,275 79 5 - -
Reclassified as assets of adisposal B HEAR(EHE 2 HERA
group held for sale LEE (6,600) - 1) - (1) - (6,673)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--E+ZF=1-H 647,384 5,835 481,981 23973 6,806 15,288 1,181,267
Depreciation and impairment WERAE
At 1 January 2020 RZE-E5-f-H 119,811 - 138,017 1376 1,683 7,153 274,040
Exchange adjustments EHAR 7327 - 8,602 378 110 290 16,707
Charge for the year ERANG 23,376 - 41,67 2,784 933 1,151 69,915
Eliminated on disposals REEEYHE (12) - (6,282) (1,898) (37) (1,362) (9,591)
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENNEARIENE BE (3.074) - (4,684) (220) - (161) (8,139)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZEFF-A=1-HR
1 January 2021 “Z--£-8-H 147,428 - 177324 8,420 2,689 7071 342,932
Exchange adjustments AR 5,451 - 6,736 324 106 186 12,803
Charge for the year ERk 21,325 - 46,334 3711 1,191 1,771 80,332
Eliminated on disposals RIHERYHE (56) - (7,210) (230 (81) (818) (8,395)
Reclassified as assets of adisposal ~~ BHAEABELEY
group held for sale HERAZEE (1952) - - - - - (1,952)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-§+-B=+-A 178,196 - 223,184 12,25 3,905 8,210 425,120
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2021 R-E--F5+-F=1-H 469,188 5,835 258,797 11,748 2,901 1,078 755,547
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-EF+-A=1-H 471,760 15,041 281,303 12,811 3,704 5014 789,633
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R I RE

—F-—Ft+-A=t—H

14. 9% - BB E=E (8)

31 December 2021

(continued)

The buildings are situated in the PRC with leases held within 50
years.

As at 31 December 2021, certain property , plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$108,107,000 (2020: HK$114,782,000) had been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 39).

At 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment there were certain factory buildings ancillary to
industrial sewage treatment erected on the leasehold land in the
eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$133,280,000 (2020: HK$139,229,000) that
were leased to customers for use in accordance with the contractual
arrangement thereunder the master agreements entered into
between the Group and the customers entering the eco-plating
specialised zone which is owned, operated and managed by the
Group. As the centralised industrial sewage treatment services
provided by the Group to the customers are significant to the
arrangement as a whole inside the eco-plating specialised zone,
these relevant buildings and equipment facilities being leased to the
customers are accounted for and classified under property, plant
and equipment in the consolidated financial statements. At the end
of both reporting periods, no impairment was recognised on the
property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Movements of carrying amount of the assets, primarily the buildings,

REETURTE  BR0FENAE
Ao
R-B_—F+-_A=+—A0 KHEE

4 £49108,107,0008 T (Z T =T 4 :
114,782,000 7m) 2 & TWHE WE &
BEETER (EARNEBEFMERKET
=B 2R ([5E39) -

RZZEZ—F+=-_A=+—H8 it AR
EEYME BERRBEPNERREE
EXEHELI M EMEHERIES
KEEMETIRAE  EEmMESH
%) /133,280,000 L (ZFE =& F :
139,229,000/ 7T) * B IR B AN & B B2 #
ABHAEEEELE ZEREEZRR
BREXR 2BV ZEHZEETS
MR EETZERFPER BRASE
EmEFPRERHIEFRAITEIFKEER
BHRREFESZERACEELHEMS
BEX BUWMEHBEFREFLPZHEEEF
REBEEIREEE T B REAREE
WDERYE BMEREEET - AM
BHREHAR TEHR T -_—FR=
T_TFE+_A=+—RHZUE BE
ﬁ1ﬁﬁ§aux/}a€'f§ °©

RELLEHEHETEPNEE(ZER

leased out to customers under operating leases are as follows: BF)ZEREEZHNT
2021 2020
—F-—F —F-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 139,229 133,005
Transfer from construction in progress RAEEIREA - 8,717
Depreciation e (10,423) (9,715)
Exchange adjustments PE X A 4,474 7,222
At 31 December R+t=—RA=+—H 133,280 139,229

Leasing income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$32,014,000 (2020: HK$27,616,000), details of which are
included in note 4 to the financial statements.

AEBFARR 2 HEWAA32,014,000
BT (ZZE T 27,616,000/ 7T) -
HBEENR Y IEIREM 4 -

P55 FFRRAREBARAA
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

: l THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e E R

15. EHIEEE

HK$’'000
TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—F—H 157,832
Exchange adjustments P& N & 4,624
Release on lease termination THE & IERRRR (693)
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENOBEARBIEHEZEE (2,729)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZEZZF+-_A=+—HRK
—E-_—%—fF—H 159,034
Exchange adjustments BE 3, 3 & 2,632
Additions arising from new leases M EHESIRZAE 1,968
Release on lease termination THE K IERRRR 311
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group held for sale E#F DB ABELHEZEE (20,930)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-_—5+=-A=+—H 142,393
Depreciation wE
At 1 January 2020 RZT-_TF—H—H 26,273
Exchange adjustments BE 3, SR B 666
Charge for the year F AR
— land use rights — T A 3,486
- office premises —WAEYE 446
Release on lease termination THE K IERRRR (693)
Reclassified as assets held for sale BN EARBIELECEE (784)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZB_ZF+_H=+—BRK
—E-—4F—HF—H 29,394
Exchange adjustments BE 3, 3 & 439
Charge for the year FRk
— land use rights — T AR 3,539
- office premises VNS 602
Release on lease termination THE R ERRBR (242)
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group held for sale EFHEABIELHE L EHE 2 BE (2,392)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB--%+ZRA=+—H 31,340
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZEBE--%+ZA=1+—-H 111,053
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTF+-FA=+—H 129,640
As at 31 December 2021, certain land use rights with an aggregate R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 EK@EE
carrying amount of approximately HK$28,830,000 ( 2020 : /.:.\,\,Z’jzs 830,000 L (ZZE T F :

HK$28,523,000) had been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 39).

28,523,000 ) v AT L fEAEE T
IR EAREBEMERRBITRE ZE
R (MF7E39)
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

31 December 2021

B RS R I RE

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

15. EHIEEE (8

RERMEEEN YT BENEREEERE
BEafmT :

2021 2020
—E-— & TE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Ownership interests in land use rights held #F{EE BM T iFERENME
for own use, carried at depreciated cost in  #E#Ezs - £ B IR ITE R A
PRC with remaining lease terms between  ABE - 8 FHEIN T
30 and 50 years 30&E504%F 37,277 55,911
Ownership interests in land use rights BEHREETFERN L
held for leasing to customers, carried at ~ {F FARERFr AR -
depreciated cost in PRC with remaining  7£ 1 B3R # & pk A ABE -
lease terms between 30 and 50 years R TN EN T 302 504F 63,227 64,598
Ownership interests in land use rights held /@ A+ E REL
for own use, carried at depreciated cost ~ PRE#EHERS - FEP EIR
in PRC with terms to be renewed by WERAAR  HHERZAE
government (note) RN ER (4722) 9,099 9,003
Office premises leased for own use, carried B FRBAER AIBFT - £+ HIR
at depreciated cost in PRC, with remaining #T & A A SR » £ T f 21
lease terms of more than 1 year and less #8814 & D A5
than 5 years 1,450 128
111,053 129,640

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, certain land use rights with carrying amount
of approximately HK$9,099,000 (2020: HK$9,003,000) together
with property, plant and equipment with total carrying amount of
approximately HK$117,752,000 (2020: HK$124,375,000) located
at Xiangshui, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC is subject to the
requirement of new incineration facility to be further constructed
thereon in order to comply with the stipulated minimum floor-area
ratio by 23 November 2020. The Group has submitted a development
plan for constructing new incineration facility on the land, which is still
pending governmental approval up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, once the government approval for the construction of new
additional incineration facility is obtained, the construction work will be
commenced accordingly and there would be no material impact to the
Group's operation and financial position.

At the end of both reporting periods, there were no impairment
recognised on the Group's land use rights.

Hat

R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—"HB URHPH
IR A B T 2K % BR M 1B 49 49,099,000
BT (ZZT-F 4 :9,003,00087) 2E T
T REERRMEAEL A117,752,000
B (ZE T 1 124,375,000 7T) 2 W
¥ BELEE BETEHEE—TE
REMERBZERL UER_ZT_TF
+— A+ =HAFEAFBEZR/NBHE
Ko AEECRINRZTHELZTNER
MHERASE BEEZSRAVERRI
HEEHMBESRFE ARFEERE
— BB BT E A EINT BRI
BEATRBEREEN BT HAEE
VEBRMBERRIENERNTE -

RMEREHR TERAEE 2 £
FRHETERIRE ©

B8 HFRERREERRAA
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. B &
2021 2020
—EB-—&F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZEHEE 33,000 33,000
Impairment loss recognised in consolidated R4RAIBRRBER ZRERIE
statement of profit or loss - -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZA=+—HZE®EE 33,000 33,000

Goodwill is attributable to the business segment of environmental
integrated waste treatment services that arose from the acquisition
of 82% equity interest of NUET(JS) in 2007. NUET(JS), through its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the provision of environmental waste
integrated treatment and disposal services in the Jiangsu Province,
PRC.

Impairment test assessment

The goodwill, together with related property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$72,705,000 (2020: HK$81,311,000),
and land use rights with carrying amount of HK$8,447,000 (2020:
HK$8,683,000), are allocated to NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU under the operating segment of environmental waste
treatment services.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RRGEBEMEERBER S HDEMGRD
BR_ZETLFWENTFT OLE) 82%
BEREE FFOIRK) EBENER
ARHFEIGENRERHERBEYRE
K BRIR AR o

BRI FE A

S R BRE(E A72,705,00008 7T (=&
— T4 81,311,000 70) 2 HHEME
[ 5 % 5% 4% LA K BR T B /8,447,000 7T
TEZ T F4F 8,683,000/ 7T) 2 L (E
BEDISEZHFOIH) S8  fFAIR
REVEEREEESHFBE T2 —ED
HBE S EE BN -



16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R I RE

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

31 December 2021

16. & (&)

Impairment test assessment (continued)

As at 31 December 2021,
amount of this CGU was determined by Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (2020: CBRE Limited),
an independent firm of professional valuers, on the basis of
value-in-use calculations which use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, that are discounted to their present values at a pre-tax
discount rate of 19.50% (2020: 17.85%). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an annual growth rate of
approximately 2.0% (2020: 2.0%) which does not exceed the
long-term growth rate for the waste treatment industries. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relates to the
estimated cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimation is based the CGU's past performance,
future business plan and management’s expectations for the future

the assessment on the recoverable

market development.

BB R B (8)
RZEZ—F+=-A=+—8 " HiR
CEEBEM 2RI WESEEET 2 EH
?’@i%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁmﬂlﬁ%fr@%@ﬁ(éf
B)BRAR([EABEER]) (ZE=F
ﬁiﬁ%@@&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ)%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ
BEr -FAEAEMAENTRABREEEE
HERERAFTHEACHBRBEFEZR
EmETEA  WIATATITIRE19.50% (=
ToTF1785%) TBEEHBE-R
FHEZREREEBL20% (ZF =
ﬁi 20%) 2 FEBEREE  HWER

MEVEBTECRAKRE - BEG
BeRA/ REBBZEABETEZ

EMTEBREABEMBEZHERER
-? CREETBRERSEAEMBAR
B AREBFHEREEEHRRMS
BRIBAMIED ©

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FTHREBEEMMERAZTFERFZROT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—&F —TE-THF
Gross profit margin EF = 58.3% 57.8%
Compound annual growth rate in BhEHRZESFIEREK
the initial five-year period 2.1% 2.2%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows FLAMETEZHZRERE
beyond the budget period 2R =R 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the ERARRERETERZ
cash flow projections FATITIR X 19.50% 17.85%

Since the recoverable amount of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU, to which goodwill and related property, plant and equipment
are allocated, exceeded the aggregate carrying amount of these
assets of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified CGU, no impairment
loss on goodwill and the relevant assets was considered necessary at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Sensitivity analysis of unforeseen downsize effect to the recoverable
amount of the CGU had been performed on each of the following
scenarios with the assumptions of (i) gross profit margin down by
5%, (ii) compound annual growth rate in the initial five-year period
down by 2%, or (iii) pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections up by 2%, respectively. There was no impairment loss
on goodwill and the relevant assets of the CGU was considered
necessary at 31 December 2021 in each of these scenarios.

HRCESERERERYNE BEX
RE2HT OLE) &8 (B A—BRE
EEEM) 2AIKREEEBEHTT OTH)
S8 BrHR—EREELEM) NZSE
BEZAEREE Bt R_FT_—F
R—_Z-_ZFE+-_RA=+—HB BER
HEEERESBEAFLRMERR -

HRGELABUAMKROEENTAIFAER
BRYEEI T RBERETHRRED

i B BRROENERFED5% : (iNE I
FHENFESEBREHMD2%  H(ii)&

A B3R € 7 2 7808 /9 B B4 A0 37 38 =38 0
2% B ELEBNUZEERHABEER
B —F+_A=t+-—BHBAEEA
EL R AR -
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B AR ZH/E
(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal (a) HEXEAEZEBRR T _-_—&+—
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of A=+—R%& EEXAEZE
the Group as at 31 December 2021: EMBRRZFFBOT -
Proportion of ownership interest
ERERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY m-8
il kR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELARE IEXR
Ever Champ (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
ELGEN SN 0 ERAE 10,000 % &gk
Fair International Investment Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Enterprise Limited company
ERARRACEERAT (0 ERAA 10,0000 % Bt RAZK
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
ERTEENBENRERAA & BERAF 10,000 % &% RERR
Fair Time International Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 99,327,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("Fair Time") company
EEERERAA (ER]) 0 ERAF 99,327,000/ % &t &2k
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental ~ PRC Wholly owned Registered RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Engineering Management Limited* domestic and paid-up consultancy and
("Jiangsu New Universe enterprise RMB12,000,000 engineering services
Engineering”)
THTHRERIRERERART hE REBELE H AR #50,000,0007 & RRKEHDR
(T&FHIR) R AR12,0000007 TERE
Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Technologies Limited* owned enterprise  HK$80,000,000 consultancy
TERFRRIRERAA ket NEBELX 71 S0 7280,000,000% T RREMHN
New Sinotech Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("NSIL") Hong Kong company of US$1 each
HERRERRRA (NSIL]) LRRRER/ER  EROA 50000006 B REEIXT REBR
LERK
New Universe (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,800,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company of US§1 each
HF(RE) RERRAT LBRLEE/EE  BROW 1,800,000 SR EE1%T RELR
LEBR



B IR s

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 RMB AR ZRE ()
(continued)
(a) The following list contains the particulars of the principal (a) BEFEAERNR_ZE_—HF+= S
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of A=+—B%#%& EEHBEZE 1
the Group as at 31 December 2021: (continued) ERBARIZERBOT : (B)

Proportion of ownership interest

FREREL
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BEfR AEEY m-#
WEAAAR AMRIREELE  RRERIKX  AREAEE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
New Universe (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
W5 (PE)BRAT B BERAF 1,000,000 & &% REBR
New Universe Environmental British Virgin Islands/  Limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Protection Investment Limited Hong Kong company of US$1 each
HTRRRERRAR AERAEE/EE  BRAF 4,000,000 ERAEE 1% REZNK
LEk
New Universe Environmental Hong Kong Limited liability 21,640,000 ordinary shares 82% - 82%  Investment holding
Technologies (Jiang Su) Limited company
("NUET(S)")
FFRRIE (IH)ERAT Bk BRAA 21,640,000 £ &R RERRK
(I35 (r&)))
New Universe International Ecology British Virgin Islands/  Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
HFERLRARLR AERLEE/EE  ARAF 10,000 EHRAE XL REZHK
New Universe International Group Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
HFEREX (5B ER0A B BRAT 10,000 % Bk RERR
New Universe International Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
HFERFRERAT ABRAEE/EE  BRLA 10,000 5 REEIZTL REBR
New Universe Recyclable Investments — British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
NFERBEREBRLA LRRNBER/ER BROA 10000% BREEIZ T2 REBR
Ak
New Universe Recyclables Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
FFERALTAERAT Bk BRAA 10,000 & &K REZk

—E_—-F58% FFEFREFEEEARL2F 195
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2021: (continued)

RMB AR ZRE (F)

(a) BWEFEAEBN_ZT—_—F+=
B=+—RZE#H LEXAGBZE
ZMBERRZFFBOT : (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

FREREL
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BEfR AEEY m-#
WEARER AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
Smartech International Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong company of US$1 each
EREREEERAT ABRAEE/EE  BRLA 1,000000R BREEIXT REBR
LERK
Smartech Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 70,380,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Asset holding
company
EMZRERAA B BRAT 70,380,000 &% AER
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Dormant
company
ENEBERERAT Bk BRAA 1005 B EEex
Smartech Services Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 2 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Provision of
("Smartech Services") company management services
ENERERAF(ENER) Bk BRRA WEER REERRS
Sugian New Universe Environmental ~ PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental
Solid Waste Disposal Limited* owned enterprise  HK$97,000,000 hazardous waste
treatment and
disposal services
BETHERENRERRAT hE EERLE it R 297,000,000 7 RRERENEERE
ER%
Taixing Xin Xin Resources Recycling PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100% Holding land and
Company Limited* owned enterprise  HK$30,000,000 buildings
RENFARBLNARRAT HE IEEELE 3 R 2230,000,000% 7 RETHRET
Xiangshui New Universe PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Environmental Technology Limited equity enterprise ~ HK$50,750,000 hazardous waste
(“Xiangshui New Universe") treatment and
disposal services
EKFTRAMBARAT HE haELE FH R 250,750,000% RRERENRERR
(18K 1) BR%
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2021: (continued)

31 December 2021

(a) BMERXEAXRKER

B IR s

:Z:—¢+:HE+—Em
17.RMHB AR ZEE (8)

== S

A=+—B%#& BEXBEZE
EMBARZHBAOT : (B)

Proportion of ownership interest

FREREL
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BEfR AEEY m-8

WEAAAR AMRIREELE  RRERIKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR

Yancheng New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% = 100%  Business operation
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  US§700,000 ceased
("Yancheng New Universe")

EATHERENRERRAT hE NEBELX R R 700,000% T BRILEESR
([E55%])

Yancheng NUHF Environmental PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Technology Limited* equity enterprise ~ HK$83,000,000 hazardous waste
("Yancheng NUHF") treatment and

disposal services

BT RLRRIRARRA il THRELE R4 283,000,000% RRERENRERR
([EsmTEL)) ERE

Zhenjiang New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Environmental
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise ~ US$10,850,000 hazardous waste
("Zhenjiang New Universe") treatment and

disposal services

BINTERENRERRAA hE IEERLE it R &2 10,850,000% T RRERENRERE
(T3] ER#%

Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco- Electroplating ~ PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental
Development Limited (“Zhenjiang owned enterprise  U5$25,000,000 industrial sewage
Sinotech”) and sludge treatment

and facility provision
Services in an
eco-plating zone

EIENERERNBURERRA  PE HEEELE 2 R B25,000,000% 70 RRIZSKRAER
([arzn)) ERRGRESRR

R RS
* For identification purpose only
EHBZ

2558 FFRAEEBRAA
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 1B AR ZRE (&)

(continued)

(b) The following tables summarised the financial information (b) TERHFIAREPHELEREBER
FETHNEAERIELERER ([
TRER]) ZHBARSBEZHH
BRBE - T BERMBED R
HBREMEERARMYEEIT 2
B o

relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"”) at the end of the reporting
period. The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—-F+=-H=+—HLt

198
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FE
. NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
#F CILE)
£5 &xHmFE HEFFEE
(note)
(B 3%)
HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
NCI percentage FEREZE O 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets JEMENEE 111,641 136,966 269,807
Current assets mEEE 152,235 45,372 49,484
Current liabilities mEAE (119,487) (71,321) (128,543)
Non-current liabilities ERBAERE (4,490) - (2,196)
Net assets BEFE 139,899 111,017 188,552
Carrying amount of NC| EEREREEE 25,182 38,856 65,993
Revenue ez 132,744 81,363 144,322
Profit/(loss) for the year FERM/(FE) 46,181 (16,796) 28,757
Total comprehensive income 2 [ 4 %5 4 58 52,123 (12,876) 34,660
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI 9 Ef & JEIERR i 25 2
wA (&) 8,313 (5.879) 10,065
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR R ER 2
i 2 11,686 - 4,200
Cash flows generated from &2 FEHELS 2
operating activities Be&meE 59,906 2,993 28,790
Cash flows generated REEBEL, (FTA)
from/(used in) investing ZHEERE
activities 1,547 (2,699) (10,234)
Cash flows used in financing gt& EEFTA 2
activities Be&mE (53,089) (980) (20,289)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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. = = 3 o
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17.RMHB AR ZEE (8)
(continued)
(b) The following tables summarised the financial information (b) THRHFIAFREHAREEREBBAN ’i
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material SETHERERFEZERER ZW ]
NCI at the end of the reporting period. The summarised BRAAIGBEZHBEREE - 5
financial information presented below represents the amounts MEBERBEDANKENEER
before any inter-company elimination. (continued) ANAEIMERAT 2 £88 - (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HIt
FE
NUET(S) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
¥ OL%) B T
£F ZKFF pEL
(note)
(B 3% )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
NCI percentage FERESEE DT 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets IEREEE 117,245 143,160 270,682
Current assets mBEE 151,752 55,398 41,920
Current liabilities mBBE (110,637) (74,666) (139,983)
Non-current liabilities EnEHAaE (5,664) = (6,726)
Net assets BEFE 152,696 123,892 165,893
Carrying amount of NC| EEREREREE 27,485 43,362 58,063
Revenue W 2% 143,073 151,370 199,874
Profit for the year F i A 51,659 13,087 38,830
Total comprehensive income 2 HEX 5 42%8 60,559 19,554 47,083
Profit allocated to NCI DECEIFERER 2 A 9,299 4,581 13,590
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR R 2 BB 10,050 4,021 8,043

Cash flows generated from KEEHELEZRSRE

operating activities 48,239 28,342 53,417
Cash flows generated wEEHEE/ (FA)
from/(used in) investing ZHEERE
activities 2,070 (821) (31,308)
Cash flows used in financing REEZEFAAZELRE
activities (43,345) (31,313) (21,630)
Note: Ba
NUET(JS) Group comprises NUET(JS) as the holding company and HFCIH) EEHFFCLE) (B
its subsidiaries, Zhenjiang New Universe, Yancheng New Universe, ERAR) REKBAREITIHF
and the associate, Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal B 35 =7 37 I Bt D R SR L ET = B R R
Limited*. EROERATMAMK °
* For identification purpose only
ERFEZ F
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17.RMHB AR ZRE (8)
(continued)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary () HE—TEWEAF
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HE_Z_ZHF+_A=+—HI
disposed of 82% equity interest in Taizhou New Universe Solid FEE REBFNBESREBI10ETH
Waste Disposal Company Limited (“Taizhou New Universe”) BYE=FRERMNFHEREY
to an independent third party at a cash consideration of BREBERAT ([FMFH])82%MK
US$10. Pursuant to the agreement between the parties, legal - RBEEFNHE  AEED X
and professional cost of HK$100,000 has been borne by the Z100,0008 THEERFEER -
Group. All the assets and liabilities of Taizhou New Universe EMNFFHAMEEERBRBERN D
. have been derecognised upon disposal. ERBUEER -
. The effect of such disposal on the Group's assets and liabilities BERAHYEHAEBREENBENY
is set out below: EHWMT -
2020
—ECTHF
HK$'000
FHEIT
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FEU— FE R K B B A B 3UE 4,361
Other payables H &~ 5108 (7,235)
Cash and cash equivalents ReLERRELIER 2
Net liabilities disposed of FrbEzaEFE (2,872)
Consideration KRB 1
Net liabilities disposed of ﬁﬁﬁ%ZE\TE FE 2,872
Release of translation reserve upon disposal ﬁ’iﬁjﬁﬂ?@){%ﬁ 982
Legal and professional costs borne by and %E?‘;‘??ﬁ%&)ﬁﬁZif@&
payable to the third party BEEH (100)
Gain on disposal &z s 3,755
Analysis of the net cash outflows in FREEZHRESMEFEIN
respect of the disposal:
Cash received BUWERE 1
Legal and professional fees paid BEfERREEER (100)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrEEsREeRERRESIER (2)
Net cash outflow WEmEFE (101)
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18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2021

B IR s

:Z:—¢+:HE+—EI

18 MNBEARZER

2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF 1
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Share of net assets PHEERE
At 1 January ®—A—B~H 180,175 169,137
Share of results DIERE (6,389) 10,302
Share of other comprehensive income SEEM 2 E YR 5,938 9,423
Dividends received 2R B (3.889) (8,687)
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 175,835 180,175
The following list contains the particulars of the associates at 31 LNTIEHIEBEATR - E-—F+= A
December 2021: =t+—HZHFHE:
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERGLA
Place of Particulars of Group's Held Held
incorporation  Form of business issued and paid-up  effective by the bya  Principal
Name of associate and business  structure capital interest Company  subsidiary  activity
H-H
ERELK E3 20 BRR i MR WELR
BenAER EEWE KA HEEARRE BRER BE BE IEEH
Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste PRC Joint equity Registered 24.60% - 30%  Environmental
Disposal Limited* enterprise and paid-up hazardous
("Zhenjiang Xin Qu") RMB36,000,000 waste landfill
disposal
services
BINEEERERR e RELE HMRAR AR BREREN
ARAR(ATHE]) 36,000,007 BERERE
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and 30% - 30%  Environmental
Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., equity enterprise  paid-up hazardous
Ltd. ("NCIP") HK$93,600,000 waste
treatment
and disposal
services
HRLEIXEXRT e NGB E HRER BEREREN
ERENEEARAF 93,600,0007% 7T BER
(MARXF]) RERS
* For identification purpose only
BRI H
TP -558 HFRREEARAA 201
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31 December 2021
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18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

The shares of Zhenjiang Xin Qu are traded on the platform
of New Over-The-Counter Market (“New OTC Market”) in
Mainland China, which is considered as a closed market by the
Directors of Company and the quoted price of Zhenjiang Xin
Qu on the New OTC Market does not reflect the open market
price of its shares.

NCIP is an unlisted entity without quoted market price.

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP

During the year ended 31 December 2021, NCIP still incurred
temporary downtime for repairs and maintenance for both
phase | and phase Il incineration facilities.

As disclosed in (d) below, NCIP incurred a loss of
approximately HK$41,844,000 (2020: HK$2,075,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the
Group's interests in NCIP as a cash-generating-unit has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The Group
has appointed Colliers International (2020: CBRE Limited), an
independent firm of professional qualified valuers, to perform
such valuation. The calculations use cash flow projections of
NCIP covering a five-year period according to the forecast of
its management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 18.03% (2020: 16.04%). The growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows of this cash-generating
unit is 2% (2020: 2%) per annum. Other key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations relate to estimation of
the performance which is based on Phase | and Phase Il
incineration facilities with a licensed capacity of 38,000 (2020:
38,000) metric tonnes for the hazardous waste treatment of
NCIP, and management’s expectation for market demand in
Nanjing, the capital city of Jiangsu Province, PRC.
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(=R FEEE - ARAE=R
B =R ABETIS A RBETHR
T =R B0 R (B I A RE S BR A 10 O
NFTIGER -

HMRRTFREMEREZIFLTE

®-

AEERERRT RS ZBENR

HEe—_ZT-—F+-_RA=+—H1t

FE BERAFDAEREHIAY

FHRE BN ERBEITEE
o 4 o

MTIXTHE 2T ——
+ZA=+—HIEFE BRXF
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(ZZ-ZF A RBEHRAF))
ETEBGE “IFHEFEAER
AKFREEEEECAANRERSF
,HEFEEJZIE@/ME%E\/E'J ° Fgﬁﬁ E@fﬁﬁ
2 TEOR 2 B AT T I £ B18.03%
(ZE-FTF :16.04%) - ARH#
EhBReELBEMNBREEREZEE
REFGEFEL% (T _TF :2%) °
AEEAEAECEMEEZERE IR
HETRB - HERBRAFLRE
Y B B R 1 82 71 B38,0002 1 (=
T T4 : 38,0000 HE) 25— HA
K& MG M&EEFH
AR (PBEIIEHREE MM ™

Sk FEH o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
BTSRRI RE
31 December 2021 —TE=-—F+-A=+—H
18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 1. REBE N ZHERE (8)

(continued) :
() Impairment testing of the Group's interest in NCIP (continued) (0 AEERBERAFEZZRENR !

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based their cash flow projections to
undertake an impairment test of the recoverable amount of
the Group’s interest in NCIP:

Projected cash flow — The projected cash flow from NCIP is
based on the performance of the incineration facilities with
capacity of 38,000 (2020: 38,000 metric tonnes) for the
hazardous waste treatment of NCIP, and the management’s
expectation of the market demand in Nanjing.

Discount rate — The pre-tax discount rate 18.03% (2020:
16.04%) was determined using the Capital Assets Pricing
Model on the cash flows projection before tax and under
specific risks relating to the business of NCIP. In determining
an appropriate discount rate, consideration has been given to
the applicable borrowing interest rates in the year immediately
before the projection period. The decrease in the discount rate
for this year’s assessment is mainly attributable to the fact that
NCIP has obtained the necessary operating permission licence
for its processing facilities for hazardous waste treatment and
there is less company specific risk for the assessment in the
current year.

Growth rate — the growth rate used beyond the five-year
period is determined based on the expected long-term
inflation in the PRC and does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate of the hazardous waste treatment
business in which NCIP operates in Nanjing, the capital city of
Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the discount
rate and growth rate are consistent with information from
external sources.

Management determined that the recoverable amount of the
Group's interest in NCIP exceed the carrying amount of the
interests in NCIP. Accordingly, no impairment is considered
necessary at the end of the reporting period.

(%)

EREEREBERSREBBAHARE
BRERRT RN AR E S RE
TRENRNEEZRRET :

Bt RERE-KRBMAXTZA
ARERENENEARRTHEAR
R IEEREEE 2 REEN A
38,0002 M8 (=& — T4 : 38,000
DM ZRBE UREEEHER
mEH/ERZEH -

WIRE-FHR MR E18.03% (=&
ZTEF 16.04%) HNIRAEREE
TEENERRBMNESREEA
LEHERRXFEBEFEB2HFER
BRIBTET TETHEHEMITRE
B DERREREASAT—F0E
BERFE AFEFHZHRE
TREZEHRERARARFERERER
BEMEEZRIEREESNEHK
BHAE MAFEFEZRAE
E R TP o

EREX-BRAFHMEANER
ERETFENBHEABRE
o ATHEBEARARTERR (P
BII#HAA W™ REZBRRE
MBREEHK I RUFHEEREK -

BERAMREREREINERERKN
EERRBIIBRRHER — -

EEEEEASRERERRTER
BRI Bl BB N E R AT s
MEREE - Bt REEMRRBR
BN EEHRRE

B_-F58 HFRAESEARAA
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18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

(d) The following tables summarised the

O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

financial information (d)

relating to each of the Group's associates, at the end of
the reporting period, as adjusted for the differences in
accounting policies and financial reporting standards, if any,
and as reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

NEZHE

7= (4)

TREJAEEZHE QR NRE

R BERREL

A&

REMBREENZRE (WH) FHE
G a M BEHRRAREESRE -

BE-Z-_—f+=-HA=+-—-81Lt

FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
EIIHE BRXF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Gross amounts of the associate’'s BtE& NTF 2B &5
Non-current assets FERBEE 43,236 586,819
Current assets MENE E 83,070 66,472
Current liabilities nEAEE (7,546) (81,635)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (17,131) (87,170)
Net assets EEFE 101,629 484,486
Revenue U % 43,645 32,210
Profit/(loss) for the year FREmA, (EE) 20,547 (41,844)
Other comprehensive income Hia 2wk
- Exchange difference on —MEMBERERMESE
translation of financial fEHER
statements 3,208 16,582
Total comprehensive income THEN BT 23,755 (25,262)
Dividend received from the associate & Bk % A7)~ i% B 3,889 —
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAEERBEEARZ
interest in the associate ERZEHER
Gross amount of net assets of BEANRBEEFEZRSRE
the associate 101,629 484,486
Group's share of net assets of the ANEBEH(hEtE N[ 2 EEFE
associate 30,489 145,346
Carrying amount in the consolidated 4R & B SR % 2 BRAEE
financial statements 30,489 145,346
Aggregate amounts of the rEEPHHEATZHELE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA, (BE) 6,164 (12,553)
Other comprehensive income H 2w e
— Exchange difference on —ME M BWMERTESE
translation of financial &N =5
statements 963 4,975
Total comprehensive income 2HE MW= BEE 7,127 (7,578)
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31 December 2021

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)
(d)  (continued) d) (&)
i
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H1
FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
SET TR ARAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross amounts of the associate’s HE AT ZHELHE
Non-current assets ERHEE 31,711 595,476
Current assets MENVEE 85,706 75,418
Current liabilities REBEE (9,633) (71,841)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,948) (89,305)
Net assets BEEFE 90,836 509,748
Revenue Wz 55,027 109,586
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEAM(FE) 36,415 (2,075)
Other comprehensive income H 2wl
- Exchange difference on translation ~ — 3 & & MRFTE L
of financial statements =5 4,571 26,839
Total comprehensive income 2EKEAERE 40,986 24,764
Dividend received from the associate & UgHE & A 7~ % 8 8,687 =
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAEERBE AT Z
interest in the associate EEZHE
Gross amount of net assets of BERNRBEEFEZLSE
the associate 90,836 509,748
Group's share of net assets of REBOEHBERNTZ
the associate BEFHE 27,251 152,924
Carrying amount in the consolidated R4 A P BHHRR ZBRMmME
financial statements 27,251 152,924
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s XEBE I EHE AT 2 EEH
share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBHN,(FBE) 10,924 (622)
Other comprehensive income H 2w
- Exchange difference on translation — — #8871 ¥R 3% Ffr 8 4=
of financial statements B 3 =58 1,371 8,052
Total comprehensive income HENEREE 12,295 7,430
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

19.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19.N—RBeaEtEzEzHEGE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FAET
Share of net assets PILEEFE
At 1 January Rn—A—H 47,400 23,123
Capital contribution HE 7,696 25,434
Share of results ’7915%% (4,440) (1,835)
Share of other comprehensive income DG EM 2w RS 1,759 2,592
Unrealised profit on inter-company A ??\/\FFEEHT?EE% Gl
transaction eliminated on consolidation RGBIARER RF (M iE)
(note) (425) (1,914)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 51,990 47,400
Note: o

The elimination of unrealised profit on consolidation of approximately
HK$425,000 (2020: HK$1,914,000) represented 65% share of
unrealised profit on the inter-company transaction regarding the
revenue arising from provision of environmental equipment construction
and installation services rendered by the Group to the joint venture as
disclosed in note 41(b) below.

The following list contains the particulars of the joint venture at 31
December 2021:

4RE BR P AT BH A R B 3R % 1 49425,00008
n(—?f7¢ 1,914,000 70) 15 AN &
MAEATERHRELBEARTERE
FTEAMBANRATBR S RKEE RN
65% (20T XM sE41(b) AT EE ) ©

WTHEYEECER_ZFTE-_—F+=-A
=t+—BHZHE:

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRGLA
Place of Particulars of Group's’
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective  Held by the Held bya  Principal
Name of joint venture and operations entity paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  activity
B
ERBLR BETR FEE2 MR WEAR
RERELR EENY ERERZES  AREAEE BERER BE BE TEZEE
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 65% - 65%  Construction in
Disposal Company Limited* equity enterprise  and paid-up progress
("Xinyu Rongkai”) RMB80,000,000
) H%ﬁﬂ?%ﬂllﬁ“?%ﬁ% ke PhaEhEx EMRERARE gggw
ARAR (TR 80,000,00070

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements. Xinyu Rongkai is an unlisted
entity without quoted market price.

Xinyu Rongkai is operated under joint venture agreement, pursuant
to which the Group would share control over Xinyu Rongkai with
the joint venture partner, and accordingly, the investment in Xinyu
Rongkai is accounted for as joint venture.

ks For identification purpose only

EHRFZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TEERARMIE

19.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)
Xinyu Rongkai

The following tables summarised the financial information relating
to the Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting period, as
adjusted for the differences in accounting policies and financial

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

19.

N—REEeEErEZHER

(%48)

Tl

TREINEBAEERS Z 1B
;

RZMBEMBE - KIS
MBmERAERE (WA

]]ﬂ

~—
||Ir

reporting standards, if any, and as reconciled to the carrying B mER AR ELE -
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020  E T - —FR_ZE_ZTF+_A8
=+—HIFE
2021 2020
—EB_—fF e e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s BELECHESH
Non-current assets FERBEE 180,744 110,156
Current assets MENE E 36,677 10,046
Current liabilities mEEE (30,955) (2,987)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE (102,690) (41,347)
Equity P& A 83,776 75,868
Included in the above assets: NEEERYE:
Cash and cash equivalents BehZERIREIER 27,125 5,373
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year FEERE (6.831) (2,823)
Other comprehensive income HEi2mEmka
- Exchange difference on translation of —BEPERERIELE
financial statements N ZER 2,707 3,987
Total comprehensive income TEWEBRE (4,124) 1,164
Dividend received from the joint venture BEREEDTEZRE = -
Included in the above loss: NEBBEaE
Depreciation and amortisation e N i (609) (396)
Interest income B U A 325 137
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in EAEBHREE XS
the joint venture fEm YR
Gross amount of net assets of the GRECEBEEFRECRESR
joint venture 83,776 75,868
Group's share of net assets of the REEDEEEECZEEFE
joint venture 54,454 49,314

%

Unrealised profit on inter-company

HREEHEAREZZH

/\
N
transaction eliminated on consolidation KREE T (2,464) (1,914)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint A& ¥ FEERAEE
venture 51,990 47,400
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirE M BmE 2 REE
financial statements 51,990 47,400
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share AEEBE S HEELECHEHE
of the joint venture’s
Loss for the year FEEIE (4,440) (1,835)
Other comprehensive income H 2 mH W
- Exchange difference on translation of —BRE S RRFTE
financial statements AEHERE 1,759 2,592
Total comprehensive income THWEAE (2,681) 757

—-FER HFRFREEBERAF
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. ZB HMtt 2 HIXZE A

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

FEANRZBREFHRE

2021 2020
—EB- & T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Equity instrument designated as measured  3EE AF B EME E W HIR
at fair value through other comprehensive A F{EFE7RATA
income (non-recycling) (TagleE) 80,800 118,100
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
At 1 January W—B—H 118,100 97,300
Net fair value change transfer to BEEMmEmkaRERES
equity through statement of other ARz A TEZEFE
comprehensive income (37,300) 20,800
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 80,800 118,100

Starting from 1 January 2018 , the Group designated the
unlisted equity investments as measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income on non-recycling basis ("FVOCI
(non-recycling)”), as the investments are held for strategic purposes.
Dividends with amount of HK$4,637,000 (2020: HK$4,107,000)
were received on the unlisted equity investments for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE TS

:Z:—¢+:HE+—EI

20.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has interests in the following

unlisted equity investments:

31 December 2021

20 ZBH b2 EWN w2
FEANRZBRERE (8)

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ' ~5H
RTHIFE LRI E A R

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective  Held by the Heldbya  Principal
Name of investee and operations entity paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  activity
H-H
ERA LR BRR FEEZ AR WEAR
BREARER EENEY ERERZEA  HREXHE BERER =) BE IEEER
Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Co., ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 18.62% - 18.62%  Plastic materials
Limited (“Suzhou New Huamei") equity enterprise  US$16,000,000 dyeing
(note (a)) and paid-up
US$5,000,000
FMNAEXEHERLA Gk POEERE  FR16,000,000 PHAE
(TaMaEx)) (M@) ELRER
5,000,000% 7T
Danyang New Huamei Plastics Co.,  PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 24.50% - 24.50%  Plastic materials
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) US$1,600,000
AERERERER AT e hadthx  EMRER BHAE
(IFE#HzEX]) 1,600,000 7T
(Mi3E(a) * (b))
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 28.67% - 28.67%  Plastic materials
Co., Limited ("Qingdao Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) US$1,650,000
EERHEREHERAA e PeERE  AMRER EHAE
(I58%%)) 1,650,000% 7T

(Ftek(a) -~ (b))
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20.ZBHMMmL2EmWEED
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TEENRZEBEAEZESE ()

INCOME (continued)

Notes: Wit

(@)  The unlisted equity investments carried at fair value represent (a)
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei
and Qingdao Huamei, which are principally engaged in plastic
materials dyeing manufacturing business in Mainland China.
As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of these unlisted equity
investments was determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by Colliers International (2020: CBRE Limited), an independent
firm of professional valuers, using a market approach model based
on the EBIT multiple of enterprise value to earnings before interest
and tax ("EV/EBIT") of comparable listed companies in the same
industry, after having taken into account of the discount for lack
of marketability of 16.60% (2020: 17.56%) for these unlisted
investments. Details of fair value hierarchy for these investments
are disclosed in note 43 below.

EBIT Dividend yield

EBIT RE%
(note (i)
(HEE())

o 200 201 2020
S8--f _F-%F CRo-E CIOEF
HKS'000  HK$'000

EEMBEAKE BRRAFEAAR) T
EREMNTEX  ABHEERSE
FEE(ZERATNTERTEANMKSE
BRAOBEXE) ZRE - RZZ
T F+-A=t+—8B KEEZ
L EMEERZME RSN E
16.60% (Z T —_F4F : 17.56%) 1% -
ZELTRAREZAFELE
MBYEEFEMe BB (2=
TECHPEMBEALARAR) FKAD
AR ZEEET & ERX T
ATE¥ERBE ETmARZCEEE
b BB Al T 2 EBITAS & ([EV/EBIT))
BEE . E—SHBE R E43EE -

Fair value relative to
Fair value the Group's total assets
RHrEEALE
ATE ZATE
(note (ii)
(FtzE(i)

2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--F CTCTF ZEC-FE O CECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn Thn Tén TEn
Suzhou New Huamei EEER 13,259 12,161 4.8% 4.6% 33,300 33,700 19% 1.9%
Danyang New Huamei EESS 4,79 4538 7.4% 5.2% 8,100 10,900 0.5% 0.6%
Qingdao Huamei EB¥x 15,510 20,597 5.3% 2.6% 39,400 73,500 2.2% 42%
(i) Dividend vyield represents the net dividend received (net 0) BEREREHANKREARARNTEZIE L

of PRC dividend withholding tax paid) from the respective
unlisted equity investment during the reporting period in
a ratio to the fair value of the respective unlisted equity
investment of the Company at the end of that reporting
period.

(i) The fair value of each of the unlisted equity investments (ii)
at the end of the reporting period was determined by
reference to the respective independent and professional
valuation performed by Colliers International (2020: CBRE
Limited).

(i) In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, there was (iii)
no impairment on each of the above unlisted investments
at the end of both reporting periods, and there was no
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for both years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BEEMEE
—F+ - A=+
20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei were not regarded (b)
as associates of the Group, because the Group could not exercise

significant influence over their financial and operati

under the constitutional frameworks that the Group has less than

20% voting power of the board directors of these
Accordingly, the investments in Qingdao Huamei an

New Huamei are accounted for as unlisted equity investments.

31 December 2021

Hiat - (&)

ng policies

investees.
d Danyang

— = —

s

20 ZBH b2 EWN w2
FEANRZREHRE (E)

BEREXRABHEITRARESE
EBENE RERERNEENE
ERVENESSHA TR20%EKE
BZERERT  AEETEY
RAIZHBREERRTEERNZE
AeEl REBSEXRAGHES
ZIRE LA ETRAKRE AR -

ZE

21.INVENTORIES 21. 7 &
2021 2020
—E-— & —E-ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Raw materials e 6,718 6,062

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

ERRRAXAFAABRSZFESEON

and included in profit or loss is presented as follows: 5T -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Carrying amount of inventories consumed  FriE RS 2 BEHEE 74,963 72,609

%+

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. EWERF R E R
2021 2020
—B=—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAETT
Trade receivables & W BR 3R 167,443 127,302
Lease receivables rWHEE 3,277 2,201
Bills receivables W E 20,468 14,364
191,188 143,867
Less: allowance for lifetime ECLs W R ETEEEEEE ZBE

(note 44(d)) (Fft 3F44(d)) (41,166) (14,429)
150,022 129,438
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BREQ DT

RREARERER (REERE
FEFEEWRAE) MEREEIZ
BEHARNKREHRESREERRE
ZHEBEBEZREDT20AT !

22 BBEBRARE® ()

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (which comprised
of customer account receivables and lease receivables) and
bills receivables as of the end of the reporting period, based
on the invoice date and net of allowance for lifetime ECLs is
presented as follows:

2021 2020

_4 —E-—F —E-EF
- HK$'000 HK$'000
\, FHT FAT
0 to 30 days 0B ZE30H 62,029 60,502

31 days to 60 days 31H260H 33,272 13,407

61 days to 90 days 61H%E90H 10,276 11,092

91 days to 180 days 91EZ=180H 9,611 12,775

181 days to 360 days 181H %3604 23,742 31,662

Over 1 year tHiE—F 11,092 -

150,022 129,438

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly AEBZTEUFEEARGTHRR
on credit. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 BoGR AEBRFHRRIE
days to its customers of the environmental industrial waste, BEY) - 5K REERBERRF X
sewage and sludge treatment services and its lessees, and an HEMBAZFEHEER—K A6
extended average credit period of 180 days to the customers B MXEREEREVREEEF (R
of regulated medical waste treatment which are hospitals and BRNBEDZH) 2 FHEEHITE

212

medical clinics.

(b) Impairment losses of customer account and

lease receivables

Most of the debtors are local hospitals and reputable
companies in the PRC. Based on past payment history,
economic conditions and other forward looking information
available, the management determined the lifetime expected

credit loss (“ECL") as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment losses of customer account and
lease receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of customer account and lease
receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the allowance for

31 December 2021

B IS SRR S

22 BBEBRARER ()

(b)

BKREFEXEAE 2R
&R (F)

AR NE SRR A E 2 R E
BhERRERLE BIELEE
S90S B BREDE - BT IS
R R AR E R OE
I o 2 HITE S B A B AR

lifetime ECL during the reporting period is as follows: WEHAZESHOT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At 1 January w—A—H 14,429 4,469
Impairment loss recognised BHERBEEE 30,563 10,752
Reversal # 0] (1,878) (1,226)
28,685 9,526
Written off i 88 (2,867) (21)
Exchange adjustments (& 5 919 455
At 31 December W+=—BA=+—8H 41,166 14,429

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of independent customers and lessees for
whom there was no recent history of default. Receivables that
were past due but not impaired are related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

BER % B3 71 R AR BB 2 FE W 5RIR Th
BERZRMEIMENCH 2B
BEPREBA - C@BHBERERE
ZRERBREATIRESHBAEER
REFERTHIBIEP - N&EHE
YERNFERTH EMEHm -
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31 December 2021

=B=—rE=E=r—lE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment losses of customer account and

lease receivables (continued)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate lifetime ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of the customers.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed bad debt rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical bad debt rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed bad
debt rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation
among historical observed bad debt rates, forecast economic
conditions and lifetime ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual credit loss in the
future.

23.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

22 BBEBRARE® ()

(b)

EREFPERNBEE ZRE
BEE (&)

A& BIE A B LB E R KRR
REHWEERHZEHEERE -
BEXZREFAGZARBEH
AE-BRERENBEARNEERE
EBRRZERERER - AEER
BRTEEE R ROERE - LARE
EMEEEERLER - OIM - HW&
HIARK —F 2 RAKEEMN K & E
o OAUREBREREOREUE
moEEBERRRELAE R
BERERH AEBEMBEDE
RZBERE  WHAR MG 2 E
BEL O - BEHBECERZE
BRE - FERIROBEMOR R 2 MTEH(E
EBEZENEERERZTEE—
HEKRMGEF -EHREEBERZEE
ZEERRIEREEARR 2 BACFT
FE -AKBEREEEEEETE
Z 88 S BB R 2 EB TR R 44
RREFKHRZEREREBRER

WHEAFAE-REeRHEM
FE U X 1R

2021 2020

—EB-—fF e e S

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Other receivables (note) H R RIB (M) 3,344 6,077

Prepayments FERT R IA 25,948 19,099

Contract performance deposits paid BEENRE® 6,564 -
Dividend receivable from RE—BRAKEZ

an equity investment B UEL AR 2 600 -

36,456 25,176

Note: Included in other receivables was an advance of HK$988,000 to an

associate, which was unsecured, bore interest at 4% per annum
and was repaid on 16 February 2022.
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23.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The loss allowance for other receivables recognised during the year
is as follows:

B IR s

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

23.BARIE - ZEREM

B s IR (48)

FABERNERKTIRNEEBENAT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January Rn—A—H - 235
Written off as uncollectible B 7~ ] 4g (2] T i 88 - (235)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - -

The remaining balance of the other receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired relate to a large number of independent
parties for whom there were no recent history of default. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

The Group has applied the general approach to provide for 12
month-expected credit losses on other receivables. The Group
considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit losses rate.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group estimated that the
expected credit loss rate for other receivables was insignificant
and there was no significant increase in credit risk for the other
receivables at reporting period end.

BE o 780 87t K Rl 1 A EL A FE U SRk eR s B
AEBATEENCHENBILIE=H
EH - -REBEEZTZ_—FRZZTEZZZF
+TZA=+—1 - BERENTEAER -

AEBERB -RIEREMEKRIEA
EHENRBEAEREEBERERF A& H
EAERBEEBRERZRELEX
T WREAMEEZBLERBEETH
B-R_ZB_—FR_ZF_ZFTHF+_A
=t+t— B AKEGEE bR KRR
EHEEEBREYAEAN - M HLMBEM
RN ER R EERRILEB AL -
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS

4. EHEE

The Group's contract assets are analysed as follows: REEBZENEESTOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EF_FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Contract assets ABUBE

— arising from equipment construction and —REREELRTERS

installation services 22,591 1,534

Contract assets consist of the Group’s rights to consideration for
works completed but unbilled amounts resulting from equipment
construction and installation services, which are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights to payments become unconditional
which was generally within one to three months. The increase in
contract assets was the results of the increase in the provision of
equipment construction and installation services during the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is
as follows:

BRNEERERAEEHD TR IRENK
EWERN BEREHEEERTERBES
) R 3 B8 RROR I SRR B B 25 B IR R B
(—RA—E=EA) EREEWER-
BREERNEMNFARRENRER
i N 2 R IR TG I DN PT B

ABREENREZFEZ BHRRH

2021 2020

—EB=-—F —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within one year —FE R 22,591 1,534

An impairment assessment is performed at each reporting period
end using a probability of default model to measure the expected
lifetime credit losses of contract assets. The provision rates for the
measurement of the lifetime expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables, in respect of the
environmental equipment construction and installation segment,
as the contract assets and the trade receivables, in respect of the
environmental equipment construction and installation segment,
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on historical data as adjusted by the current
conditions during the year ended and at 31 December 2021 and
forward looking information. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the lifetime expected credit loss rate for the Group’s contract assets
was considered as minimal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN
B R RRMIEE
31 December 2021 =ZE=—F+=-A=+—H
ZB.HERERREEAR
HtRE&mE N

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

BeMFRIREIAR AHEK

2021 2020

—E-—&F —E_THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Cash and bank balances e MRITES 108,386 68,539

Time deposits EHFR 201,879 201,495

310,265 270,034

Less: Pledged bank deposits (note) W IRITERER (A ) (8,191) (12,511)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEREeERERAZR S

consolidated statement of cash flow rERESIEA 302,074 257,523

Note: Hiat -

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of HK$8,191,000 (2020:
HK$12,511,000) were pledged to a bank for the issuance of
guarantees by the bank to the customers of the Group in respect
of the specific performance under certain service arrangements
and for the issuance of bills payables to suppliers of the Group.

The bank balances and time deposits carried interest at market
rates within the range from 0.01% to 1.76% (2020: 0.01%
to 2.83%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates on daily deposit
rates. Short-term time deposits are placed for varying periods
within a tenure of 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are placed with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

There was no significant change in the credit risks on the
bank balances and time deposits and no provision for the 12
month-ECL was required at the reporting period end.

R—ZB-—F+-A=+—8" #
1717 5%8,191,0008 T (ZE _FF :
12,511,000 L) E & ¥ — B KR
17 AMERZBITHRETRELZHES
BERBERASETFPELERRN
REEHREHELENZE -

REBEEz_ZT-_—F+=-_A=+—HIL
FE  BRIOEHKREHRTFTRIEMISF
RN FLHF001%E1.76% (= —
THE:0.01%%£2.83%) 58 - TR
BT ESHEEERMNEAE L F
BRRHE - BB TEHERZERH
A=EANRNEMAEE KRTEAREER
BB+ EEmME - BRMAEREH
FRFA KRB - RITEHRREHTER
BRNMEER I BT HEENLE
$R1T -

RITHEBRRERERZEERRILE
EEE MBARRSHR12(E A
BHEERBRERE -
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. B¢ REREBEESEHR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HiHEERER (8)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) MEEFHELBENY
activities: R :
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interests borrowings Total
HEAE B R E RITEE BEr
- (note 31) (note 30) (note 27)
{lki (Bt &EE31) (FF=E30) (Pt 7£27)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F
—H—H 147 254 189,035 189,436
Changes from financing BMERERE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank RITEEMENRIEA
borrowings - - 141,410 141,410
Repayment of bank BEEITEER
borrowings - - (134,425) (134,425)
Finance costs paid EATEE KA - (6,526) - (6.526)
Capital element of lease MEMNR 2 ERED
payments (590) - - (590)
Interest element of lease HE Rz F 2 HMH
payments (55) - - (55)

Total changes from financing B & IR &R B E5E
cash flows (645) (6,526) 6,985 (186)

Exchange adjustments PE W A% 26 - 2,950 2,976
Other non-cash changes: EMIFR e -
Interest expenses recognised RIERER

in profit or loss FERHEZ 55 6,466 - 6,521
New lease Fois =g 1,968 - - 1,968
Release in lease termination fH & 4% |- &K% (81) - - (81)
At 31 December 2021 R-EBE-—F

+=—H=+—H 1,470 194 198,970 200,634
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T ES AR MIEE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—#+=-A=+—H

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25.R&RFRRELEB R

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HREREN (18)
(continued) |
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMETEHEAZAEHNSH ‘
activities: (continued) B ()
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interests  borrowings Total
HEAR JEET A B RITEE 4T

(note 31) (note 30) (note 27)
(MF5E31) (F#¥30) (F#£27)
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHIT FHIT
At 1 January 2020 RZTE-ZTF
—H—H 590 536 240,409 241,535
Changes from financing BMERERE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank RITIE BT HIE
borrowings - - 97,023 97,023
Repayment of bank BBRITIEE
borrowings - - (152,562) (152,562)
Finance costs paid B R E B AR = (10,080) = (10,080)
Capital element of lease MEMNR 2 EREBHD
payments (464) = - (464)
Interest element of lease HE Rz F 20
payments (21) = © (21)
Total changes from financing Fi & IR & K & B E5E
cash flows (485) (10,080) (55,539) (66,104)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 A 21 = 4,165 4,186
Other non-cash changes: Ha3ER 28 :
Interest expense capitalised &AL AEZITIE Y
into construction in FERX
progress - 255 - 255
Interest expenses recognised R85 R 2 F &
in profit or loss X 21 9,543 - 9,564
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB_EF
+—-A=+—H 147 254 189,035 189,436
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B Rt

31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

26.ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP 0. 7 EABEHEZHE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND HEZEERDEAE
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR EHEZEE
SALE
The major classes of assets classified as held for sale: DERBIFLECEEZ X EHT:
Assets held Assets for the
for sale  disposal group Total
FIEREZ
FEHEZ HEHEEZ
BE BE #Et
(note b) (note a)
(P 7ED) (Pff7Fa)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FET
As 1 January 2020 R—HA—H - - -
Reclassification from: ATAIBEEEHHHE:
Property, plant and equipment  ¥% - W= M & E 25,697 - 25,697
Right-of-use assets ER#EEE 1,945 - 1,945
Impairment loss on assets DERFIFLHEEEY
classified as held for sale VRN SEiE] (12,636) - (12,636)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 3% 405 - 405
As 31 December 2020 and R-ZB-FBF+_A=+—
1 January 2021 ANZ=ZF=_—F—H—H 15,411 - 15,411
Reclassification from: BTAEEEH L :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - &= MR E - 4,721 4,721
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 18,538 18,538
Due from fellow subsidiaries A EE NG - 3,252 3,252
Total assets for the disposal HEHAEGZBEE
group - 26,511 26,511
Less: Elimination of intra-group  J& : £ @ AR &8 2 & &
balances - (3,252) (3,252)
Exchange adjustments PE 55 3% 520 390 910
As 31 December 2021 R=ZB=-%+=A
=+—H 15,931 23,649 39,580
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B ERaRMiEE

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

26. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP 26 7 EABEHEZHE

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND HEZEERDELARE

- s s =

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR EHEZEE ()

SALE (continued)

Notes: Btz -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has (@) REBEE-—E-_—F+-A=+—8H
entered into negotiation with a third party to dispose of the IEFE AEBERE=FHEE [
entire equity interest in a subsidiary, Taixing Xin Xin Resources MEARZEFTHMERBEFNRA
Recycling Company Limited (the "Taixing Xin Xin”). Negotiation RAR ([REHF]) M2 PR/RAE
process has already begun before the year end and on 2 March HETEE EREFEFTLEELK
2022, the Group has entered into an agreement with the third s MR-_ZTE-__F=A=-H &
party for the disposal of the Taixing Xin Xin at a consideration of SEEZE=FEKRHGE  AARK
RMB42,100,000 (equivalent to HK$51,362,000). The Taixing Xin 42,100,0007T (8 & 751,362,000/
Xin was principally engaged in holding land and buildings in the TC)REBHERENH - TEFHE
PRC and its principal assets which comprised of land and buildings ZEREEHEBELHEETFT  mME
were vacant since 2017. The assets of the Taixing Xin Xin mainly TELEATHEEFT AT+
comprised of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use FREE REFFTNEETERE
assets with aggregate carrying amount of HK$23,649,000 at 31 ME BMENMKREARFERESE -
December 2021. As the net proceeds are expected to exceed R-E-—F+_A=+—HZ#HEK
the carrying amount of the assets, no impairment loss has been T & 423,649,000/ 7T ° B R FEHA AT
recognised. BREFHEEBRAEENKREME &

I R AR EEE -

(b) On 16 June 2020, the Company’s subsidiary, Yancheng New by RZZTEZZTFEA+H REHEH
Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited has entered into BFEAHRTERERE - A2 FH
a demolition and relocation compensation agreement with the BRI HENTHEREYREESR
local authorities to dispose of the land and buildings situated at AAIEHEM T E R LIFBHER
Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC at a total compensation of =oEmEe Y ARE13,061,000
approximately RMB13,061,000 (or equivalent to HK$15,931,000 T(FER-—B-—F+=-A=+—8H
as at 31 December 2021) under an urban development plan A& #15,931,0008 L) lE B F
promulgated by the local government. The related assets classified TEHREHEE M I REEY -
as held for sale with a carrying amount of HK$27,642,000 were FHAKRE % A27,642,0008 TS
written down to the consideration on disposal of HK$15,411,000, BAEBEHEEEECHMREHER
resulting in a loss of HK$12,636,000 which has been recognised in f€15,411,000% JT - & %012,636,000
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. BLHEE TEREBEE=-Z=Z

TZA=Z+—HILFEMBHETHER -

With continuously increasing in the new infections of COVID-19 BEZE COVID-19 ¥ RE R 7 # 7~ i 12
and recent new outbreak in the PRC, the progress of demolition MM HAMFBEER  BHE2®RE
and relocation compensation was stalled up to the reporting date. A IFERENEESERETR - AR
Due to the inherent unpredictable nature and rapid development COVID-19 [E A #) A~ A T8 R 14 70 R 3R
of COVID-19, the Group will closely monitor the progress of R AEEBZYBIRB/EDN
demolition and relocation compensation. HE -
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

- 27.BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE

At the end of the reporting period, interest-bearing bank RBEBR KREBZHERTEEA
borrowings of the Group were repayable as follows: LA T HAEEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Current liabilities mEBE
Current portion of bank borrowings R—FRIHAEE
% ' due for repayment within one year IRITIEE Z BNEIZR (D 189,970 121,205
[ Non-current portion of bank borrowings ABTIREBTIRER
subject to standard clause to demand BB ZIRITEEZ
for immediate repayment 3ERIEREB 17 9,000 57,700
198,970 178,905
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Between 1 year and 2 years —FEMF = 10,130
Between 2 years and 5 years MEZERF = -
- 10,130
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITIEERRE 198,970 189,035
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
- Unsecured — R 125,770 124,725
- Secured — B H 73,200 64,310
198,970 189,035
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27.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the maturity dates of the bank

I EEMRTE

— = —

s

27.8{RiTEE (88

31 December 2021

R S

RBEPRR  AEBRITEEZZHA

borrowings of the Group were as follows: (I N
2021 2020
—E-— & —E_ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Within one year —F R 189,970 121,205
After one but within two years —FHREMFR 9,000 58,830
After two but within five years MEREBERER - 9,000
198,970 189,035

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the

RBERR  AEBUATIHEEFEZ

Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in the following RITBEZEREENT
currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E=TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 91,610 118,825
Renminbi AR 107,360 70,210
198,970 189,035
Notes: Mzt

(a)

Certain banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand. In
addition, certain of the Group’s banking facility agreements
contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants and met
the scheduled repayment obligations. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants, and is up to date
with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does not
consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements.

As at 31 December 2021, none of covenants relating to the
drawn down facilities had been breached (2020: Nil). All bank
borrowings, including amounts repayable on demand, are carried
at amortised cost. None of the portion of bank borrowings due for
repayment after one year which contains a repayment on demand
clause and that is classified as a current liability is expected to be
settled within one year.

(@ ATRITMEABTEIZHAZIA
EoMAEEERRE  ERIMAR
ARAREBRERE - W AEEE
TRITREWHEBRS ZERETED
RER) - 7] 2 4OR E A AR B i E S
HER MIWAEEREEETR
#AEBTHENEREE - AEETE
HMERHETRERRZEN ML
S—ERREMERZAEAHE
P URRREAEBRETARE
ME - ROTPATETEEANBREZ
SRR

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H I
ElRRBMENHAZHEER (=2
—EFEE) FMARTEE (BEA
BEREEZRE) DEREBEHRNAA
R-TEER —FREHAEEEBESIR
EREBRRMOBARBAEZR
TEEFOGHTIER —FRLER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 S BT =

31 December 2021

—E=—4%+=-A=+—H

27.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@]

As at 31 December 2021, total unsecured bank loans of
approximately HK$91,610,000 (2020: HK$118,825,000) owed by
the Company in Hong Kong bore interest at variable rates ranging
from 1.56% to 3.01% per annum in the current year (2020:
1.62% to 5.41% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, total unsecured bank loans of
approximately HK$34,160,000 (2020: HK$5,900,000) owed by
the subsidiaries in the PRC bore interests at different fixed rates
ranging from 3.8% to 4.6% per annum in the current year (2020:
3.8% to 5.9% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, total secured bank loans of
approximately HK$73,200,000 (2020: HK$64,310,000) owed by
certain subsidiaries in the PRC were secured by pledge of land
use rights and certain property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$28,830,000
(2020: HK$28,523,000) and HK$108,107,000 (2020:
HK$114,782,000) respectively. These bank loans bore interest at
different fixed rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.4% per annum in the
current year (2020: 4.4% to 5.2% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bank loans of
HK$51,000,000 (2020: HK$71,000,000) owed by the Company
under banking facility letters granted by different banks in Hong
Kong contained specific performance covenants. Pursuant to
which, if Mr. XI Yu (“Mr. XI") as the controlling shareholder of
Company (i) ceases to be directly or indirectly the single largest
shareholder of the Company; (ii) ceases to own directly or
indirectly at least 30% of the issued shares with voting rights of
the Company; or (iii) ceases to have the management control over
the Company, the bank may cancel all or any part of the facility
and declare all or any part of the outstanding facility, together
with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued under the
banking facility letter immediately due and payable, whereupon all
or part of the facility shall be immediately cancelled and all such
outstanding amounts shall become immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. XI, through his direct beneficial
interests in 83.66% of the issued share capital of New Universe
Enterprises Limited (“NUEL"), indirectly owns approximately
36.54% (2020: 36.54%) of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

Mr. XI confirmed that he owns the direct beneficial interests
in 83.66% of the issued share capital of NUEL, as such, he is
deemed indirectly interested in the 1,109,303,201 shares (2020:
1,109,303,201 shares) of the Company beneficially held by NUEL,
representing approximately 36.54% (2020: 36.54%) of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021
which remains unchanged up to the date of this announcement.
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28. OTHER BORROWING

As at 31 December 2021 , other borrowing of HK$25,000,000 was
unsecured bore interest at 4.5% per annum and was repaid during
the year.

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

31 December 2021 —ZE=——&+=H=+— E'

28. Hiw & &

R-ZB-—F+=-A=+—8 ' £

B25,000,000% 7T & £ - 3% 4 F =
45%:T 8 WERAFEBEE -

20. BRBRAREIR

2021 2020

—®B=—% —E T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade payables FETBE 20 72,521 66,303
Bills payables FERT & 6,086 12
78,607 66,315

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

RBEHRR BNERRREZAHZE
oM

2021 2020

—E-— & —E-THF

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FHET

0 to 30 days 0B E30H 27,160 26,408
31 days to 60 days 31HZ60H 5,754 18,510
61 days to 90 days 61H%90H 7,047 9,117
Over 91 days HBiE91 R 32,560 12,268
72,521 66,303

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled within
90 days to 180 days.

JENBREF IR - BE—#RFE90H £180H
R -
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2 =+
30. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 30. ErtE R R EMEF IR
PAYABLES
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Salaries and bonuses payable JER T8 RIEAT 14,415 16,925
Accounts payable for acquisition of WHEY % - BB R
property, plant and equipment FEATBR R 32,136 52,620
Accrued interest payable JE S RE SR B 194 254
Costs accrued for litigation settlements AT R T FE SR AN - 2,360
Costs accrued for land restoration and soil  HFREEZEmE Y + HIEE R
remediation of obsolete plants IR A 29 552 26.627
Other payables and accruals H O FE A 0B R E S B A 152,689 127,753
228,986 226,539
31.LEASE LIABILITIES 31.HAE&AE
As at 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were payable as R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " ENH
follows: EBEWMT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 year —FA 750 117
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 351 30
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBRFRA 369 -
720 30
1,470 147
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2. 5K &E&
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deposits received from customers CWEERS 38,507 25,011
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33.DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants were obtained by the subsidiaries, Yancheng
NUHF and Zhenjiang Sinotech to subsidise the construction of their

facility of sewage discharge in the eco-plating specialised zone. The
grants are recognised as other revenue over the estimated useful

lives of the plant facilities.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
p e

— A=

31 December 2021 —Z&—

33. IE IE B T 4 B

MBARERNTEE RETENES
ZBRHEERRRAREEEX G HE

PN

respective environmental energy saving facility and controlling BERES B ZIRFBE AR M &5 KW

EREREZME - MR NIRETERE R
B2 fh &t A HA TR R R

REMWA

HK$'000
FHIT
Receipt of grants I B 4 Bb
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—F—H 12,082
Exchange adjustments ME i A 670
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 RZE_TF+_A=+—HEK
—E-—%—HF—H 12,752
Exchange adjustments ME W A 607
Receipt for the year F A U ER 10,500
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—-F+=H=+—8H 23,859
Release of grants WA
At 1 January 2020 RZEZTF—HA—H 4,939
Exchange adjustments bE 5 & 303
Release for the year FRELY 1,077
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—8xK
—E-—%—HF—H 6,319
Exchange adjustments PEE 5, 3 =& 244
Release for the year FREH 1,808
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZB--F+=-A=+—H 8,371
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2021 R=ZZB--F+=-HA=+—H 15,488
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZBE_ZF+-_H=+—H 6,433
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33. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 33. IE ZE BT 46 B (48)
: (continued)
The government grants were analysed for reporting purpose as: BIFHEERME 2T A :
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Current liabilities nEBaE 2,057 1,106
Non-current liabilities EREBE 13,431 5,327
15,488 6,433

34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED M. NG BHRRAB RN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2B #H
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (@) REEBEMRAITRAZ
of financial position: BV EARA IR -
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Provision of PRC Corporate REFE R B E TS T EHE
Income Tax for current year 17,479 19,756
Provision of PRC Corporate Income B FE P B ¥ TS5 EE
Tax for prior years 1,896 3,986
Exchange adjustments PE X 3% 206 278
Income tax refunded W e Fris iR 1,804 -
Income tax paid BERH (15,291) (17,769)
6,094 6,251

228  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

=%
31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

A MGEEMBRABRA
Z.ﬁﬁ *R(nﬁ)

(b)

BTSSR S

EERECHBEER

A&

() ELHBEERAEEAG
Z,ﬁ*ﬁ:

I R & B 5 AR 0L 2k D FE R
3B FE TR ( éF‘)/EhaZW
MRERNEBHIIMT

Effect of
withholding
tax on
Fair value distributable
Fair value  adjustment profits of
adjustment of assets  the Group’s  Impairment
on equity  on business PRC loss on trade
investments combination  subsidiaries  receivables Total
BIHY
rEEZ
REHAH PEKEAT
RAREz HEEFHZ TR EYRRZ
NPERR  ATESRE  RAc¥E HERE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2020 “2-FE-f-H 4121 18,583 10,928 = 33,632
Charge to other comprehensive W\,HH’E;EH&E
income 2,860 = = = 2,860
Released upon distribution R RREEEY
of dividends - - (3,828) - (3,828)
Charge to profit or loss FABRHE - (986) 5,857 - 4,871
At 31 December 2020 and - 3_7¢+ A=1+-AR
1 January 2021 kZEz-%-f—-H 6,981 17,597 12,957 - 37,535
Charge to other comprehensive  5f AE# 2 E Uiz
income (3,410) - - - (3,410)
Released upon distribution R ERERED
of dividends - - (5,345) - (5,345)
Charge to profit or loss frABR - (516) 4,815 (9,987) (5,688)
Exchange adjustments R - - - (167) (167)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%+ZA=t-H 3,571 17,081 12,427 (10,154) 22,925
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o ) [ : =+
34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 34 . REAMBRAERA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ZFh#E# (&)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EHERELEHBBEE K
(continued) BE: (8)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) A& B R &K 2 B8R
position
2021 2020
—EB=-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Net deferred tax assets recognised R4 Bk R & R
in the consolidated statement of ZIEERIEE EFRE
financial position (10,154) -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R 434 B #E ARk L R #E R
in the consolidated statement of ,LLHIEE{E@%
financial position 33,079 37,535
22,925 37,535
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () RMERZELEMBEE :
The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately AREBEFREANTREBRED
HK$12,475,000 (2020: Nil) that will expire in one to five years 712,475,000 7T (Z T — T4 :
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax /) - B oa] UK 8 R 2R B SR B i A
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it H—rﬁ’\ ZRAFREE - R THEE
is uncertain that taxable profits will be available against which SHEERT N TARKEZE
the tax losses can be utilised. MEFEE BRI RRZEEER
RABBEEBIREE -
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBEEAELANTREERA
HK$50,036,000 (2020: HK$50,036,000) for offsetting against 50,036,000 T (ZZE =T F :
future taxable profits indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have not 50,036,000/% Jr) + A] LA 4% (R A 3K
been recognised in respect of these losses and it is uncertain AR RERF A o MAFZEE
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax BRERAELEREEE  BITHE
losses can be utilised. EREEBSERTUR M AKBEZE
IR -
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) RERZELEHBERE

At 31 December 2021 and 2020 there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities.
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35.SHARE CAPITAL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B IS SRR MR

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

35.lE A&
Number of shares Share capital
ROEE R 2
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—f% —_T_TF ZB--F ZTTF
‘000 ‘000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bl F A THET FHET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each

Authorised
At 1 January and 31 December

EREEC.NIETZ
EBER

EE
R—A—BEK+=A
=+—A

100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January and 31 December

ERTRAR
R—A—BE+Z-A

=+—H 3,035,697 3,035,697 30,357 30,357
As at 31 December 2021 the holders of ordinary shares are entitled RZFZ—F+ZA=t—H EBK
to receive dividend to be declared from time to time and are entitled RAEANARUBBIREIR KRS I
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ARAAFRBRRAEG EREFRRG K —
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual R-RARFRBRTAEMS  FMAER

assets.

BIGFHRSHER -
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36.RESERVES 36. # &
(a) The Group (@) AEH
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out AEBEREZEDFBHIRGEE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. =EBRK
(b) The Company (b) AR A
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RGEE BRERE REBF @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TAL TAL

(note (c)(i)) (note (c)(vii))
(HEE () (M (i)
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-_TF—-A—H 456,465 - 154,997 611,462
Profit for the year FEERH - - 36,298 36,298
Dividend relating to 2019 “E-NERE - - (21,250) (21,250)
Equity settled share-based transactions R AR BB R
(note 40(a)) fEER 2 2 5 (H5H40(a)) - 601 - 601
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 A=Z-ZF+-A=+—-HAER
“Z--f%-f-A 456,465 601 170,045 627,111
Profit for the year ERRET - - 43,114 43,114
Dividend relating to 2020 “E-TFRE - - (21,857) (21,857)
Equity settled share-based transactions IR a st BRIk
(note 40(a)) {EERE 2 325 (H3140()) - 305 - 305
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB--%+-A=t-H 456,465 906 191,302 648,673
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves and their () FEzHEMAERESE
movements
(i) Share premium (i) RpzE
The application of the share premium account is BHhRBEREZERAIIHS
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law (Chapter BERaE(—NAA~N—FF3
22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of SEDIE202E - KA kB
the Cayman Islands. The balance of share premium is S E3MEZIE o R B
distributable and for such use as permissible under the Z2EBAESRNEBERS
laws of Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of BELERARRIEHER
the Company. AR FT 2 AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves and their

movements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies of
translation of foreign currencies. The balance of this
general reserve is distributable and available for such use
as permissible under the laws of Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
in note 2(x) to the financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at the end of the reporting period and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(h) to the financial statements.

Capital reserve

On 17 February 2011, the Group's effective interest
in NSIL was increased from 38% to 98%, and NSIL
Group became 98% indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and the excess of fair value of net assets
acquired over cost of acquisition of 98% equity interests
in NSIL Group of HK$4,185,000 (after deduction of
acquisition related costs) was recognised as deemed
contribution from the transferors, New Universe
Enterprises Limited and another party, in their capacity
as shareholders of the Company and fully credited as
capital reserve in the equity of the Group.

On 7 October 2015, the Group’s effective interest in
NSIL was increased from 98% to 100%, and the excess
of carrying value of net assets acquired over cost of
acquisition of the remaining 2% equity interests in NSIL
Group of HK$378,000 (after deduction of acquisition
related costs) was recognised as deemed contribution
from the transferor in his capacity as shareholder of
the Company and fully credited as capital reserve in the
equity of the Group.

31 December 2021

B RS R I RE

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

36. f# & (4)

(c)

HETHERARRAS

(&)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

[E 5 1
ELFEEERREBINES
ZHEREREL Z A I
EZR -REEDIREEBER
Bz @t BRER - Z
—RFEE BRI HDIR R
RIERSHEERRARE
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% ek 1R TO AR AR B 75 R P R
200FT 8 2 BT BRBE IR ©

REE G
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B F
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36.RESERVES (continued) 36. K (&)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments for future

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves and their 0 EZMHENRAELEE
movements (continued) (&)
(v)  Share option reserve (v) ERERE
Share option reserve comprises the value of the BREREBRERED KR
unexercised share options granted by the Company =B EE2(s) (i) BT 55 49 9 LA B 17
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy AR SRR ERL
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(s)(ii) to the AKARERERETFEER
financial statements. EREE -
(vi)  Statutory reserve i) ETFRE
In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, REFBHMBBEER  &A2a
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are PR BB S 2 B BB A B R
required to transfer a certain percentage of its profits BEETLLO 2% F
after tax to reserve funds. Subject to certain restrictions ZRE B -ETEEH
set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the EREWB AR 2 BB ER
subsidiary’s articles of association, the reserve funds may MAIZHRRB T FEHERLER
be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by Al AR B B S A B R R
way of paid-up capital. RZFRBEAR -
(vii)  Distributability of reserves (vii)  FEEZ A 2R 1%
At 31 December 2021, the Company had reserves in the RZE-_—F+_-_A=+—
amount of HK$648,673,000 (2020: HK$627,111,000) H ARRBAMED IR T HEE
available for distribution to its owners. B A2 #1#648,673,000% 7T
(ZZE=ZF 627,111,000
BIT) °
37.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 7. XREHEKIE
The Group as lessee REBEREAEA

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 £5H

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in HWMAZMESR T B HEBZ T E
respect of office premises which fall due as follows: HEEHEZ RRREHEAENT :
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Within 1 year 156 A 560 560
The Group as lessor AEBEEALEA

The Group leases out certain of its factory buildings under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally provides for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS J7.WEHE RIE (88)

TS RAMET

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

(continued)
The Group as lessor (continued) AREBEAHBEA (B) k4
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable R-ZEBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H ' x&EEH 1
under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: AATBUHG EHER TR RENE B
ENROT :
2021 2020
—E2-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT
Within 1 year —FRX 33,707 28,771
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNRN 27,151 27,442
After 2 years but within 3 years MFBE=FN 17,079 21,135
After 3 years but within 4 years ZFRBEMNFA 10,664 11,531
After 4 years but within 5 years MEBBRFA 5,922 6,254
After 5 years FF & 10,696 21,077
105,219 116,210
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. & AR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

RBEMR  AEE 2 EAREENT

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI A B R -
— Capital expenditure in respect of —E@EME - BEREHZ
property, plant and equipment B R R E 20,624 15,359
— Capital contribution payable to — B TFRAKRENLE
the equity investment 15,976 15,771
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39.PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND AVAILABLE
CREDIT FACILITIES

(a)

N.EERFRERAEEME

Pledge of assets (a) EEHEH
At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of assets pledged RZZE-_—4F+-_A=+—8" 5
as collaterals for banking facilities granted to the Group by ETRIBRTFAEBRZHBITRE R
certain banks and for trading purpose in favour of clients and MRSGENURFERHEE AT
suppliers are set out as follows: AMBRERBERR 2 EEZRE
BEHHNMT
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEMEE 108,107 114,782
Land use rights T A 28,830 28,523
Pledged bank deposits BERIBITIFR 8,191 12,511
145,128 155,816
Available credit facilities (b) EHREEMRE

At 31 December 2021, the total banking facilities
of the Group amounted to HK$213,610,000 (2020:
HK$244,995,000) which were utilised to the extent
of unsecured bank loans of HK$125,770,000 (2020:
HK$124,725,000) and secured bank loans of HK$73,200,000
(2020: HK$ 64,310,000) and the available unutilised
banking facilities amounted to HK$14,640,000 (2020:
HK$55,960,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H &
EEZBITRER%E /213,610,000
B (ZZT ZF F 1 244,995,000
B R EEA BRI
B &125,770,0008 L (— T - &
£ 1 124,725,000 7T) & A R
TE K A73,200,0008 T (—F =
T4 : 64,310,000/ 7T) M Kk A
2 EARITRLE £14,640,0007 7T
(ZZ=—F4F : 55960,00087C) °
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B # R R MEE
31 December 2021 =ZT=——F+=-A=+—H
40.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND 40. Bl EFE REERIK

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS Rl )
(a) Share option scheme (a) HERx#ESTE e

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s non-executive directors, including independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group, consultants
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders and any
non-controlling shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 5 May 2015 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the adoption date. The maximum
number of shares issuable under the Scheme to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, within 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, commence after a vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

ARBELE—EBREE ([Z
iE))  BERHAKEERBES
BERlzEER2EEFEHER LD
e LTEZAERSEERTEA
RAZHATES (BRBILIEH
TEF) AKERE AEEHE
B AEBZzZEREREGHER
AEEZBE ARABRRRAR
AP BN B Z R FE AR AR R © 3%
HEBR-T-AFREAOBRE
M BRIFWAITHEHKAER] - BRI
FEEEZ AR TFARABR -

RIBEZET S - W EER B MR
T8 2 TB AR TR 1T (R B P8 e 2 B
D ERBERERRBERMABHCD
BITIRM Z210% » FEAE + — {8 A
HE ZA S8R ER2EERE
ZAt B Z BTN LR AR AR
EEMBEESETRN 21% - &
SMEH B LR B BAE
BRERARE CERRALAE -

BYEE TRERIARAETE
E B EZERABHEALZE
feiE WBBLEBIIENTES
HEEE o B AN - AR+ =@ A 8
MEFARBIEZRREBILIES
TEEI RS2 EMBEALTZE
&7 2 42 (B A B AN A 7)1 1 {a] B
BETIM 20.1%k 2 E (REAX
ARREEREZERAARRKRGZ
B mERE) # 85,000,000/
L BERIERRAE EERFEHR
AE o

AR AT AEAREZE L B BT
28HAZ N REARIOB T2 BE
RE BEMNEHBRE - BREZ
TEPHESET  HRBHER
ih o WHN IR AR B BB R T4
R IE o

B_-F58 HFRAESEARAA
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

40. BRI ESE RIEE RN
mF (%)

(continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BBMHESTEI(E)
The exercise price of share option is determinable by the BREZTHFEKRESEE  AE
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the TEERTIIESE : ()VIFLHBER
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock BAEAQARRMDRERE AR
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer BE FRIRZWTIE (VAR AK
of the share options; (ii) the average of the closing prices HREERHERZEAHIIAER
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock exchange’s SHEBIBHESE LR F
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately BT E KA R B B % E T
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the EHvEE BRETEETRA
Company’s shares on the date of offer. Share options do not AZBEREIRBREAREG LRR
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the FEF o
shareholders’ meetings.
The following share options were outstanding under the BIEZTEIMRITEZBRENT
Scheme:
2021 2020
—E--F “Z-%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mELH METH
fTEE EBREZE TRE  BREXRE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T BT FH
Outstanding at 1 January n—A—AEKETHE 0.250 9,640 - -
Granted during the year ERFL 0.272 11,380 0.250 11,000
Forfeited during the year ERHZ - - 0.250 (1,360)
Qutstanding at 31 December RTZA=t—ARRENE 0.262 21,020 0.250 9,640
Exercisable at the end of the period AR 0.250 9,640 - -

No share options were exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average
exercise price of HK$0.262 (2020: HK$0.250) per share and
remaining a contractual life ranging from 1.37 years to 3.55
years (2020: 2.37 years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

31 December 2021

40. IR EFEI RESRIK

wmF (&)

MHEME

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

Al

(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 15 January
2021 and 15 January 2020 was approximately HK$578,000
and HK$836,000 respectively, of which the Group
recognised total share option expense of HK$305,000 (2020:
HK$601,000) charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured with reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of share
options is measured based on binomial option pricing model
by the independent firm of professional valuer, CBRE Limited,
taking into account the terms and condition upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Az E (8)

RZFEZ—F—AT+HEBRZ=ZZ
—ETFEF-A+HBEHNERE
# A B 5 Rl 4 A&578,000% 7T K&
836,000 7t EF AEEE R &
E_E-_—F+-_A=+—BIE
S 7R B # S 51 F 305,000
T (ZZE T4 601,000 T) °
I E B R -

SLIREUR H BB AR RS 2 &
FEDSEERIBREZATE
R -BEREZAFEZMGEFTIH
BYEXRMGEMEBREBECARAD
AREBE-_BEANEEERAE
I E B R X T R Z R R ART -
TRILTAERNEANBAE:

2021 2020

—E-—F —EZTHF

Fair value at measurement date FFTEHMAFE HK$0.0847% Jt HK$0.0767% 7T
Share price at grant date B B HRR (D B HK$0.270% 7t  HK$0.250/ 7T
Exercise price 1188 HK$0.27238 7Tt  HK$0.250% 7T
Expected volatility B AR B X 51.135% 48.925%
Expected life of options TE & B 4E & HA 3.55 years 3.33 yearstF
Expected dividend yield TEHAAR B & 2.64% 2.67%
Risk-free interest rate 2 7 b A R 0.22% 1.52%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted by any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option granted.

T8 B R 1R DA R 520K 1R 28 B 2 (IR 1%
BREZ MEFARSRERTH)
WIRBERTARERFSZERESR
RREE 2 E A BB T AR
B -FAHREUNEERBR/EE -
MERAIBRRZEHITHLTE
ZIEAEEERTE -

A A B R AR IR R R B R
#-RAECERZBRBREL A
Mz nVPER ZGHLEFEE
Ne-BEERNBREBR TS
TERAF o

P-—55H FFEREEARAR
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The terms and conditions of the option granted for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Number of shares

to be issued upon

exercise in full of

the options granted  Vesting conditions
RUBREELETE

BAFRITROHE  BEEY

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND 40. B ESTEI REEERIK
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS wmA (48)
(continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) SHEST &I (8)

+o A=+ -BLEESHERE
B AT

Contractual life of options

BRENSHER

Options granted 11,380,000 shares The Options granted shall be vested

to employees: upon achievement of certain vesting

on 15 January 2021 conditions (the "2021 Vesting
Conditions”) as specified in the offer
letter (the "Offer Letter”) of each
respective Grantee. If the 2021 Vesting
Conditions applicable to the relevant
Grantee are not achieved, the unvested
Options granted to such Grantee shall
be cancelled as specified in the Offer
Letter.

The Options shall vest in the proportions
to be determined according to each
particular Offer letter on the date the
2021 Vesting Conditions applicable to
the relevant Grantee are achieved.

RYEEZERE: 11,380,000 FIREBREERSABARANEL R
R-ZE-—%F—f ([BEHE]) RTHENE THE KH
+3R (20215 BN ERERE - HER

IRBIAR AR2021 58 BRI RBEZRY -
BYEBARANKEBERESRE
WEHMABE T A -

BRESNERRMEBRRAN20215E

GRHERERRERTERORERNOL
FlFE -
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Subject to the Options having been

vested, the Options granted are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ending 31
December 2023 (the “2023 Results
Date”) to the earlier of (i) the date
on which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2023 Results
Date.

FREEGRR  AMROBRETR

HEARAHEE-_T-_=F+=HA
“+-BLEFEMNEFEERS
([ZZE-—=F2E88]) R
EENTHH(UBREAE)
HVEBBRERERERE BN
DRMMBE: F()—T==F%
ERHREOELER -
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31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND 40. BRI EFE RIEB RN
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS &F (%)
(continued) |
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BBIHEETEI(E)

Number of shares
to be issued upon
exercise in full of

the options granted  Vesting conditions Contractual life of options
RUBREELETE
BATRTROBE  BEG4 BRENSHES
Options granted 9,640,000 shares Subject to the performance targets The Options granted are exercisable
to employees: specified in the offer letter of each from the date of vesting to the earlier
on 15 January 2020 respective grantee having been achieved of (i) the date on which such Options
by the respective grantee, the Options lapses in accordance with the terms
shall vest in the proportions to be of the Share Option Scheme; or (ii)
determined according to each particular the 30th business day after the date
offer letter on the 30th business day of publication of the annual results of
after the date of publication of the the Company for the year ending 31
annual results of the Company for the December 2022.
year ending 31 December 2020.
F%E“Zﬁ%%% © 9,640,000/ BRARAEBUBERZANAET2RE RUZBRETHEE A HLR0)
RZZEZZE—f BRE BRESNAARTEBZE_Z REBR BB 2GR Z5H
+1H TR At -BUFECEEEE REXRMZB KARREES
BE=TREEXARRRERIKERS B_F+-A=t+-HILFE
BT 2 L PIRE - $ERMBAERE=TELXA
(ABREERE) T -
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 18 January REHBERE  RZTE-_=
2022, a total of 13,080,000 share options were granted to —B+N\RB NEBETREREER
certain employees of the Group in respect of their services to & £13,080,00017 B B 4 - LA
the Group in the forthcoming year. These share options to be WENRNKEBRNEBIRBERE -
vested on 31 March 2025 have an exercise price of HK$0.308 =i J]ngﬁ_,gA_ = - HE= A
per share and are exercisable at any time during the period =t+—H¥EB THEEAEK
from 31 March 2025 to 12 August 2025. The price of the 0.3087% 7T - —jﬁ/\_ LT - FHF=H
Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$0.305 per =t+—BZE-_E-_AFENB+=—H
share. EAMIBEREITE - A ARG NE

HEIZ B8 BER0.3058 T °
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(continued)

(b)

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities in Jiangsu Province, whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at
certain percentage of the eligible employee’s salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligation payable to the retired employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2020: HK$30,000).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately. No contribution(s)
shall be forfeited and used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions of the Group. The Group has
no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits associated with the MPF Scheme beyond the annual
contributions described above.
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41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

List of related parties

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Directors are of the view that the following entities and
persons are related parties to the Group:

Name of the related party
BEEER

NUEL

NUEL

Sun Ngai International Investment Limited

("Sun Ngai”)

HEBREERRAR (TFE])

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

RNKRLE

Zhenjiang Xin Qu (note 18)

SEOT 3[R (FF3E18)

NCIP (note 18)
FRAF(MEE18)

Xinyu Rongkai (note 19)

#F R F(HTRE19)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R AR P

31 December 2021 —ZE=——%®+=-A=+—H

M EBHRBALTRS

() BEBALTZRE
REEZE-Z-_—FR_ZT_FF
TZA=+—RALEFE EEFRA
TH AR RAEERE 2B B AL

Relationship
&

A shareholder beneficially interested in 36.54% (2020: 36.54%) of
the issued share capital of the Company. The Company’s Directors,
Mr. XI'and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also directors of NUEL.
RARTF36.54% (ZFEZFF : 36.54%) B BEITRATES Btk
MR - RARBEFREERKRNRLETIRBNUELZ B ©

A company being 100% owned by New Universe Holdings Limited
("NUHL"). The Company’s Director, Mr. Xl and Ms. CHEUNG Siu
Ling are also directors of Sun Ngai and NUHL.

A FERER QA ([FHFER]) HEEB100%#E w2 A A o XA F]
EEERENRKRINERLINRH BRI FERZES -

A shareholder of NUEL beneficially interested in 83.66% of the
issued share capital of NUEL. Mr. Xl is also the director of NUEL,
NUHL and Sun Ngai.

NUELZ IR 3R » FANUELZ 83.66% B B/ TR A F A EmiEm o it
HEIRRNUEL s T FEREHB 2 E S -

A shareholder of NUEL beneficially interested in 6.07% of the issued
share capital of NUEL. Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling is also the director of
NUEL, NUHL and Sun Ngai.

NUELZ BRE - IANUELZ6.07% BB TIRAPHEE Em R « 5R/®
ZEIRRNUEL - T FEREFB 2 E R -

An associate of the Group, of which the Company holds an effective
equity interest of 24.6%, and the subsidiary, Zhenjiang New
Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited directly holds an
equity interest of 30%.

AEFEZBERE  ARBRETHF24.6% 2 ERBA - I A
BRAABEINMTERENEEERARBEEFTH30%MR AR -

An associate of the Group, of which the Company holds an indirectly
owned equity interest of 30%.
RAFZEE » NRARIRE PREEZEER0%RKR A -

A joint venture of the Group, of which the Company, being one of
the two joint venturers, holds an indirectly owned equity interest of
65% and shares joint control of the joint venture.
REBZEEMRE  ARFAMERMEBEE T2 —  BEHEAHESY
BREWTHAZEZEERE 2 HRZEGRE-

P55 FFRRAREBARAA
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties

M EBRBALTRS (E

(b) EBEBBALZRS

2021 2020
= —TTF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
i FTET THETT
Revenue from environmental REBRREEER R
equipment construction and AR 7S 2 U 2%
installation services
; = Xinyu Rongkai —FFE 0] 6,957 37,342
Interest income T B U A
- NCIP —ERRTF (i) 13 -
- Xinyu Rongkai —HF sl (iif) = 34
Rental expenses (included in the  f4 B9 (5] A £ E
administrative expenses of the AHES)
Group)
- Sun Ngai — s (iv) 960 960
Charges on hazardous waste B EE Y IEIEE M
landfill disposal (included in the (B A7 2 [ 4 £ R AN )
cost of sales of the Group)
- Zhenjiang Xin Qu —BIHE (v) 17,075 19,042

Notes:

Under the joint venture agreement in relation to the
establishment of Xinyu Rongkai for the purpose of setting
up an integrated hazardous waste treatment centre, which
includes an integrated hazardous waste treatment plant
and a hazardous waste landfill site located at Liuzhou in
Guangxi, PRC, the Group is entitled to designate contractor
to be selected at prevailing market price for constructing the
facilities of the joint venture and a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group was selected under a general contract bidding
to become the contractor at the total contract sum of
RMB48,980,000 (approximately HK$57,796,000) for the
construction of the entire phase | incineration facilities. The
total contract sum for construction of the phase | incinerator
of the joint venture was determined and transacted on
arm’s length basis. The construction contract does not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

244
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes: (continued)

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

4 BHEBALTZ S (8

31 December 2021

(o) BEBEBBALZRS ()
HisE : (4)

i. Interest income was arisen on an advance of RMB810,000 i. MEWATELEERBERRF
(approximately HK$988,000) to NCIP bearing interest rate EE Z#3% AR #810,0007T
at 4.0% p.a. for 6 months and repaid on 16 February 2022. (47988,000/8 7t) ' & X A&

4.0% BARNEA - WER =
T__F_RA+RBEE-

ii. Interest income was arisen on advance of RMB3,000,000 i.  FBWATELFRTFL
(approximately HK$3,447,000) to Xinyu Rongkai bearing e 2 2 3 A K #%3,000,000
interest rate at 4.35% p.a. for the period from 10 7T (#3,447,00058 7T) » F A &
September 2020 to 30 November 2020. BA435%  HIERAR T T F

hWA+BE=ZE=ZF+—A8
=+R-

iv.  Rental expenses were charged by Sun Ngai for leasing office v. RFEIN2HASHATEAE
premises of the Group in Hong Kong. The leases run for a KEBREBZIBRAEYWES
period of one year and the monthly rent was determined oM AH—F AHESESD
in commensurate with the market rate. The tenancy BEMBSEBZ2HER - A&
agreements in respect of the rental expenses entered B2 ENBEARERERA
into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, BAR (ERIER]) B 2
Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech Services”) and Sun MEIZEMESRAXZOEE R
Ngai were de minimis transactions exempted under rule =B LEMARE14A.76(1)(a) &
14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. RENFTARERREKENR

5

V. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the charges on V. HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—
hazardous waste landfill disposal paid by 5 (2020: 5) HIEFE AEESH(ZZT =
subsidiaries in PRC of the Group to Zhenjiang Xin Qu were ZTF :5fE) PR B R ME
made according to the contracted prices and conditions and IHES 2 EkEEYyEER
subject to the compliance with the relevant administrative EMEBDREGOERREMH
requirements promulgated by the National Pricing Bureau WEFEREBERERRM
in PRC. These transactions do not constitute connected ZABITHRER ZHARBRTED -
transactions or continuing connected transactions under BIE FTHRBE T MAS - 2%
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. %égg%ﬁi HERHAFE

2838 55 5 o

The Directors are of the opinion that the above related parties
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms and
were priced with reference to prevailing market prices, and in

the ordinary course of business of the Group.

Balances with related parties

EERA - LARFDHEAARR
A B A 2T 7 2 AR B 1 o A
BEERREST  SERATER
& AEASEYAEEHBED
17 -

(c) HEARIRE AL 2R
Maximum outstanding
balance during the year ended

HEUATFERRRHEESAHR

2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--f —Z-%TF B —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FAET
Amounts due from customers for Fi—HAZCEZANHTE
contract works in relation to BUMEF 2HR
ajoint venture
- Xinyu Rongkai —¥FEs 3,186 4,048 4,048 9,168
Accounts payable for charges on £ — B & /1 7] /5 [ A 42
hazardous waste landfill disposal EREVEERENR 2
in relation to an associate ERERK
- Zhenjiang Xin Qu -BIFE 3,936 3,724 - -
Other receivables Hih k38
- NCIP -BRKXF 988 - 988 -
K58 HFEFRRAEEERAF
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41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

Provision of guarantee to a related party

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer,
as the joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement
with a bank in PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment
obligations of Xinyu Rongkai (a 65% indirectly owned joint
venture of the Company) in relation to the bank loan facilities
in a total amount of RMB120,000,000 (approximately
HK$141,600,000) and the guarantee is effective until 31
December 2027, for the purpose of financing the construction
of the integrated hazardous waste treatment project
undertaken by Xinyu Rongkai in Liuzhou, PRC.

The guarantee disclosed above was not recorded at fair value,
as in the opinion of the management, the difference in the
interest rates, by comparing the actual rate charged by the
bank with this guarantee made available, with the estimated
rate that the bank would have charged had the guarantee not
been available, is not material.

As at 31 December 2021, such banking facilities
guaranteed by the Company was utilised to the extent of
RMB107,393,000 (approximately HK$131,019,000) which is
repayable on 21 June 2025 and bearing interest at 4.75% per
annum.

The provision of guarantee disclosed above does not
constitute a connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
and the Company, including amounts paid to the Directors
of the Company as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the
highest paid individual as disclosed in note 10 to the financial
statements, is presented as follows:

41. BRAE

(d)

A:t',\ (:--E)

M A B A TREER
R-ZE_ZTFNLA-_+HB AR
AHEAEEH (EAH Iﬁ%f’%%)\)ﬁﬁi
B — R TTET S R i
EERFTFELED (AR TF'EH%%E
5% EERE)HREBESEERAAR
#120,000,0007T (#J141,600,000
BIL) CRITERBE ZERE
BEZFE-+F+=ZA=+—H8"
BEMARANTFEINERMLASP
BN 2 fE R BE 4R A R IR AR A IR

R EENERLAERDIFEA
RO REEERA  BBLBRTT
EREZERNER T ER B
AR EIRITEL BB HEROBR
TEFTREO AR ZFNERETK

Eé;;f*¢+ A=+—8" XK
NEIFTERAOBITRECHHAAR
107, 393 ooofz (#9131,019,000

BIL) EBR T _-_HFENA
i El/ﬁ;a I 1% F F E4.75%
e

it PR AR R AR T AR B
FUAEETHNEB I N FERD

B 5 o

FTEEEBALZHE
AEBRARNATEEREALZ
Be (BEMEIREZ BN TAR
AEFFARA B RRM T 10HE
ZERTFETREHELND B
BT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMET 11,794 10,534

Discretionary bonuses [SREREEAN 4,754 6,233

Contributions to retirement RIRAEF ETEI R

schemes 1,071 478
Equity-settled share-based payment AR 7N 4 25 5T & 32 iR 1) 1

expenses EWRTARE 305 601

17,924 17,846
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TEERARMIE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities for each

31 December 2021

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

2. mnFglozeMI A

AEERBERRSHEERTAZER

category of the Group’s financial instruments as at the end of the EEMBEERAENOT !
reporting period are as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHIT
(i) Financial assets (i) =@MEE
Financial assets at amortised cost LESHE AT E2eRMEE
Trade and bills receivables RS R EE 150,022 129,438
Refundable deposits and other MREFT&R
receivables Hfh fE YR IE 3,847 5,841
Pledged bank deposits BEMIBITFER 8,191 12,511
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRELIEER 302,074 257,523
Financial assets at fair value BRHEMEZEWERATLE
through other comprehensive ARzEREE
income
Equity investments at fair value FEREMEERREATE
through other comprehensive AEZBRAERE
income (no recycling adjustment to (FrIBlEAEER)
profit or loss) 80,800 118,100
Total financial assets ETRMEERTE 544,934 523,413
(ii)  Financial liabilities (i) 2@WMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised REBSRATEZ
cost E- =R
Bank borrowings RITIEE 198,970 189,035
Other borrowing HiEE - 25,000
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 78,607 66,315
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT B (B R H e 5RI8 228,986 226,539
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,470 147
Total financial liabilities =R 508,033 507,036

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective

notes to the financial statements.

SRMTANRBERENGANBRES
G
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OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
,ﬁ%iﬁ’z%z ffaE

31 December 2021 —&_——

==

43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

43.

EMIAEZRATERE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial BREBEEEABMBERSE A FEMR
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that EEN AEBZERMIAZEREEK
reasonable approximate to fair values, are as follows: NEEWT
Carrying amount Fair value
FEE ATE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—g--& _"T-%F C-B--§f "EBC-®RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TER
Financial assets at fair value through FEBEMZEKFE L TE
other comprehensive income ARz EREE
Equity investments at fair value FREMEPAREERATE
through other comprehensive AR BRARE (T 2eE)
income (non-recycling) (note 20) (Htiz20) 80,800 118,100 80,800 118,100

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in refundable deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, deposits received from customers, contract
liabilities, amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximately to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturity of these
instruments. The Directors consider the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost of the Group is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable markets transactions.

The fair values of non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for the
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non- performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 was
assessed to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
BTSRRI RE
31 December 2021 —E—_—F+=-A=+—H
43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF A3.eMIBEZATEFF=
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (48) )

The fair values of unlisted equity investments in plastic materials REBHRPEENIELTRAKRE 2R F :
dyeing have been estimated based on assumption that are not B EN I EB R A ST 5 E S =
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation YEZBRMGE - ETHER S KAAQ A

requires the Directors of the Company to make estimates using EEFEHRATEAERET AR ZRE

the enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax ratio of BEE LB BB AT & AL = m (& Et
comparable listed companies adjusted for discount on lack of WEREHBSZ TSR 2T ERAE -
marketability. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value EEMREHEEREMERZ AT ATE

resulting from the valuation methodology, which are recorded in (P AEZEHMBERRAR) RAFEZH

the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related BEH (A AHEMLE2EAREZR)EES

changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive B UWARBREHRZEE 2EE -

income, are reasonable and they were appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy NEE R

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's other TRNTAEBRFERARZETHEE

financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of Ets7EMEemMI AZAFE - E@

the reporting period on recurring basis, which categorised into the ST ERBEABBUERELERFI3

three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value RATEAEMAEZ=ZERAFEER -

Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is AFEHEMGREZERDIZ2BUATHE

classified is determined with reference to the observability and BERMFTASEZITEBERIEENEER

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: EmMEE :

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 - FEfE ERF-EHEITE
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for ANEE - BRFELHEREHRE
identical assets and liabilities at the measurement date. ENBBEEIBRMIE ZAEARR

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — FoRBGHE FTHFE_REBEHE:=
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not NEE - BREFEE—EB 2RI
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BRERNNZEE AR TERTA
inputs for which market date are available. BRBIZEEHE - T 8RE

Az BEEARBABOTISEUE -
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF A3 EMIBEZATFESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBERER (8)
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — %:Jﬁ'ﬁ% R ERER
unobservable inputs. BEEHBRITENTFE-
2021 2020
—E--F —2-%%
Fair value Fair value
at31 at31
December December
;I ) 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
3 iy
ZBI-F 23
TR TZA
Er=FZ =t+-Az

A¥E $-F %-E %=E A¥E £-B 2B EE]
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TET TET TR TR

Equity investments at fair value through EBEM 2 EMHEATEAR
other comprehensive income (no LBRARE (THEERZER)

recycling adjustment to profit or (Hi#20)
loss) (note 20) 80,800 - - 80,800 118,100 - - 118,100
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers REBEZ-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=1+—HLILF
between level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2020: B -WEREF-—BRF_BzHEBER.
Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of SEAGEHE"B (T _TF  E) -
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which REBEB HEAREBRELAHMERRK
they occur. BRAFEERENES -
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements: FE-ERATEFEZER
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Key data applied
RELE EXTABNGAZE TEERYE
2021 2020
—E--f  ZZ-EE
Unlisted equity investments in plastic Market comparable Discount for lack of
materials dyeing companies marketability 16.60% 17.56%
BHAEZ mHAELRAA RzmERBNL
FEMRARE ZHE
EV/EBIT ratio
EV/EBITEL 14.00 16.14
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31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

- . =1
43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF A3.&EMIBEZATEHFE
- ==
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (48)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEERER(E)
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the AP EFEERRZ TSR LA E 1
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2021, it was -MN_ZTE-_—F+_-_A=+—H" 14
estimated that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/ S EEMESRIEFITE  BR=ZMHER
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have BRI % S AER 2 E
increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive income by i 2 U 25 38 hN, I8 424,900,000 7T (=
HK$4,900,000 (2020: HK$7,300,000). T T4 : 7,300,000 7T) °
The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value FRNEZEBAFEFEZEHBEHUT ¢

measurements are follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—& —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Unlisted equity investments: FLETRARE :
At 1 January Hn—A—H 118,100 97,300
Net unrealised income in fair value REMEEHKEERARFEZ
recognised in other comprehensive RER W =IFE
income (37,300) 20,800
At 31 December R+tZR=+—8H 80,800 118,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 S BT =

31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans and
other interest-bearing loans, cash and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from the Group's operations.

The Group'’s activities expose it to risks associated with the financial
instruments include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. Management of
the Company and its subsidiaries coordinates with the board
of Directors at its headquarter in Hong Kong that monitors and
manages the risk exposures and provides written policies to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes nor does it write options. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are
summarised below.

(@) Foreign currency risk
The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars (HK$) as the currency
for presentation purposes. The functional currencies of
the Company and its PRC subsidiaries are HK$ and RMB
respectively.

Some of the trading transactions of the Group were
denominated in United States dollar (US$). The Group's
exposure to currency risk arises from financial instruments
that are monetary items or from financial instruments
denominated not in the functional currencies of the respective
entities within the Group, which are HK$ and RMB. For the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no sales of the
Group were denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the Group.
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44 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rate are as follows:

=%
31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

44 B %5 R fg E 3R B #“&Ei%

B IS SRR S

(48)

(a)

m¢ﬁﬂﬁ<%)

RBEHK - FEBUSNEGED
THEHAERAEREEENK
FEXBE BB

2021 2020
:g: - qE — 7 — ﬂf
US$’000 Us$'000
SESD FET

Monetary financial assets ERSREE
Other receivables Hfh FE YRR 11 10
Cash and cash equivalents BekERKRSEER 300 1,360
311 1,370
Monetary financial liabilities EeREe s = -
Current net exposure B E R 311 1,370

Sensitivity analysis of currency risk

The management considered that the currency risk to be low
as the exchange rates of US$ relative to HK$ or RMB were not
significant for both 2021 and 2020. Therefore, no hedging
or similar measures have been implemented by the Group.
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the impact of the Group’s
exposure to currency risk was minimal. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis was presented.

B % R T
AR ZEZ—FRZE_TFET
HBEBETRARBZEXRZH T
BE BEHERBINERRRIE -
Bt - 7N & B 37 R BREE R K A L
B R-E-—FR-FT_FTF
+ZA=+—8  AEENIERK
TEEW Bt WEEY| G
BT
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31 December 2021 —Z-—%®+_-fF=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of changes in market interest
rate in relation to bank borrowings at fixed and variable
interest rates (note 27) and bank balances (note 25 to the
financial statements for details of these deposits) and fair
value interest rate risk in relation to the other borrowing at
variable rate (note 28). It is the Group's policy to manage its
interest costs using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts,
and to minimise fair value interest rate risk in relation to
borrowings. At 31 December 2021, approximately 54.0%
(2020: 32.8%) of the Group’s bank borrowings and other
borrowing, bore interest at fixed rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets apart from bank balances
with their interest rate profile disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements. The interest rate profiles of the bank
borrowings and other borrowings are disclosed in notes 27

and 28 to the financial statements respectively.

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, for 100 basis points (“bp”, whereas
1 bp is equivalent to 0.01%) increase and decrease in interest
rate as the sensitivity rate, assuming that the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
had been outstanding for the whole year. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit and total equity
where interest rates generally decreased by 100 bp. For an
increase in 100 bp, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and total equity and the balances below

would be negative.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk (continued)

+ 100 bp impact

31 December 2021

DBMEME

—F-—4%+=-A=+—H

44 MHEREE BRRER

(48)
(b) % @K ()

T /2 2 8RB 2 07 (4B

- 100 bp impact

EF100EES 2 E THR100EES &
2021 2020 2021 2020
B ZE-ZTHF T ZITZTFHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THERT FHT
(Decrease)/increase in R F 1805 A
profit after tax CRA) /i mn (2,004) (2,142) 2,004 2,142
(Decrease)/increase in
total equity B CRL) /150 (2,004) (2,142) 2,004 2,142

The sensitivity to interest rates of the Group has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in variable
rate borrowings. The analysis has been presented on the same
basis for both years.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its unlisted
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are determined by reference to
the EBIT multiple of comparable listed companies in the same
industry as set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are held for long-term
strategic purpose, which are confined to equity investments
with key operations in plastic materials dyeing industry in
Mainland China, and have risk and return profiles different
from the core operations of the Group. The performance of
the respective investees has been monitored by the Group’s
delegates appointed to the respective board of directors of
the respective investees, and is assessed by independent
professional valuer at least semi-annually by referring to the
performance of other listed entities with similar business
operations, comparing with the financial data of those
investments available to the Group, and adjusted for the
marketability of these investments relative to the benchmark
data available in the market.

(c)
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31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB RBEEEEHERBR
(%)

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis of other price risk

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
The following table illustrates the sensitivity if the prices
of the respective equity investments had been 5% (2020:
5%) higher/lower, as a result of the changes in the multiple
of enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax of
comparable listed companies in the same industry, at the
reporting date. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post- tax profit and/or total equity, if any, where price of
the equity investments increased by 5%. For a decrease in 5%,
there would be an opposite impact on the profit and/or total
equity and the balances below would be negative.

(c)

BB AR R ()

EL1th (B 15 /7 B2 800 /2 72

THHRESNEARBER RS B
MERAERRERMEE - TRIITR
WERNERTENELRETR
Al hEREELEHA RN Z RS
EEoESRARENEBNRE
BEEATH% (ZT_FF:
5%) MEURE - TREOEHRMNKRT
B R E 2 BRI 5% /9 BR
BAEEME k@A (InE) &
e T FES% - B ENEFI &,k
BEABKRFEEOHERRIR
MmTIROEHREREE -

+ 5% impact -5% impact
EFAH5% TRR5% 2 % &
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-THF ZB--F —T-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTHET FHT
Increase/(decrease) in B B 18 5 R an
profit after tax Ort ) - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in BRR A I CR )
total equity 3,636 5,315 (3,636) (5,315)

The Group’s sensitivity to unlisted equity investments has
applied the same basis for both years.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables (note 22), other receivables (note 23) and contract
assets (note 24). The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period 0.2% (2020: 26.1%)
and 3.1% (2020: 39.5%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customers and the five largest
customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables) at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
services line). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) are written-off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity. The Group does not hold collateral as security over
these balances.

31 December 2021
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44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience over the past
3 years, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and forecast of general
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period
over the expected lives of the receivables. At 31 December
2021,lifetime ECLs of trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) in the amount of HK$41,166,000 (2020:
HK$14,429,000) was provided as amount of impairment
measured under the ECLs model.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade and bills receivables (including lease
receivables) using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

44 MHEREE BT RER

(48)

(d)

EERE (&)
EHEEBERDNERBECZF
MNERBELR HEBAREERE
RETHAR) RRERFBERF
HiZ REHKRY B AT kAR REREL
BERZT G —E-—F+= A
—t—H AEEEFIEEKIER
LEE(BEEREEE) 22 HEH
EEEIEEE41,166,0008 L (= F
T4 114,429,000 7C)  {EAIR
BREBEEEAGFEZRESE -

ATEIBREEAEBERESER
SEREERERE (BFERKHE
E)EERBEEZ AR -

R-ZB--F+ZA=+—H

Trade and bills receivables (including lease receivables)

ERERRRE (BRERESR)

Days past due
BHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than

or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total

%1308 %1208
REBHHE HH308  BHR1208  BHR360H %3608 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TET TET
Expected credit loss rate ~ BEEEEEX 1.12% 1.59% 7.67% 30.88% 95.18% 21.53%
Gross carrying amount FREE 96,385 10,443 10,409 48,630 25,321 191,188
Expected credit loss BAGERE 1,084 166 798 15,017 24,101 41,166
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44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 B ABREBEERNE

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#)
(d) Credit risk (continued) (d)y =ERR (&)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H

Trade and bills receivables (including lease receivables)

RUERRER (BREKEE)

Days past due
BHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than

or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total

%130R %1208
AEHEEH SR308 BLRI120B  BEPR360R %3608 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAT TR TEL TAL

Expected credit loss rate ~ EER{EEEIEER 0.62% 0.99% 2.24% 23.20% 100.00% 10.03%
Gross carrying amount BRI 74,373 11,203 13,068 41,227 3,996 143,867
Expected credit loss BHCERE 464 111 293 9,565 3,996 14,429
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity through maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings, banking facilities, and other
interest-bearing borrowings. In management of the liquidity
risk, the Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity
requirements and its compliance of financial covenants, and
ensures sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. As at 31
December 2021, the Group did not have any available secured
banking facilities not yet drawn down and the unsecured
banking facilities not yet drawn down by the Group were
approximately HK$14,640,000 (2020: HK$55,960,000).

Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis.
Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly. Funding for long-term liquidity needs
will be considered when there is any potential investment
identified. For term loans subject to repayment on demand
clauses which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the following table shows the cash outflow based on the
contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact of
the timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 B HREBREEBBERBR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) MENVERPR () b
The following table details the remaining contractual TRALNFEHARAEE SR E ]
maturities at the end of the reporting period for the BHTANIBEZFHFE  RE
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual B HARITIRIN© M K AL B 0] st
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can EREFCEFHBAEE

be required to pay:

As at 31 December 2021
R=B=-%+ZH=1-H

Total
Carrying undiscounted  Less than 1to3 3 months 1to  More than
amount cash flows 1 month months  to 1year 5 years 5 years
AFRRE

REE REZE OMMER 12318 3MEAZIE 1255 BB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TEn TER TR

Financial liabilities ~ £ REE

Bank borrowings RITEE

- at variable rates ~BFEF® 91,610 92,356 8,918 17,898 65,540 = -

- at fixed rates —REERE 107,360 109,752 2,837 756 106,159 - -
Trade and bills payables &% R R4 78,607 78,607 32,560 14,387 31,660 - -
Accrued liabilities and ~ JE:F BB R EAM

other payables ERFE 228,986 228,986 40,602 3,505 184,879 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,470 1,560 67 134 603 756 -

508,033 511,261 84,984 36,680 388,841 756 -
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44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB RBEEEEHERBR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) TmENIERR (48)

As at 31 December 2020
RZEZZF+ZA=1—H

Total
Carrying  undiscounted Less than Tt03 3 months Tto  Morethan
amount cash flows 1 month months to 1 year 5 years 5 years
AFRES
FHE nELE  OMER  1E3MEA EAEIE 1255 BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TER TER TER TAL

Financial liabilities ~ £®E%E

Bank borrowings BIEE
- at variable rates -RIHH = 118,825 119,065 6,025 8,750 98,050 6,240 -
- at fixed rates - RETHE 70,210 70,480 3,540 6,490 56,050 4,400 -
Other borrowing L
- at variable rate - RRBHE 25,000 25,000 - - 25,000 - -
Trade and bills payables EREHRER 66,315 66,315 12,268 27,627 26,420 - -
Accrued liabilities and ~ [EEF B EREM
other payables A 226,539 226,539 11,335 3,015 212,189 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 147 152 10 20 92 30 -
507,036 507,551 33,178 45,902 417,801 10,670 -
The undiscounted cash flows of the other borrowings and the EMmEENALIETEE EMNE
current portions of bank borrowings, trade payables, accruals, N OEIFAEE EtEMNTZELD
other payables, and deposits received are approximate to Wize 2 REBHMD 2 ATREESR
their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not HERmERES  DAFRZZE
significant. B e
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern;

(i) to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders;

(iii)  to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital;

(iv)  to support the Group's sustainable growth; and

(v)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers
and acquisitions.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group will adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares, buy
back its shares, issue new debts or redeem existing debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

There was no change in the objectives, policies or process for
managing the capital during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

B R R T

31 December 2021 —ZT=—#+=A=+—8

44 MHEREE BRRER

(48)

AEAERE
AEBZEXERABMT ;

i) REAEEEERNAINFE

s
(i) B A 3 [E 9R  R A f F
21 A B SRS

(i) RFZBEARBUEIRE
PN N,

vy XERAEEZAFEZER:
&

v) REBEAHRWBREER -

AEEERREARBYRBELE
REMEBEEZRARUEERER
EARB RTHEBLAREARAR
B AEEEABEINTRIRZK
BB1IHK BORG  BTH
EHKERRBER

EYNGEEEEI010) PG £t
HMERE AR o

REBEE-_ZE-_—FR_ZF_ZTF
+—A=Z+-—BLFER BEE
MEREREZ BIZ - BERRER -
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S
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB REREIEBBERBUER
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
(f) Capital management (continued) fy BXRER(E)
The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio. The Group REERBERABBHLREEHESE
expects to maintain its gearing ratio at less than 50%. The Ko REBEHfFEERAGELL
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as RES0%UAAN - R _FE - —F K
follows: TZEFFTA=+—RHZEEBR
BEEEMAT :
2021 2020
—EB- & —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 198,970 178,905
Other borrowing HiEE = 25,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 750 117
199,720 204,022
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Bank borrowings RITHE = 10,130
Lease liabilities HEAE 720 30
720 10,160
Total interest-bearing debts STEEKEEE 200,440 214,182
Total equity 48 B A 1,182,810 1,163,337
Gearing ratio EESELER 16.9% 18.4%
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31 December 2021

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTHF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5E F#& T FAET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR 2= 654,060 638,897

Current assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries i S ENGIE 92,425 123,621
Prepayments TE T RIA 709 437
Cash and cash equivalents BehZEFRIREIER 24,784 39,252
117,918 163,310
Current liabilities REBEE

Bank borrowings HRITIEE 91,610 112,825
Other borrowing HipEE = 25,000
Accrued liabilities and other payables [E&T & 18 K H fib JE [~ 708 1,338 914
92,948 138,739
Net current assets RBEEFE 24,970 24,571
Total assets BE 771,978 802,207
Total assets less current liabilities REERFBERE 679,030 663,468

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE = 6,000
- 6,000
Total liabilities weE 92,948 144,739
Net assets BEEFE 679,030 657,468

Capital and reserves EXAREE
Share capital B& X 35 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 36 648,673 627,111
Total equity BB 679,030 657,468
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46.

47.
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONTINGENCIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's subsidiaries
have provided regulated medical waste treatment and disposal
services to hospitals and medical clinics, and provided hazardous
industrial waste treatment services and industrial sewage treatment
and disposal services in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The related
operations require valid operating permission licences for processing
specific categories of hazardous waste and/or regulated medical
waste and industrial sewage treatment services issued by the
Environmental Protection Department of the Jiangsu Province,
PRC. To the best knowledge of the Company’s Directors, each of
the Group’s subsidiaries which carries out treatment operations
for hazardous industrial waste treatment and/or regulated medical
waste and industrial sewage treatment services has complied
with the relevant regulations to ensure continuous renewal of the
licences concerned with best efforts, or otherwise, the subsidiary
would cease its operations temporarily until the relevant licence(s) is
being issued.

Save as disclosed therein, for the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC have not incurred significant expenditures for environmental
remediation and have not currently involved in any significant
environmental remediation. In addition, the Company and the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC have not accrued any amounts for
environmental remediation relating to its operations. Under existing
legislations and regulations, the management believes that there are
no probable liabilities that will have a material adverse effect to the
financial position or operating results of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@) On 18 February 2022, 13,080,000 share options were granted
to certain employees of the Group as disclosed in note 40(a).

On 2 March 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
equity interest in the wholly owned subsidiary, Taixing Xin
Xin at a consideration of RMB42,100,000 (approximately
HK$51,362,000) as disclosed in note 26(a).

() After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
recommended a final dividend as disclosed in note 12(a).
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48.POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 48.8Z_F_—f+_A

NEW STANDARDS AND E+—HLEFEEHEME
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT MEAERNZIERT R#E]
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED B RRBZAREE
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has BEEAYBHHRENERE FE S
issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS 17, REERMZIEE J&%ﬁiﬁﬂ” B
Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended MBBREEREI7TRRERED] %
31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in these EXCHIDNE i ﬁlJr‘]ﬂEE’\%zi_f— F
financial statements. These developments include the following Jr_)EJ =+—BLEFEES BARA
which may be relevant to the Group. MBEREREN - ZZERBEATA

HEAEEEHENAR -

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related EREMBERE R4 R RBEEE?
Amendments? AERIZE 1758

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’ BEMBERE HESEZRZEM

HERIE3H 2
&3]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between EEMERE KREEHHBZ N[
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint LZHIE10%R Kk AEPEZENEE
Venture? BEEGTER HEFEAE?
2858 2 18F]

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BE ST AR BaEsEAREK
Non-current and related amendments F1H 2 1B85] FERBRHBEERE
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2 %SHJTE']*E e (=

T _FTF)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies? Fe i | @ 5 R I FE2

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 FIRRER
B 765 i & 22 Al
B R
F25 2 185]
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? Eaest%q| S EET 2 EH?
B8R Z185]

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and EAeTER ME-RXZGEEZEE
Liabilities arising from a Single F125 285 MBEHBEZELER
Transaction? 152

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds EagstEL| ME - B R R E—R
before Intended Use' %1 65}%29 7] TERZAIMFEIE

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Eaest%q| BEAHN—EBITEHN
Contract! FI7I|ABET A

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EAEMBRE ERYBRELE -
2018-2020" R 2 BFT —NEEZ_T_ZF

B F [ B!
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 1 R-ZE-_—_F—A—Ba 2 EHBEKN
F[EHAR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 2 R-ZE-_=F—A— Bz 2ERABHN
FREEBRER

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 3 MR TR E A B ER - MR R AR

adoption

T-F5H FFRAREEBERAF 267



268

O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e e

31 December 2021 —Z-—F+—-A=+—H

48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 31 March 2022.
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